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CHARACTERISTICS OF GEM (“GEM”) OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG
KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate small and mid-sized companies to
which a higher investment risk may be attached than other companies listed on the Stock Exchange.
Prospective investors should be aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies and should
make the decision to invest only after due and careful consideration.

Given that the companies listed on GEM are generally small and mid-sized companies, there is a risk
that securities traded on GEM may be more susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange and no assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in
the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock Exchange take no responsibility for the
contents of this report, make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly
disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or
any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of Perfect Optronics Limited (the “Company”)
collectively and individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“GEM Listing Rules”) for the purpose of giving information with regard to the Company. The Directors,
having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that to the best of their knowledge and belief the
information contained in this report is accurate and complete in all material respects and not misleading
or deceptive, and there are no other matters the omission of which would make any statement herein or
this report misleading.
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Chairman’s Statement

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”), |
present the annual results of Perfect Optronics Limited
and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year ended 31
December 2020 (the “Year”) to all of its shareholders.

REVIEW OF OPERATIONAL RESULTS

With a unique mix of global crises including the
Coronavirus Disease 2019 (the “COVID-19”) pandemic,
volatile China-U.S. relations and other geopolitical risks,
2020 was a challenging year for many businesses.
Despite the strong macro headwinds, the Group’s
business improved with the net loss of the Year
narrowed.

For the Year, the Group recorded a revenue of
approximately HK$207.0 million in revenue, representing
an approximately 24% improvement as compared with
2019. Consolidated loss attributable to equity holders of
the Company for the Year amounted to approximately
HK$16.9 million, representing a decrease of
approximately 50% as compared with the loss of
approximately HK$34.1 million in 2019.

Sales of the Group’s small-sized display panels remained
weak during the Year. But as driven by the trend of home
office and distance learning under the pandemic, sales of
the Group’s medium-to-large sized display products,
which are used on monitors, notebooks and tablets,
improved as compared with the previous year. Overall
sales of the Group’s thin film transistor liquid crystal
display (“TFT-LCD”) panels and modules amounted to
approximately HK$138.5 million during the Year, which
increased by approximately 3% as compared with 2019.
Sales of polarisers reached approximately HK$35.8 million,
representing an increase of approximately HK$31.1 million
as compared with 2019. The Group continued to expand
its electronic signage business, widen its customer base
in different territories and recorded a revenue of
approximately HK$11.8 million, representing an
approximately 52% increase in revenue as compared with
2019. Meanwhile, sales of optics products also recorded
an increase in revenue during the Year as compared with
2019.
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Chairman’s Statement
FERE

Besides, as one of the examples of the implementation of
the Group’s flexible business strategy, the Group took
advantage of its strong business network in Taiwan and
introduced a personal hygiene and disinfectant product
line branded “K-clean” from Taiwan for sale in Hong Kong
during the Year in view of the strong demand for
disinfectant products under the pandemic. The Group has
also entered into a long-term exclusive agency agreement
with the supplier of K-clean in February 2021 and further
strengthened its relationship with the supplier.

As for the Group’s investment, the Group held certain
preferred shares of Mobvoi Inc. (“Mobvoi”) since early
2015. Mobvoi is principally engaged in the business of
developing and providing voice search artificial intelligence
(“Al”) systems on mobile, smart wearable, automotive and
other devices. Following the Group’s subscription, Mobvoi
completed several rounds of fundraising and introduced
world class enterprises such as Google and Volkswagen
as its investors. During the Year, Mobvoi acquired two
companies by the issues of new ordinary shares of
Mobvoi and reserved additional ordinary shares of Mobvoi
for its employee stock ownership plan. Although the
Group’s shareholding proportion in Mobvoi is reduced
from approximately 1.50% to approximately 1.23% (on a
fully diluted and as converted basis) due to the
aforementioned actions, the Company considers that the
value of Mobvoi can be enhanced and thus benefit the
Group as its shareholder.

Looking forward, the Group will endeavor to develop and
promote its products and meanwhile, maintain its flexible
business strategy to seize new business opportunities in
order to create greater value for the Group and the
shareholders of the Company.

Perfect Opftronics Limited Annual Report 2020
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APPRECIATION

I, on behalf of the Board, would like to present my
sincere gratitude to our shareholders, business partners
and customers for their support and trust over the years.
| also highly appreciate the contribution and dedication of
our management and staff.

Kan Man Wai
Acting Chairman
Perfect Optronics Limited

Hong Kong
19 March 2021
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEEN®E DM

BUSINESS REVIEW AND PROSPECTS

Business Review

The Group is principally engaged in the trading,
development, and sale of display and optics products and
other related electronic components. The Group also
processes some of the products that it sells.

In 2020, the COVID-19 had a massive impact on the
global economy. During the Year, series of stringent
precautionary and control measures were implemented by
governments of various countries and regions, in some of
which the Group has business operations, to control the
spread of the COVID-19, which led to market
uncertainties and drastic drop of demands for the Group’s
products. The Group recorded a significant decrease in
revenue during the first half of 2020, but the revenue
rebounded in the second half of 2020 as the disruption
caused by COVID-19 began to alleviate. Despite the
overall unfavorable economic environment, the Group took
advantage of its wide product diversity and flexible
business strategy, successfully improved the Group’s
revenue and reduced the Group’s net loss for the Year as
compared with 2019.

The Group’s revenue for the Year amounted to
approximately HK$206,973,000, representing an increase
of approximately 24% as compared with approximately
HK$166,607,000 in 2019. Loss attributable to equity
holders of the Company for the Year amounted to
approximately HK$16,883,000, representing a reduction in
loss of approximately 50% as compared with
approximately HK$34,078,000 for the year ended
31 December 2019.

Perfect Opftronics Limited Annual Report 2020
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The Group’s small-sized display panel business continues
to be unsatisfactory, as affected by the concentrated
situation in the mobile phone market due to domination
by the major brands. The sale of the medium-to-large
sized display products, including display modules for
computer notebooks, monitors and televisions, remained a
key revenue driver for the Group during the Year. With
increased demand for laptops, PC monitors and tablets
driven by the large number of people working-from-home
and shifting to remote learning during the pandemic, the
Group’s sales of TFT-LCD panels and modules amounted
to approximately HK$138,466,000 during the Year,
representing an approximately 3% increase as compared
with approximately HK$135,040,000 in 2019.

The successful marketing strategy of the Group’s
longstanding polariser supplier induced a significant
increase in the Group’s sales of polarisers in 2020. The
Group’s sales of polarisers in 2020 amounted to
approximately HK$35,794,000, representing an increase of
approximately HK$31,073,000 as compared with
approximately HK$4,721,000 in 2019.

The Group’s electronic signage products, which include
digital information signage, electronic shelf displays, and
electronic white boards, etc., continued to expand its
customer base during the Year. Users of the Group’s
electronic signage products include schools, education
institutions, shopping malls and retail stores in Hong
Kong, Taiwan and overseas. During the Year, the Group’s
sales of electronic signage products amounted to
approximately HK$11,774,000, representing an increase of
approximately 52% as compared with approximately
HK$7,749,000 in 2019. The Group will continue to
develop its electronic signage business to capture the
rising electronic signage market.

For optics products, the Group recorded a revenue of
approximately HK$6,353,000 in 2020, representing an
increase of approximately HK$3,895,000 as compared
with approximately HK$2,458,000 in 2019. Shortage in
supply of certain optics products components in the
market boosted the Group’s sales during the Year.

Management Discussion and Analysis
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEEEFN®R DM

Although the Group’s major products mentioned above
recorded an increase in revenue in 2020 as compared
with 2019, some products such as light guide plates and
integrated circuits recorded a decrease in revenue during
the Year. In order to diversify its business risk, the Group
adopted a flexible business strategy to widen its product
portfolio. In view of the feverish market demand for
disinfectant products under the pandemic, the Group
identified a personal hygiene and disinfectant product line
branded “K-clean” in Taiwan and started to introduce it to
Hong Kong market during the Year. The Group has
marketed K-clean to corporate clients, as well as
consumers on various online platforms. K-clean is now
also available in large-scale retailers in Hong Kong.
Through the Group’s marketing efforts and the proven
effectiveness of K-clean, K-clean has gained recognition in
the market. Sales of K-clean related products during the
Year amounted to approximately HK$4,507,000 (2019: Nil)
and it is expected to grow in the coming year. In
February 2021, the Group further entered into a long-term
agency agreement with, among others, the Taiwan
supplier of K-clean, in relation to the engagement as the
exclusive agent for the sales and promotion of the full
series of K-clean products in Hong Kong and Macau.
Such agreement further strengthened the relationship
between the Group and the Taiwan supplier.

Since 2015, the Group has held certain preferred shares
of Mobvoi, which is principally engaged in the business of
developing and providing voice search Al systems on
mobile, smart wearable, automotive and other devices.
Such investment is classified as financial asset at fair
value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”). During the Year,
Mobvoi continued to launch new models of its existing
products such as smart watches and developed various
new lines of products. Mobvoi's automotive Al voice
interactive system has been applied to certain new car
models launched in China. Mobvoi has also developed
strategic co-operations with other well-known companies
in China for application of its Al products to smart home
development. Furthermore, during the Year, Mobvoi
completed the acquisitions of two companies (the
“Acquisitions”) by the issues of new ordinary shares of
Mobvoi as consideration; and Mobvoi has also reserved
additional ordinary shares of Mobvoi for its employee
stock ownership plan (“ESOP”). Upon completion of the

Perfect Opftronics Limited Annual Report 2020
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aforesaid issues of ordinary shares of Mobvoi and the
reservation of additional ordinary shares of Mobvoi for its
ESOP, the Group’s shareholding proportion in Mobvoi is
reduced from approximately 1.50% to approximately
1.23% (on a fully diluted and as converted basis).
Notwithstanding the dilution in shareholding, the fair value
of the Group’s investment in Mobvoi increased to
approximately HK$59,547,000 as at 31 December 2020
(31 December 2019: HK$57,538,000); and a fair value
gain in financial asset at FVTPL of approximately
HK$2,009,000 was recognised during the Year (2019:
HK$2,550,000). The Company considers that the
Acquisitions will potentially enhance the value of Mobvoi
and thus benefit the Group’s subsidiary as its
shareholder.

The Group’s another investment was classified as financial
asset at fair value through other comprehensive income,
representing the Group’s investment in a Taiwan private
company which engages in the business of the separator
(a key component in lithium batteries). Such company
allotted additional shares to raise capital during the Year
and the Group’s shareholding was diluted from
approximately 3.03% to approximately 2.22%. The fair
value of such investment decreased to approximately
HK$1,876,000 as at 31 December 2020 (31 December
2019: HK$2,673,000).

Prospects

Looking ahead to 2021, despite the roll out of COVID-19
vaccines may help control COVID-19 and gradually spur
the economy to recovery, the global economy is still
susceptible to many market uncertainties and these
challenges and difficulties will continuously affect the
Group’s performance. Nevertheless, benefitting from the
Group’s flexible business strategy, the Group introduced
K-clean to its products portfolio, which may help to
diversify the risk. Display products will remain as the key
revenue driver of the Group, but the Group will grasp the
opportunity to continue to promote the sales of K-clean
products. Meanwhile, the Group will continue to widen its
revenue base, enhance its product diversity, widen
customer base and introduce new products and new
suppliers from different industries or areas, as well as
maintain a flexible business strategy to explore new
business opportunities for its development.

Management Discussion and Analysis
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEEINRR DN

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

Global economic condition

A slowdown in the global economy, including the
economic climate in the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC”), which has been one of the major markets for
display products, would affect the results of the Group. A
decrease in market demand may put significant downward
pressure on the average selling prices. Reduced corporate
and commercial activities also have a negative impact on
the demand for and prices of the Group’s products. If the
economy continues to grow at a slow rate, or
experiences a prolonged recession, the Group’s business
and results of operations will continue to be adversely
affected.

Inventory risk

The Group places orders with its suppliers based on the
Group’s forecast of future procurement, customers’
intentions and indicated orders, customers’ recent
purchase orders and the Group’s inventory levels. Any
unanticipated drop in sales could cause the Group’s
inventories to accumulate. As technology evolves quickly,
the Group’s inventories may become obsolete and may
adversely affect the Group’s financial position and results
of operations.

Prices fluctuation risk

Product trends, industry trends and other factors beyond
the Group’s control may cause fluctuations in selling
prices and raw material prices, which could have a drastic
and adverse effect on the Group’s gross profit and net
profit.

Financial risks

The Group’s activities are exposed to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including foreign exchange risk, cash
flow and fair value interest rate risk, price risk), credit risk
and liquidity risk. Details of such risks are set out in Note
3 to the consolidated financial statements.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

The following discussion should be read in conjunction
with the Group’s consolidated financial statements and its
notes, which are included in this report.

Revenue

Total revenue of the Group for the Year amounted to
approximately HK$206,973,000, which increased by
approximately 24% as compared to approximately
HK$166,607,000 in 2019. Increase in total revenue was
attributable to the increase in revenue from the Group’s
sales of TFT-LCD panels and modules, polarisers,
electronic signage and optics products, as well as the
Group’s newly introduced personal hygiene and
disinfectant products.

Cost of sales

Cost of sales of the Group mainly consisted of purchase
costs, processing and subcontracting charges, staff costs,
provision for obsolete inventories and other direct costs.
Due to the increase in revenue, purchase costs,
processing and subcontracting charges, and other direct
costs increased during the Year as compared with 2019.
However, the write-back of provision for obsolete
inventories during the Year decreased as compared with
2019. Total cost of sales for the Year amounted to
approximately HK$189,869,000, which increased by
approximately 14% as compared to approximately
HK$166,902,000 in 2019.

Gross profit/(loss)

Gross profit amounting to approximately HK$17,104,000
was recorded for the Year (2019: gross loss of
HK$295,000). The improvement was mainly attributable to
the increase in gross profit margins of the products sold
during the Year.
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Other gains, net

Net other gains of approximately HK$3,256,000 (2019:
HK$3,069,000) was recorded during the Year. The
balance mainly included the fair value gain in the Group’s
investment in Mobvoi of approximately HK$2,009,000
(2019: HK$2,550,000) and government subsidies of
approximately HK$1,349,000 (2019: HK$231,000), which
mainly represented the subsidy received under the
Employment Support Scheme of the Hong Kong SAR
Government during the Year.

Distribution and selling expenses

The Group’s distribution and selling expenses for the Year
amounted to approximately HK$10,119,000, representing
an approximately 17% increase as compared to
approximately HK$8,680,000 in 2019. The increase was
mainly attributable to the increase in expenses incurred
for the Group’s Taiwan branch which was newly
established in late 2019, and the increase in promotion
expenses and staff costs for the Group’s new products.

General and administrative expenses

The Group’s general and administrative expenses for the
Year amounted to approximately HK$26,747,000, which
was comparable to approximately HK$26,916,000 in
2019.

Research and development expenses

The Group’s research and development expenses
amounted to approximately HK$1,394,000 for the Year,
which decreased by approximately HK$578,000 as
compared with approximately HK$1,972,000 in 2019. The
decrease was mainly due to the decrease in staff costs
and development fees incurred for products development.

Finance costs
The Group’s finance costs for the Year represented
interest expenses of approximately HK$678,000 (2019:

HK$890,000) on lease liabilities. No bank loans interest
(2019: HK$275,000) was incurred during the Year.
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Income tax

No Hong Kong profits tax was provided by the Group for
the Year (2019: Nil). Income tax during the years ended
31 December 2020 and 2019 mainly represented deferred
income tax credited to the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

Loss attributable to equity holders of the Company

Loss attributable to equity holders of the Company for the
Year amounted to approximately HK$16,883,000,
representing a decrease in loss of approximately
HK$17,195,000 as compared with the loss of
approximately HK$34,078,000 in 2019, which was mainly
attributable to the increase in revenue and improvement in
gross profit during the Year.

FINANCIAL KEY PERFORMANCE
INDICATORS

The financial key performance indicators are analysed as
follows:

Note

Wi

Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWE DM

Frigst
REBRAFEELEFREBNEH (ZT—A
F E) BHE_Z_ZTFR_ZFT—NLF+_A
T+ HLEFENAEREBHEFAZELE
W RIETFT SR

AATEREEAEHGEER
AFEE ARAESEAEAEBRBGLEEN A
16,883,000 7w & — T — L F W & 1B 4

34,078,000/ 7T 8 E5 18 4917,195,000% 7T + =+
DHRAFEZHU AL IR EF =TI -

TEMBRAER
EHMBRAEESNMT -

Year ended 31 December
BE+-_A=1+—-HLEFE

Percentage change

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE BBRR
Revenue WA
Gross profit/(loss) Ef,/(£8)
Loss before interest, income tax, BRAE - FIEH &
depreciation and amortisation T 48 SH A E 8
(“EBITDA’) (TEBITDA]) ()
Loss for the year FEEE
Loss attributable to equity holders of AR B EHH AL
the Company &1
Gross profit margin EES

Return on total assets (%)

Return on shareholders’ equity (%) % 22 4 24 [ 3% & (%) (i)
Basic loss per share (HK cents) FREREBECEWL)

BEERRE %) (i)

Increase/

2020 2019 (decrease)

BOLLEE

ZB-2F ZT-NF #,/ (i)
HK$°000 HK$'000
THET FET

206,973 166,607 24%

17,104 (295) N/A i

(11,356) (27,927) (59)%

(18,530) (35,648) (48)%

(16,883) (34,079) (50)%

8.3% N/A 7~ A N/A 138 A

Improved by 9.1%

-8.4% -17.5% HE91%

Improved by 9.0%

-11.2% -20.2% HE9.0%
HK(1.14) cents HK(2.30) cents

(1.14)% 4L (2301 (50)%
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As at 31 December

BR+=-A=+—~H
Percentage
change
Increase/
Note 2020 2019 (decrease)
BOLLEE
P g S 3:3 —E-AF  #ENSCRD)
HK$°000 HK$'000
TERT TET
KEY FINANCIAL INDICATORS FEMBER
Cash and cash equivalents HBekReZEEYD 76,403 70,308 9%
Net current assets MBEEFR 80,689 99,337 (19)%
Total assets BELE 219,932 203,663 8%
Bank borrowings RITEE = - -
Total liabilities BELE 68,816 33,306 107%
Equity attributable to equity holders AR AIEZEH AEMH
of the Company Gy 151,361 168,947 (10)%
Total equity BRAR 151,116 170,357 (1%
Decreased
2.3 times 5.0 times by 2.7 times
Current ratio (times) BN & (%) (iv) 2.31% 5.01% A2 TE
Decreased
1.8 times 3.7 times by 1.9 times
Quick ratio (times) R & (fF) ) 1.8f% 3.71E A9
Gearing ratio (%) EREE L E(%) (vi) 0% 0% -
Debt-to-asset ratio (%) BEEELE%) (vii) 0% 0% -
Notes: g
0] As the Group recorded loss before interest, income tax, depreciation (i) AREE-T-_ZFE=_T—NAF+=ZA=+—8BL
and amortisation during the years ended 31 December 2020 and FEAEBHGSRAE -FEH WEREBHAE
2019, no EBITDA margin are presented 8 - B & 2 5EBITDAR
(ii) Return on total assets = Loss for the year/Total assets (ii) BMEERRR=-FEBHEE LELHE
(iif) Return on shareholders’ equity = Loss attributable to equity holders (i) BRRESERE=ANARERFEAREEE AQ
of the Company/Equity attributable to equity holders of the RIS E ABGER
Company
(iv) Current ratio = Current assets/Current liabilities (iv) R R=-RBEE/RBHAE
(v) Quick ratio = (Current assets — Inventories)/Current liabilities v) R E=(RBEE — FE) / RPEE
(vi) Gearing ratio = Total interest-bearing bank borrowings/Total equity — (vi) ERBEHE=BRTEEAE HaeE
(vij  Debt-to-asset ratio = Total interest-bearing bank borrowings/Total  (vi) BEEELZR=tERITEELE EELE

assets
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LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group’s funds are principally used to finance working
capital, and the growth and expansion of the Group’s
operations and sales network. The Group’s principal
sources of funds are cash generated from operations and
bank borrowings. As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s
cash and cash equivalents, represented by bank deposits,
bank balances and cash, amounted to approximately
HK$76,403,000 (2019: HK$70,308,000).

The carrying amounts of the Group’s bank deposits, bank
balances and cash are denominated in the following
currencies:

Management Discussion and Analysis
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RBESRMBER
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JTT(ZZ— 1% : 70,308,000/ 7T) * Jh ARITIE
HMITHEBERSE -

AEBORITER  RITE
TIA TP B 5HE -

BRkRTHEREE

As at 31 December

R+=B=+—H
2020 2019
— —E-NF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FAET
United States dollars (“USD”) E Vi) 59,560 57,491
Renminbi (“‘RMB”) ARB(TARE] 8,805 4,777
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”) B (BTl 7,478 6,986
New Taiwan dollars (“TWD”) mak(mel 560 1,054
76,403 70,308

The Group had no bank borrowings as at 31 December
2020 (2019: Nil).

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The capital of the Company only comprises ordinary
shares. There has been no change in the capital structure
of the Group during the Year.

TREASURY POLICIES

The Group has adopted a prudent financial management
approach towards its treasury policies and thus
maintained a healthy liquidity position throughout the
Year.
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The Group strives to reduce exposure to credit risk by
monitoring on an ongoing basis with reference to the
financial position of the debtors, past experience and
other factors. The Group performs regular credit
evaluations of its major customers. To manage liquidity
risk, the management closely monitors the Group’s
liquidity position and maintains sufficient cash and an
adequate amount of committed credit facilities to settle
the payables of the Group.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES,
SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

The Group’s management policies, working environment,
career prospects and employees’ benefits have
contributed to building good employee relations and
employee retention of the Group. The Group offers
competitive remuneration packages commensurate with
industry practice and provides various fringe benefits to
employees including medical benefits, social insurance,
mandatory provident funds, bonuses and a share option
scheme. The management regularly reviews its
employee’s remuneration packages to ensure they are up
to prevailing market standards.

As at 31 December 2020, the employee headcount of the
Group was 66 (2019: 74) and the total staff costs,
including directors’ emoluments, amounted to
approximately HK$23,911,000 during the Year (2019:
HK$21,533,000). Such amount of total staff costs
excluded depreciation and finance costs associated with
the lease of staff quarter, amounting to approximately
HK$568,000 (2019: HK$974,000) and approximately
HK$11,000 (2019: HK$63,000) respectively.

The Group has established long term business
relationships with its major suppliers for over ten years.
The Group has entered into long term supply framework
agreements with these suppliers. The Group will endeavor
to maintain its established relationship with these existing
suppliers.
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The Group has a well-established business relationship
with its customers and has gained recognition in the TFT-
LCD panel industry in the PRC. Some of its customers
have over ten-year business relationships with the Group.
To deal with the downturn in the Group’s business in
recent years, the Group endeavours to secure the
business with existing customers and at the same time
devotes to develop new reliable customers in new
markets.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had no material
contingent liabilities (2019: Nil).

CHARGE OF ASSETS

The Group had no charge of assets as at 31 December
2020 (2019: Nil).

FOREIGN CURRENCY

The Group’s business transactions, assets and liabilities
are principally denominated in USD, HK$, RMB and TWD.
HK$ are reasonably stable against the USD under the
Linked Exchange Rate System. In addition, the
management considers that the impact on exchange
differences for RMB and TWD is not significant as at
31 December 2020. The Group currently does not have a
foreign currency hedging policy. However, the Board will
continuously monitor the related foreign exchange
exposure and will consider hedging significant foreign
currency exposure should the need arise.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2020, the Group did not have any
significant capital commitments (2019: Nil).

DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend nor declare any dividend
for the Year (2019: Nil).
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SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS HELD

In January 2015, the Group subscribed for 25,213,220
Series A-2 Preferred Shares of Mobvoi at a consideration
of USD3,000,000. Mobvoi is principally engaged in the
business of developing and providing voice search Al
systems on mobile, smart wearable, automotive and other
devices. The Company considers that the investment in
Mobvoi, which is intended to be held by the Group for
long-term investment purpose, will provide an opportunity
to the Group to share in and gain from the development
potentials of Mobvoi and its products and technology. The
Group does not have any management or operational role
in Mobvoi. There have been no addition to or disposal of
such investment by the Group since it made the
investment in January 2015. Mobvoi has undertaken
several rounds of fundraising in recent years. During the
Year, Mobvoi completed the acquisitions of two
companies by the issues of new ordinary shares of
Mobvoi as consideration; and Mobvoi also reserved
additional ordinary shares of Mobvoi for its ESOP. Upon
completion of the aforesaid issues of ordinary shares of
Mobvoi and the reservation of additional ordinary shares
of Mobvoi for its ESOP, the Group’s shareholding
proportion in Mobvoi is reduced from approximately
1.50% to approximately 1.23% (on a fully diluted and as
converted basis).

The Group’s investment in Mobvoi is classified as financial
asset at fair value through profit or loss. As at
31 December 2020, the fair value of the Group’s
investment in Mobvoi was approximately HK$59,547,000,
representing approximately 27% of the Group’s total
assets. No dividend has been received by the Group from
Mobvoi since making its investment. A fair value gain of
approximately HK$2,009,000 was recognised during the
Year.

Save for the abovementioned, the Group did not hold any

significant investment in equity interest in any other
company as at 31 December 2020.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL
INVESTMENTS AND CAPITAL ASSETS

The Group did not have plans for material investments
and capital assets as at 31 December 2020.
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MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND
DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES AND
AFFILIATED COMPANIES

The Group did not have any material acquisitions and
disposals of subsidiaries and affiliated companies during
the Year.

LEGAL PROCEEDINGS INVOLVING THE
COMPANY AND THE DIRECTORS

Reference is made to the announcements of the
Company dated 26 September 2019, 4 October 2019,
10 January 2020, 9 April 2020, 10 July 2020 and 25
September 2020. On 25 September 2019, the Company
received a sealed copy of a petition (the “Petition”) issued
by the High Court of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region (the “High Court”) which was taken
out by the Securities and Futures Commission (the “SFC”)
pursuant to section 214 of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance against certain Directors, namely Mr. Cheng
Wai Tak, Mr. Liu Ka Wing, Mr. Tse Ka Wing, Mr. Wong
Yik Chung John, Mr. Wong Chi Chiu and Mr. Li Shui Yan
(collectively “the Director Respondents”), and the
Company. The SFC alleged in the Petition that the
Director Respondents had breached their duties as
directors of the Company in relation to the disposal of a
subsidiary of the Company holding an approximately
50.14% shareholding in 3 % & & 7 & R & A
(Shinyoptics Corporation*) (details of such disposal were
disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated
22 December 2016). As the Company is only a nominal
respondent to the Petition and pursuant to the order of
the High Court, the Company is not required to actively
participate in the legal proceedings in respect of the
Petition.

The Company understands the Director Respondents
disagree with the allegations of the SFC in the Petition,
and intend to vigorously contest the Petition. As at the
date of this report, the legal proceedings of the Petition
are ongoing.

As announced by the Company in its announcement
dated 25 September 2020, trading in the shares of the
Company on GEM resumed with effect from 9:00 a.m. on
28 September 2020.

* for identification purpose only
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Corporate Governance Report

TEERRSE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to achieving high standards of
corporate governance with a view to safeguarding the
interests of its shareholders. To accomplish this, save as
set out below, the Company has adopted the principles
and the code provisions of the Corporate Governance
Code (the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix 15 of the
GEM Listing Rules.

Throughout the Year, the Company had complied with all
the code provisions of the CG Code, except for the
deviation as disclosed under the section headed
“Chairman and Chief Executive Officer” below.

COMPLIANCE OF CODE OF CONDUCT
FOR DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by directors on terms no less
exacting than the required standard of dealings set out in
Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules. Having
made specific enquiry of all Directors, all Directors have
complied with the required standard of dealings and the
code of conduct regarding securities transactions by
Directors adopted by the Company during the Year.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Composition of the Board

Up to the date of this annual report, the Board comprises
four executive Directors and five independent non-
executive Directors. The composition of the Board during
the Year and up to the date of this annual report was as
follows.

Executive Directors:
Mr. Cheng Wai Tak (suspended)
Mr. Liu Ka Wing (suspended)
Mr. Tse Ka Wing (suspended)
Mr. Chang Huan Chia
(appointed on 25 September 2020)

Independent non-executive Directors:
Mr. Wong Yik Chung John (suspended)
Mr. Wong Chi Chiu (suspended)
Mr. Li Shui Yan (resigned on 15 October 2020)
Mr. Kan Man Wai (Acting Chairman)
(appointed on 1 January 2020)
Mr. Cho Chi Kong (appointed on 1 January 2020)
Ms. Hsu Wai Man Helen
(appointed on 25 September 2020)

Except for Mr. Li Shui Yan who resigned during the Year,
the biographical details of all Directors and senior
management of the Company are set out on pages 67 to
72 of this annual report. To the best knowledge of the
Company, there is no financial, business, family or other
material or relevant relationships among members of the
Board.

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated
25 September 2020, pending the outcome of the legal
proceedings of the Petition against certain Directors,
including Mr. Cheng Wai Tak, Mr. Liu Ka Wing, Mr. Tse
Ka Wing, Mr. Wong Yik Chung John and Mr. Wong Chi
Chiu have been suspended from their duties as Directors
with effect from 25 September 2020. Mr. Kan Man Wai
has been appointed as the acting Chairman in place of
Mr. Cheng Wai Tak with effect from 25 September 2020.
For further details, please refer to the announcement of
the Company dated 25 September 2020.
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FUNCTIONS OF THE BOARD AND
MANAGEMENT

The Board is responsible for establishing the strategic
direction of the Company and its subsidiaries; setting
objectives and business development plans; monitoring
the performance of the senior management; and assuming
responsibility for corporate governance. The management
is responsible for implementing the strategies and plans
established by the Board and reporting on the Group’s
operations to the Board on a regular basis to ensure
effective performance of the Board’s responsibilities.

The management provided all members of the Board with
monthly updates in accordance with the code provision
C.1.2 of the CG Code.

DIRECTORS’ AND OFFICERS’
LIABILITIES

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance
coverage on Directors’ and officers’ liabilities in respect of
any legal actions taken against Directors and senior
management arising out of corporate activities. The
insurance coverage is reviewed on an annual basis.

BOARD MEETINGS

The Directors can attend meetings in person or through
other means of electronic communication in accordance
with the Company’s articles of association. All minutes of
the Board meetings were recorded in sufficient detail of
the matters considered by the Board and the decisions
made.
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Four regular board meetings were held during the Year., EZ &R AFEANLRTHRTHE = - @ARIE
The attendance of individual Directors at these board ZEHFEZES@Z2BRWOT :
meetings were as follows:
Continuous
Number of professional
regular board development
meetings — Type of
Name attended/held training (Note)
HE BT BEEERR
EHHNEES —EIEE
M E =E= (B &)
Executive Directors: HITESF -
Mr. Cheng Wai Tak EE B E 4/4 A B
Mr. Liu Ka Wing BamfisE 4/4 A, B
Mr. Tse Ka Wing FRE T E 4/4 A, B
Mr. Chang Huan Chia wIER KA (R —TF 11 A, B
(appointed on 25 September 2020) A A -+ HH 5%%@6)
Independent non-executive Directors: ¥ E#H 7T7E F -
Mr. Wong Yik Chung John EEBRE 4/4 A, B
Mr. Wong Chi Chiu EEHBEE 4/4 A, B
Mr. Li Shui Yan FRBAEE(R_ZT_ZF 3/3 A B
(resigned on 15 October 2020) +A+HBBT)
Mr. Kan Man Wai X EEE 4/4 A B
Mr. Cho Chi Kong LA 4/4 A, B
Ms. Hsu Wai Man Helen BREFLZLT(R_ZTF 1/1 A B
(appointed on 25 September 2020) A A-+HAEZT)
Notes: Bt et -
A: attending training courses, seminars, workshops or in-house  A: HEEIIRIE B TEHIADERGSETE

briefings or giving talks

B: reading materials relating to laws and regulations, corporate
governance, and other topics relevant to the Group’s strategy and
business

CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

According to the code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, all
directors shall participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills to ensure their contribution to the Board remains
informed and relevant.

S
B MEEMERRAN CEEAURRMEAEER
R EBRBNHEEGER

HEERRE

RIBEEERTAMTRIRXFALLME 28
EER2EAREFTERR BREEFREN
BN BRREEBEEABEZEEAR
DEMBNBERATHESSFHER -

BExxXEFRLF 2020 FiR

25



26

Corporate Governance Report
S EERRE

The Group, together with its legal advisors, continuously
update the Directors on the latest developments regarding
the GEM Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory
requirements, to ensure compliance and enhance their
awareness of good corporate governance practices. The
Company has received the Directors’ training records for
the Year, and a summary of training participated by the
Directors during the Year is set out on page 25 of this
annual report.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has
entered into an appointment letter with the Company for
a term of three years.

In compliance with the code provision A.4.2 of the CG
Code, all Directors appointed to fill a casual vacancy
should be subject to election by the shareholders at the
first general meeting after their appointment. By virtue of
article 112 of the articles of association of the Company,
the Board shall have power from time to time and at any
time to appoint any person as a Director either to fill a
casual vacancy or as an additional Director but the
number of Directors so appointed shall not exceed the
maximum number determined from time to time by the
shareholders in general meeting. Any Director appointed
by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office only
until the first general meeting of the Company after his
appointment and be subject to re-election at such
meeting. Any Director appointed by the Board as an
addition to the existing Board shall hold office only until
the next following annual general meeting of the Company
and shall then be eligible for re-election.

In compliance with the code provision in A.4.2 of the CG
Code, all Directors are subject to retirement by rotation at
least once every three years. Furthermore, pursuant to
article 108(a) of the articles of association of the
Company, at each annual general meeting, one-third of
the Directors for the time being, or, if their number is not
3 or a multiple of 3, then the number nearest to but not
less than one-third, shall retire from office by rotation,
provided that every Director (including those appointed for
a specific term) shall be subject to retirement by rotation
at least once every 3 years. A retiring Director shall be
eligible for re-election. The Company at the general
meeting at which a Director retires may fill the vacated
office.
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By virtue of article 108 of the articles of association of the
Company, Mr. Liu Ka Wing, Mr. Wong Yik Chung John
and Mr. Wong Chi Chiu will retire by rotation at the
forthcoming annual general meeting and being eligible, will
offer themselves for re-election.

Mr. Chang Huan Chia and Ms. Hsu Wai Man Helen were
appointed as an executive Director and an independent
non-executive Director respectively with effect from 25
September 2020. In accordance with the article 112 of
the articles of association of the Company, Mr. Chang
Huan Chia and Ms. Hsu Wai Man Helen will retire at the
forthcoming annual general meeting and, being eligible,
will offer themselves for re-election.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

In compliance with Rules 5.05(1), 5.05(2) and 5.05A of the
GEM Listing Rules, the Company has appointed five
independent non-executive Directors, representing more
than one-third of the Board and with at least one of
whom having appropriate professional qualifications, or
accounting or related financial management expertise. The
Company has received annual independence confirmation
from each of the existing independent non-executive
Directors pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules.
The Board considers all independent non-executive
Directors to be independent in accordance with the
independence guidelines set out in the GEM Listing Rules
for the Year.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER

According to the code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code,
the roles of the chairman and chief executive should be
separate and should not be performed by the same
individual.
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During the Year, Mr. Cheng Wai Tak (“Mr. Cheng”) was
the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer up to 24
September 2020. With Mr. Cheng’s extensive experience
in the industry, the Board believes that vesting the roles
of both Chairman and Chief Executive Officer in the same
person would provide the Company with strong and
consistent leadership, allow for effective and efficient
planning and implementation of business decisions and
strategies, and would be beneficial to the business
prospects and management of the Group. Although Mr.
Cheng performed both the roles of Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer, the division of responsibilities between
the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer is clearly
established. In general, the Chairman is responsible for
supervising the functions and performance of the Board,
while the Chief Executive Officer is responsible for the
management of the business of the Group. The two roles
were performed by Mr. Cheng distinctly. The Board also
considers that such management structure does not
impair the balance of power and authority between the
Board and the management of the Company given the
appropriate delegation of the power of the Board and the
effective functions of the independent non-executive
Directors. However, it is the long-term objective of the
Company to have these two roles performed by separate
individuals when suitable candidates are identified.

As disclosed above, with effect from 25 September 2020,
pending the outcome of the legal proceedings of the
Petition, Mr. Cheng has been suspended from his duties
as an executive Director, the Chairman and the Chief
Executive Officer. Mr. Kan Man Wai, an independent non-
executive Director, has been appointed as the acting
Chairman in place of Mr. Cheng. The function of the Chief
Executive Officer is shared among the management staff
of the Company and other members of the Board.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established, with written terms of

reference, three Board committees, namely audit
committee, remuneration committee and nomination
committee, to oversee particular aspects of the

Company’s affairs. The Board committees are provided
with sufficient resources to discharge their duties. The
written terms of reference for each Board committee are
in line with the GEM Listing Rules and are available on the
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company,
respectively.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an audit committee on 20
January 2014 with written terms of reference in
compliance with Rule 5.28 of the GEM Listing Rules and
code provision C.3 of the CG Code. As at the date of this
report, the audit committee consists of three independent
non-executive Directors, namely, Ms. Hsu Wai Man Helen,
who has the appropriate accounting and related financial
management expertise and serves as the chairperson of
the audit committee, Mr. Cho Chi Kong and Mr. Kan Man
Wai.

The primary duties of the audit committee are (but without
limitation) to assist the Board in providing an independent
view of the effectiveness of the Company’s financial
reporting process and internal control and to review the
Company’s risk management and internal control systems,
to oversee the audit process and to perform other duties
and responsibilities as assigned by the Board.

The audit committee held four meetings during the Year.
Its composition and attendance of individual members at

Corporate Governance Report
S EERRE

BEREEE

ARBABER-_T—MF-A-THKRIBRE
Ee HEMBAEMKRRNTAGEMLEM R AIE
5.28f5F & 1b 2 & A 5T BI &Y 57 BI R ST £ C.3MR AR
E-RABREEH BERXZESH=_2BILHE
WTESFAR BABRES MABMBTE
BERNGEHIRITHAEERZRESER  H
BB REESKEERBXELE -

ERZZBENIERER(BARN)HBHES
€ RARAYBHRBEBERAMET - UK
B ALR R EREERABEN RGN ER
EERERHBYER IEEFZLBREAR
ETEESZRZEMBBEREE -

Sy A > =
K& A E

X
A P el

these audit committee meetings are as follows: N
Number of audit
committee
meetings
Members of the audit committee attended/held
HE BTN
EREES
EREBERE EERY
Ms. Hsu Wai Man Helen (Note 1) wEHLL H21) 11
Mr. Cho Chi Kong BEXEE 4/4
Mr. Kan Man Wai B SETS 4/4
Mr. Wong Yik Chung John (Note 2) sERBEE N F2) 3/3
Mr. Wong Chi Chiu (Note 3) =R MBEE K E3) 3/3
Mr. Li Shui Yan (Note 3) I B L (K iE3) 3/3
Note 1. Appointed as the chairperson and a member of the audit ffiZ7: R-ZE-_ZTFNA-_+HABEZEAEXREZESE
committee on 25 September 2020. ERKE -
Note 2: Ceased to be the chairman and a member of the audit committee ~ Afi72 - R ZE-_ZF AN/ -+ A HHIEZZESTHFR
on 25 September 2020. A -
Note 3: Ceased to be a member of the audit committee on 25 September ~ ff:i#3: R-ZE-_ZTFNA-_+HAAHEITEZZEEKE -

2020.
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During the Year, the audit committee reviewed the
Company’s annual financial statements, annual results
announcement, interim and quarterly results
announcements and reports; discussed and reviewed the
internal control and risk management systems of the
Group; reviewed the effectiveness of the Company’s
internal audit function; met with the independent external
auditors and reviewed report from the independent
external auditors regarding their audit on annual financial
statements.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a remuneration committee on
20 January 2014 with written terms of reference in
compliance with code provision B.1 of the CG Code. As
at the date of this report, the remuneration committee
consists of three independent non-executive Directors,
namely, Mr. Kan Man Wai, who serves as the chairman of
the remuneration committee, Mr. Cho Chi Kong and Ms.
Hsu Wai Man Helen.

The primary duties of the remuneration committee include
(but without limitation): (i) making recommendations to the
Board on the policy and structure for all remuneration of
Directors and senior management and on the
establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for
developing policies on such remuneration; (i) determining
the terms of the specific remuneration packages of the
Directors and senior management; and (i) reviewing and
approving performance-based remuneration by reference
to corporate goals and objectives resolved by the Board
from time to time.

During the Year, the remuneration committee held six
meetings for, inter alia, reviewing the policy and structure
for all remuneration of Directors and senior management,
assessing performance of executive Directors, approving
the terms of executive Directors’ service contracts and
making recommendations to the Board regarding the
remuneration packages of executive Directors and senior
management, as well as the director’'s fee of the new
independent Director. The remuneration committee was
satisfied with the existing arrangement and did not make
recommendation to the Board on any change of such
policy and structure.
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Number of
remuneration
committee
meetings
Members of the remuneration committee attended/held
HE BTN
FHZEES
FHEEERE BRAE
Mr. Kan Man Wai (Note 1) ﬁ’%‘xﬁf‘ﬁf(/f/ﬁf‘w 6/6
Mr. Cho Chi Kong BEXEE 6/6
Ms. Hsu Wai Man Helen (Note 4) BEG Lt (Hit4) 2/2
Mr. Wong Chi Chiu (Note 2) BEEBREMFZ2) 4/4
Mr. Wong Yik Chung John (Note 3) BEE B E (K H3) 4/4
Mr. Cheng Wai Tak (Note 3) B R 1Bk & (M aE3) 4/4
Note 1: Appointed as the chairman of the remuneration committee on  ffi#1: R-ZE-_ZFNA-+HAEZATAFHNEZESE
25 September 2020. J& o
Note 2: Ceased to be the chairman and a member of the remuneration  ffi#2: R-ZE_ZTFANA -+ HHHITFHNEZESEIRER
committee on 25 September 2020. KA -
Note 3: Ceased to be a member of the remuneration committee on  ffi#3: R—_E_TFEAA_-_+HABHIFMEZESKE -
25 September 2020.
Note 4: Appointed as a member of the remuneration committee on 25  ffi#4 - R ZE-_ZEFNA-_T+RARZTAFHEZE SR

September 2020.

REMUNERATION POLICY FOR
DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Each of the Directors will receive a fee which is subject to
an annual adjustment at a rate to be reviewed by the
remuneration committee and be determined at the
discretion of the Board. The Company’s policy concerning
the remuneration of the Directors is that the amount of
remuneration is determined by reference to the relevant
Director’s experience, responsibilities, workload and time
devoted to the Group. The Group has adopted incentive
bonus schemes and continues to maintain these schemes
in order to align the financial well-being of the Group with
that of the employees, and to retain the Directors and
staff of high caliber.

The executive Directors are also the senior management
of the Company. Details of the remuneration of executive
Directors for the year ended 31 December 2020 are set
out in Note 32(a) to the audited consolidated financial
statements contained in this annual report.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a nomination committee on 20
January 2014 with written terms of reference in
compliance with code provision A.5 of the CG Code. As
at the date of this report, the nomination committee
consists of three independent non-executive Directors,
namely, Mr. Cho Chi Kong, who serves as chairman of
the nomination committee, Mr. Kan Man Wai and Ms. Hsu
Wai Man Helen.

The primary functions of the nomination committee
include making recommendations to the Board to fill
vacancies on the same, assessing the independence of
independent non-executive Directors and reviewing the
structure, size and composition of the Board.

During the Year, the nomination committee held three
meetings for, inter alia, reviewing the structure, size and
composition of the Board and board diversity policy,
discussing matters regarding the retirement and re-
election of Directors and succession planning for directors
and assessment of the independence of independent non-
executive Directors and making recommendations to the
Board on the appointment of new executive Director and
independent non-executive Director.
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Number of
nomination
committee
meetings
Members of the nomination committee attended/held
HEBTH
REEZES
REZBEEHE BERY
Mr. Cho Chi Kong (Note 1) BEEE M) 3/3
Mr. Kan Man Wai X EEE 3/3
Ms. Hsu Wai Man Helen (Note 4) BES L (M iF4) —/=
Mr. Cheng Wai Tak (Note 2) BB 1= 5T (B 7E2) 3/3
Mr. Wong Yik Chung John (Note 3) ERBEE W3 3/3
Mr. Li Shui Yan (Note 3) Fin B k& (B iE3) 3/3

Note 1: Appointed as the chairman of the nomination committee on Wti1: R-E—SEAA -+ RAEEZIARREZES

25 September 2020. & o
Note 2: Ceased to be the chairman and a member of the nomination Biz2: R

committee on 25 September 2020.

Note 3: Ceased to be a member of the nomination committee on
25 September 2020.

Note 4. Appointed as a member of the nomination committee on 25
September 2020.
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POLICY FOR NOMINATION OF
DIRECTORS

The Company’s policy for the nomination of Directors (the
“Nomination Policy”) was adopted by the Company
pursuant to Board resolutions. The nomination committee
will review the Nomination Policy, as appropriate, to
ensure the effectiveness of the Nomination Policy and will
discuss any revisions that may be required, and
recommend any such revisions to the Board for
consideration and approval. The Nomination Policy is set
out as follows:

1. Objective

This policy sets out the criteria and procedures to
be adopted when considering candidates to be
appointed or re-elected as Directors.

2. Nomination Criteria

The nomination committee shall consider the
following criteria in evaluating and selecting
candidates for directorship:

° Character and integrity;

o Qualifications including professional
qualifications, skills, knowledge and experience
that are relevant to the Company’s business
and corporate strategy;

o Willingness to devote adequate time to
discharge duties as a member of the Board;

° Board Diversity Policy and any measurable
objectives adopted for achieving diversity on
the Board;

° Requirement for the Board to have independent
non-executive directors in accordance with the
GEM Listing Rules and whether the
candidates would be considered independent
with reference to the independence guidelines
set out in the GEM Listing Rules; and

° Such other perspectives as are appropriate to
the Company’s business or as suggested by
the Board.
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Nomination Process

3.1.

Nomination by the nomination committee

3.1.1 The nomination committee reviews the

structure, size and composition
(including the skills, knowledge and
experience) of the Board periodically and
makes recommendation on any
proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Company’s corporate
strategy;

3.1.2 When it is necessary to fill a causal

vacancy or appoint an additional
director, the nomination committee
identifies or selects candidates
recommended to the committee, with or
without assistance from external
agencies or the Company, pursuant to
the “Nomination Criteria” set out above;

3.1.3 If the process vyields one or more

desirable candidates, the nomination
committee shall rank them by order of
preference based on the needs of the
Company and reference check of each
candidate (where applicable);

3.1.4 The nomination committee makes

recommendation to the Board including
the terms and conditions of the
appointment; and

3.1.5 The Board deliberates and decides on the

appointment based upon the
recommendation of the nomination
committee.
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3.2. Re-election of Director at Annual General

3.3

Meeting

3.2.1In accordance with the Company’s
articles of association, every director
shall be subject to retirement by rotation
at least once every three years and shall
be eligible for re-election at each annual
general meeting;

3.2.2 The nomination committee shall review
the overall contribution and service to the
Company of the retiring director. The
nomination committee shall also review
the expertise and professional
qualifications of the retiring director who
offered himself/herself for re-election at
the annual general meeting, to determine
whether such director continues to meet
the “Nomination Criteria” as set out
above; and

3.2.3 Based on the review made by nomination
committee, the Board shall make
recommendations to shareholders on
candidates standing for re-election at the
annual general meeting of the Company,
and provide the available biographical
information of the retiring director in
accordance with the GEM Listing Rules
to enable shareholders to make informed
decisions on the re-election of such
candidates at annual general meeting of
the Company.

Nomination by Shareholders

The shareholders of the Company may
propose a person for election as a director in
accordance with the Memorandum and
Articles of Association of the Company and
applicable law. For more details, please
refer to the section in Company’s website
“Investor Relations — Corporate governance
— Procedures for shareholders to propose a
person for election as director”.
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company has adopted a board diversity policy (the
“Diversity Policy”) which sets out the approach to achieve
diversity on the Board. The Company embraces the
benefits of having a diverse Board to enhance the quality
of its performance. Pursuant to the Diversity Policy, the
Company seeks to achieve Board diversity through the
consideration of a number of aspects, including (but not
limited to) gender, regional and industry experience, skills,
knowledge and educational background. All appointments
of the Board members will be based on meritocracy, and
candidates will be considered against objective criteria,
having due regard for the benefits of diversity of the
Board.

Current Board members have varied educational
backgrounds and expertises, diverse perspectives and
competencies in areas which are relevant and valuable to
the Group, including accounting, corporate finance,
strategic planning, business development and
management. With the appointment of Ms. Hsu Wai Man
Helen as an independent non-executive Director during
the Year, the Board currently has one female Director,
and the Board will take opportunities to increase the
proportion of female members over time as and when
suitable candidates are identified.

The nomination committee will review the Diversity Policy,
as appropriate, to ensure its effectiveness. The Board will
also consider setting measurable objectives to implement
the Diversity Policy and review such objectives from time
to time to ensure its appropriateness and ascertain the
progress made towards achieving those objectives.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

The Company’s corporate governance function is carried
out by the Board pursuant to a set of written terms of
reference adopted by the Board, which include (a)
developing and reviewing the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance and making
recommendations to the Board; (b) reviewing and
monitoring the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management of the
Company and its subsidiaries; (c) reviewing and
monitoring the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements; (d)
developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct
and compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees
and Directors and its subsidiaries; (e) reviewing the
Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosures in the corporate governance report of the
Company required to be prepared pursuant to the GEM
Listing Rules; and (f) considering, reviewing and deciding
any other topics as authorised by the Board.

During the Year, the Board reviewed and discussed the
corporate governance policy of the Group and was
satisfied with the effectiveness of its corporate
governance policy.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Directors’ and auditor’s responsibilities for the
consolidated financial statements

All Directors acknowledge their responsibility to prepare
the Group’s consolidated financial statements for each
financial period to give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the Group and of the results and cash flows for
that period. The Directors continue to adopt the going
concern approach in preparing the consolidated financial
statements and are not aware of any material
uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue
as a going concern.

The responsibilities of the external auditors in financial
reporting are set out in the independent auditor’s report
attached to the Company’s consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2020 in this
annual report.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

For the Year, the remuneration paid or payable to

BB ET BN =
RERE - BATREOBA RIEBIH RO K

PricewaterhouseCoopers in respect of audit and non-audit [Eft F & ER KBS TR EHMR B & 50

services provided is set out below: T~

Remuneration

Services rendered paid/payable

P 12 it PR 7% B ERA#ME

HK$’000

FER

Audit services FitRBE 800
Non-audit services IEEET AR

— tax compliance services — B E RS 77

Total B Et 877

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL SYSTEMS

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to maintain an
effective risk management and internal control systems in
order to safeguard the Group’s assets and investments
and the shareholders’ interest. The Board oversees the
overall risk management of the Group and endeavors to
identify, control impact of the identified risks and facilitate
implementation of coordinated mitigating measures. Such
risk management and internal control systems are
designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of
failure to achieve business objectives, and can only
provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against
material misstatement or loss.

The Group has established a risk management policy
setting out the process of identification, evaluation and
management of the principal risks affecting the business.
Each division is responsible for identifying, assessing and
managing risks within its divisions, identifying and
assessing the principal risks on a quarterly basis with
mitigation plans to manage those risks. The management
is responsible for overseeing the risk management and
internal control activities of the Group, attending quarterly
meetings with each divisions to ensure principal risks are
properly managed and new or changing risks are
identified and documented. Lastly, the Board is
responsible for reviewing and approving the effectiveness
and adequacy of the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems.
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The risk management framework, coupled with the
Group’s internal controls, ensures that the risks
associated with different divisions are effectively controlled
in line with the Group’s risk appetite.

The risk management report was submitted to the audit
committee and the Board for review.

The Group does not have an internal audit function within
itself. Nevertheless the Company engaged an external
consultant, CT Partners Consultants Limited (“CT
Partners”), to carry out internal audit function and had
during the Year conducted review of the effectiveness of
the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems. The review covered, inter alia, the internal
control systems over the inventory cycle and the
purchase, payment and accounts payable cycle of the
Group, and the external consultant made
recommendations for improving the Group’s internal
control systems. The internal control review report was
submitted to the audit committee and the Board for
review. The audit committee has requested the
management to follow up with the recommendations of
the external consultant to remedy control issues identified
and to further improve the Group’s internal control
system.

During the Year, the Company has also implemented the
following internal control measures:

(@) The officers of the Group will cross check the
counterparty with the list of connected persons
updated on a monthly basis to identify potential
connected transaction.

(b)  The Company has adopted a new material
transactions authorisation policy and procedures (the
“Policy”) to supplement the Group’s internal control
policies, which include (i) implementing additional
authorisation procedures by setting different
thresholds on the amount of all transactions with
specific authorisation requirements; (i) preparing
monthly reports with details of the transactions
above certain thresholds for the Board and the audit
committee’s review to identify if there is any
irregularity or doubtful transaction; and (iii) providing
ad hoc training to the Group employees to ensure
they are familiar with the Policy. The Company has
engaged CT Partners, an independent internal
control consultant, to evaluate the effectiveness and
review the implementation and enforcement of the
Policy.
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The Board has the overall responsibility to maintain the
adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and
experience, training programs and budget of accounting
and financial reporting functions. After having conducted a
review of the effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control systems, the Board has reached the
conclusion that the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems were in place, effective and adequate.
The Board will review and assess the risk management
and internal control systems at least once a year.

The Company has established a whistle-blowing policy
and system for employees of the Group to raise concerns
about possible improprieties in financial reporting, internal
control and other matters. No significant areas of concern
that may affect the financial, operational, compliance,
controls and risk management of the Group have been
identified.

With respect to the monitoring and disclosure of inside
information, the Company has adopted a policy on
disclosure of inside information, with an aim to ensure
that the insiders abide by the confidentiality requirement
and fulfill the disclosure obligation of inside information.
The policy describes clearly the decision trees to identify
inside information and take necessary actions. Employees
and other relevant parties are required to keep inside
information in strict confidence. The Group is committed
to ensure that information contained in announcements
are not false or misleading, or false or misleading through
omission of a material fact in view of presenting
information in a clear and balanced way, which requires
equal disclosure of both positive and negative facts.

COMMUNICATIONS WITH
SHAREHOLDERS AND INVESTORS

The Company aims to provide its shareholders and
investors with high standards of disclosure and financial
transparency. The Board is committed to providing clear
and detailed information of the Group to its shareholders
in a timely manner and on a regular basis, through the
publication of quarterly, interim and annual reports and/or
dispatching circulars, notices, and other announcements.
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The general meetings of the Company provide a forum for
communication between the Board and the Company’s
shareholders. The Chairman of the Board and other
members of the respective committees are available to
answer questions from the shareholders at the general
meeting. The Company recognises the importance of
maintaining on-going communications with the
shareholders and encourages them to attend general
meetings to stay informed of the Group’s businesses and
convey any concerns they may have to the Directors and
senior management.

The Company maintains a website at
http://www.perfect-optronics.com where extensive
information and updates on the Company’s financial
information, corporate governance practices and other
useful information are posted and available for access by
the public investors.

2020 General meeting

At the annual general meeting held on 7 May 2020,
separate resolutions were proposed by the chairman in
respect of each separate issue, including the re-election
of directors and voted by way of poll. The Company
announced the results of the poll in the manner
prescribed under the GEM Listing Rules. The then
chairman of each of the Board, audit committee,
remuneration committee and nomination committee
attended the annual general meeting held in 2020 to
ensure effective communication with shareholders of the
Company. Except for Mr. Chang Huan Chia and Ms. Hsu
Wai Man Helen who were appointed after the annual
general meeting for 2020, all Directors attended the
annual general meeting held in 2020.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for shareholders to convene an
extraordinary general meeting and to put forward
proposal at general meetings

Pursuant to Article 64 of the articles of association of the
Company, the Board may, whenever it thinks fit, convene
an extraordinary general meeting. Extraordinary general
meetings shall also be convened on the requisition of one
or more shareholders holding, at the date of deposit of
the requisition, not less than one-tenth of the paid up
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capital of the Company with voting rights in the general
meetings attached thereto. Such requisition shall be made
in writing to the Board or the company secretary of the
Company (the “Company Secretary”) for the purpose of
requiring an extraordinary general meeting to be called by
the Board for the transaction of any business specified in
such requisition. Such meeting shall be held within 2
months after the deposit of such requisition. If within 21
days of such deposit, the Board fails to proceed to
convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself
(themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all
reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a
result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to
the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Article 113 of the articles of association of the Company
provides that no person other than a retiring Director,
shall, unless recommended by the Board for election, be
eligible for election to the office of Director at any general
meeting, unless notice in writing of the intention to
propose that person for election as a Director and notice
in writing by that person of his willingness to be elected
shall have been lodged at the head office or at the
registered office. The period for lodgment of the notices
required under this Article will commence no earlier than
the day after the despatch of the notice of the general
meeting appointed for such election and end no later
than 7 days prior to the date of such general meeting
and the minimum length of the period during which such
notices to the Company may be given will be at least 7
days. The written notice must state that person’s
biographical details as required by Rule 17.50(2) of the
GEM Listing Rules. The procedures for shareholders of
the Company to propose a person for election as director
is posted on the Company’s website.

SHAREHOLDERS’ ENQUIRIES TO THE
BOARD

Shareholders may send their enquiries and concerns to
the Board by addressing them to the Company Secretary
by mail to the principal office of the Company in Hong
Kong. The Company Secretary forwards communications
relating to matters within the Board’s purview to the
Board and communications relating to ordinary business
matters, such as suggestions, inquiries and complaints, to
the executive Directors.
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Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at
the general meetings of the Company.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary, Mr. Tse Ka Wing (“Mr. Tse”), is
an employee of the Company. He was appointed as an
executive Director with effect from 26 March 2015. He
reports to the acting Chairman and is responsible for
advising the Board on corporate governance matters. The
biographical details of Mr. Tse are set out under the
section headed “Biographical Details of Directors and
Senior Management”.

During the Year, Mr. Tse has undertaken not less than 15
hours of relevant professional training in accordance with
Rule 5.15 of the GEM Listing Rules.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the Year, there was no change to the Company’s
constitutional documents.

DIVIDEND POLICY

Under the Companies Law of Cayman Islands and the
Memorandum and Articles of Association of the
Company, dividends may be paid out of the profits of the
Company, or subject to solvency of the Company, out of
sums standing to the credit of the share premium account
of the Company. However, no dividend shall exceed the
amount recommended by Directors.

Declaration and recommendation of payment of dividends
of the Company is subject to the approval of the
Directors, depending on results of operations, working
capital, financial position, future prospects, and capital
requirements, as well as any other factors which the
Directors may consider relevant from time to time. Any
future declaration, recommendation and payment of
dividends of the Company may or may not reflect the
historical declarations and payments of dividends and will
be at the absolute discretion of the Directors. The
Company does not have any predetermined dividend
payout ratio.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
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ABOUT THE REPORT

Sustainable development has received increasing attention
from our stakeholders. The Group reaffirms its
commitment to measure, manage and report its
performance on environmental and social aspects in order
to bear its share of social responsibility in progressing
towards sustainable development. This is the Group’s fifth
Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG”) report,
addressing all relevant material issues and fairly presenting
ESG performance of the Group and its environmental
impacts.

The report aims to be plain, clear and easy-to-read. The
board of directors of the Company (the “Board”)
acknowledges its responsibility to ensure the integrity of
the ESG report and confirms that it has reviewed and
approved the report.

Reporting Guide

This ESG report is prepared in compliance with the ESG
Reporting Guide set out in Appendix 20 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
The reporting principles of Materiality, Quantitative,
Balance, and Consistency underpinned the preparation of
this ESG report. Data in this report are checked and
analysed to account for year-on-year changes and are
presented in a way that allows for meaningful
comparison.

Reporting Boundary and Period

This report covers all operations of the Group and
describes its initiatives and progress in respect of ESG
aspects for the year from 1 January 2020 to
31 December 2020. Additional information pertaining to
our sustainability performance, including comprehensive
financial information and data, can be found in this annual
report.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

ESG MANAGEMENT APPROACH

The Group is principally engaged in trading, development
and sale of display and optics products and related
electronic components. The Group also processes some
of the products which it sells.

The Group has a well-established governance structure
and internal policy and continues to effectively manage its
ESG performance. The Group’'s ESG working group
consisting of senior management is the core unit for ESG
management. Through regular reporting, the Board is kept
fully informed of the Group’s ESG-related actions and
programmes.

Striving to be a responsible corporate citizen, the Group
has incorporated environmental and social considerations
into its operations and strategic decision-making process.
Our operations are governed by the ESG policy, covering
operations, the environment and people related issues. In
addition, the Group has been disclosing its ESG

performance to the public through the annual ESG report
since we published our first ESG report for the year
ended 31 December 2016. This report also enables us to
regularly review our actions and strive to increase positive
impacts on our

impacts and
stakeholders.

reduce the negative

The ESG Policy
RE gk
BEIRER

BE HERERRSE

RE HEREREENE

AEBFEREBERIABERMBABE 7
HTHES RAEREE - AEENRETHE
MEMREITMTI -

AEERETENEARBMABEE - F8
BRBWERERR HEREARR -AKH
MRFE HehkEATHENMBEREREER
KRR HEREREENRLEM-E
FEEBENRE  ROBEBASEERE
HERERMBBNTEME -
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FiteEEREMALEERKERAKAE -
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FENE—MEREE HERERRER &EF
ERE HEeRERBREMNARBEEREERE
HERERRE ZREBERMENTHE
BEMOTE AN FHENERY
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Environment:
B85

e Conserve resources

REER

¢ Raise employee’s environmental awareness
REERRREH

* Promote green office
RIEGEMAE

¢ Implement green procurement

TR ERE
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RE -HERERHRSE

Stakeholder Engagement BHESH

The Group’s success hinges on its relationships with key ANEBMKIIAEBREETEHHENEER - &K
stakeholder groups. We have nurtured close ties with our  fiA % TEtKEI’J/%L%%L IR EREY TEYH
stakeholders through diversified communication channels B2 - LLEZ FIEK LB EGMIEAEELNS

to extensively and thoroughly understand their priorities
and concerns.

The Group has an extensive network of stakeholders,
including shareholders and investors, employees,
customers, suppliers and sub-contractors, government
and community. The followings are the stakeholder
communication channels and topics of their concern.

Stakeholders Concerned Issues
] BxE1E
Shareholders and o Corporate governance e
Investors TEER
BRRAMNKREE e Risk management
}—L A kk [ ]
° Operatrons and
strategy
& MR
Employees e Welfare and benefits o
=] &R &A=
e Training and °
development
Bl R E R .
e Occupational health
and safety
BERERZR
Customers e Product responsibility e
®F EmEE
e Data privacy
HEILE
Suppliers and e Product and service e
Sub-contractors quality
HERNSEH EmEkBRBEE
e Business ethics
BEER
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Engagement Channels
BBERE

Annual general
meeting
BRRBFRE
Corporate reporting
PERE

Reporting channels
WMERB

Meetings

& 2%

==

Trainings

=

Grievance channels

FHEFRE

Regular meetings
IEHH = %

Corresponding Chapters

16 B8 & &

Annual Report

F

Our People
KMWET

Operating Practices
z«< .L ;E

Operating Practices
lg«( AL e %E
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Stakeholders Concerned Issues
] BEEEE
The Government e Taxation compliance e
B M a R
e Regulatory
compliance °
EEEM
e Business ethics
BESER
Community e Community .
T E investment
KA

OPERATING PRACTICES

Supply Chain Management

The Coronavirus Disease 2019 (the “COVID-19”) pandemic
has exposed the fragility of global supply chains, posing
operational risks to industries. To ensure reliable supply of
high-quality products, the Group has maintained stable
and long-term relationships with its suppliers as well as
processing service providers. Our product quality is
guaranteed as we continuously engage with our
sub-contractors for processing display components upon
procurement.

Suppliers and processing service providers are selected in
accordance with our standards and are evaluated
regularly. The criteria include price quote, quality, service
and reputation. Integrity management of supplier
candidates in social and environmental aspects is also
taken into consideration.

Engagement Channels

government policies

BE HERERRSE

Corresponding Chapters
HEAE

Compliance with laws Operating Practices;
and regulations

Environmental

B AERER Management
Responses to REER

RIEER

2 BT BUR
Donations Our People
=R ZMHET

REER
g m

2019 M m EHw ([2019B R m S w1 RIS B E
ERHEBRBORSBEERE HETXEIBRE
LR RERELIERAASEHE  AEH
HEEEE LN TRSHEEARTRUARENH
F-HMERBRTATHMHE THESE
AR RUBREREE -

BPRBEESEEEZHERD &N T RS HE
B W E TR c RAIBRRE EE R
BHMEE TEREERERHELENERES
EHHIEERE -
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RE HERERRS

SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT

HEEERE
Suppliers » Make supplier agreements based on our requirements on product quality
ﬁj\:@ﬁ and delivery inspection
HIER 735 A E mIRE R BRI E RERE
e Receive product samples and specifications for inspection
AR AR AR A AR AR
* Request product replenishment or exchange for any quality problems
MEMEEMBERFENRE
Processing e Sign process contracts to achieve high yield rates for our products
. . that meet our standards
Service Providers o - o . ;
0T R A& 2t FE 7S BFUMIEARREMRFSERE - WHEHMVTE
- e Evaluate performance of our processing service providers on
a regular basis
TEHRE I TR H R AR
Customers e Receive feedback from customers through our grievance resolution
= mechanism

RIS TP RE

e Preserve security and confidentiality of customer privacy

REFEPRLENZ 2N R

e Protect customer information against improper disclosure, misuse or
unauthorised use, loss, damage or corruption
REXPEL  UBHRTEERE  BARER - 8K - BExEs

The Group encourages its suppliers and processing
service providers to share management approaches on
product responsibility, human rights and environmental
protection. Our major suppliers look forward to achieving
long-term development goals regarding social
responsibilities of their business operations.

Customer privacy is upheld by adhering to all applicable
laws and regulations’ and we clearly communicate the
confidentiality agreement to our employees. During the
year, the Group complied with all relevant laws and
regulations relating to health and safety, advertising,
labelling and privacy matters concerning products and
services provided.

" List of applicable laws and regulations available in “Laws and Regulations”

VEREBRROERINKRERDERIOER]
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Customer Satisfaction

The Group strives to maintain customer satisfaction
through frequent communication. We aim to enhance
product quality and customer services by providing
technical support and resources promptly to meet their
needs.

We have been engaging with our customers regarding
their requirements on product quality. Under our grievance
resolution mechanism, customers can provide their valued
feedback in case of any product quality related issues.
Responsible personnel record the matter of concern for
further follow-up actions, listing the name, application and
quantity of relevant products.

BE HERERRSE

EFRRE

AEEEEFHETBR BOARBEFPHNME
B-HZPEERERMXENERAGEEP
MEL BERAERLEENTP R -

BMAEFPHEMEENER — EEEFR
FME FEFP A ZHRFERES  SLEAEmR
EEHARERERREENREER -AEAR
SREMERER UWRR—SRETE 8
RINLHEEERNERE RELBRE-

ACHIEVING CUSTOMER SATISFACTION
EHEFREE

e Established a grievance channel to receive feedback

Customers BusFEE  WERME
%:)5 e Provide the best service on technical support
IRAERIM SR 5 E A AR RS
e Make prompt response to customers’ requests
MEREERFHEK
Our Teams e Our sales and marketing team provides responsive customer services
B SHE & SEE R R B B P RS

e Qur technical team offers professional technical support based on

their experiences

BB BRAR R SRR B R MARTS

* Investigate and analyse relevant issues

HERAMEEERE

e Act appropriately such as product replenishment

HHESEERVEETH

To enhance our product diversity, the Group continuously
introduces new products, ranging from display products
to disinfectant products. Quality assurance and control
procedures are implemented for adhering to product
standards and certifications.

This year, the Group has introduced a personal hygiene
and disinfectant product branded “K-clean” in light of the
epidemic situation. To assure product quality and safety,
a range of professional certifications such as chemical
and disinfection effectiveness testing has been obtained.

BEAZITTCNERBR - NS BB
Em RETERIESER AKEE®RE
ERBVMESRF - BIEETEMTEMAE

SF ARBRERE - 5| AT Kclean | f@ k&
MEABENESER RREEREENR
2 ERBTHEELNEEHRAAFT -RINEF

s 2o a7¢
ERE o
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RE -HERERARS

Anti-corruption RES

Integrity and honesty are the values that underpin the FEMHAERBETRMBCLENEEE -H
stability of our operations. We strictly prohibit any form of IR Z LT RERNEISTE  BREERR
corruption including but not limited to bribery, fraud, REHBEEMEEOERETRP OB KN
blackmail and money laundering in business dealings with FF - #RMEBE - AERBEMORESHF N
our suppliers and partners. To ensure our anti-corruption R ATTEEE - UERFE P2 B THEEZM
approach aligns with industry standards and that we are JE# @ HMEA T RRFEERHE  BUAR
fully compliant with relevant laws and regulations, we have Gt MZE/{H A H It R BESMIMTE
adopted the Anti-Fraud Management System. It serves to 174 °

prevent all kinds of corruption and any misconduct in a

systematic and standardised manner.

Fighting against corruption requires a concerted effort. B E5FZAFAZ N -ERRERENEE
Spearheaded by the top management, the implementaton T RKESTIERARARZHBABRERLFFSE
of anti-corruption work is carried out by various IEHIEEIT -

departments of the Company in accordance with the

Anti-Fraud Management System.

Anti-Fraud Governance Structure

REEBRERARE

Audit Committee

BREES

e To guide anti-fraud work
EERERTE

Anti-Fraud Department
R ERFEERPS

e To organise and implement anti-fraud
work across departments
FEEMPIABEEITRERTIE

Management
EEE

e To establish, improve and effectively implement
anti-fraud programmes and controls including fraud risk
assessment and fraud prevention
R MEREBUEE RSB ST - RIS

Business Units

B T R TR AT S
e To conduct self-assessment %i%ﬁ{ﬁ
HEITEERE

e To undertake anti-fraud work in
corresponding departments

MAREPINETT RS T
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Code of Conducts

To provide clear guidance to employees in respect of
anti-corruption measures, a comprehensive code of
conduct is stipulated in our Employee Conduct Guideline.
The following table outlines some of the key behaviours
prohibited that are viewed as corruptive and that should
be avoided at all times.

Conflict of interest %5 & 28

BE HERERRSE

)

FEA

RTEREBESERITARE TIREAENE
 ZAEKEIRTEADTRET —E2E
MRS TRPAT —LWRSEITHE
ERITTR EEARESERESR -

e Failure to declare any conflict of interest to the Group for approval

2 A7 S B R IR AT A 55 B 2R A RIS HE U

e  Staffs or their family members engage in business relationships that are competitive to the Group

BETIRXEREXNBREAAEREEHRFOERBE

Accepting or offering advantages #Z# = 12 £ 17 &

e Accepting gifts of large economic value, in the form of services or discounts
BEXURBIITNEARENEAFRAKLBEEENRE M

e Deliberately accepting gifts that put the Group in an embarrassing situation

BEEXEY EAKERAEDRR

e Failure to report the acceptance of a gift to supervisors for approval

ARABMR LA BEHARGIEZ RS

Unfair competition A F 55 %

e Damage the goodwill of our competitors through fabricating and disseminating false information

REMEREREES BEBRFHTFOHRE

e Infringe competitors’ trade or commercial secrets with illegal means

MIEEFBRRILBFHTFNES B EWE

Whistle-blowing

To facilitate efficient reporting of suspicious or known
cases of misconduct, we have set up a whistle-blowing
channel that includes a hotline and a mailbox.
Complainants can choose to file the case to the
designated department anonymously. The Group also
promises to conduct thorough and fair investigation of all
cases and keep relevant investigation information
confidential so as to protect the reporting parties.

#Hig

RABARSRBRARINEHANTETRE
BOBRMRLTRERRE BHEAREFN
Mo mFARNNERERETHIIE SRS R E
R-AKBETAFHMARRETHEMAL
MBEE HEAZENSRRERIE  URE
BRA -
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BE HERERRSE

Investigation

Employees who are found to have violated the code of
conduct are subject to disciplinary actions including
termination of employment without the provision of any
economic compensation. Serious cases could even be
referred to law enforcement authorities. Moreover, any
claim that the misconduct was a result of order or
instruction from supervisors or top management is not
accepted as justification.

Anti-corruption training

In 2020, the Group provided trainings based on the Hong
Kong Independent Commission Against Corruption online
materials. The principal aim is to help raise the
employees’ awareness against corruption.

During the year, we were not aware of any breach of
laws and regulations? that had a significant impact on the
Group relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money
laundering.

OUR PEOPLE

The Group is fully committed to implementing the best
practices of good labour relations and creating a
collaborative work environment. Externally, we are
dedicated to giving back to the community and helping
the underprivileged through continuous community
involvement.

Employee Composition

As of 31 December 2020, there were a total of 66
employees, of which 29 were based in mainland China,
32 in Hong Kong and the remaining 5 in Taiwan. Male
employees comprise 64% while female employees
comprise 36%. Most employees were aged 31-50 years,
accounting for approximately 60%.

2 List of applicable laws and regulations available in “Laws and Regulations”

2 ERRBRFOERINRERDERFOER]
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BE HERERRSE

Geographical Distribution Gender Profile Age Profile
&5 MBI L FRAER
8% 23%
‘A)
48%  ge
44% 64%
] Hong Kong
;
] Male M Female B <31 W 31-50 >50
[ | &g?ﬂ? China Bt i
Taiwan
al

As an equal opportunity employer, the Group strives to
create a diverse and inclusive working environment for all
employees, advocating equal opportunities in all aspects
of the employment systems regardless of age, gender,
family status, sexual orientation, ethnicity, creed, and
religion or any other characteristics. Fundamental to our
inclusion efforts is zero-tolerance to any form of
harassment and discrimination and therefore we have
developed a code of conduct that reinforces employees’
awareness in this regard. Any employee who becomes
aware of any existing or potential breach of the code is
encouraged to report promptly to the designated
department through the stipulated reporting channels.

The Group has a well-established Personnel Management
System which clearly sets out policies concerning
recruitment, promotion, compensation, working hours, rest
periods, dismissal, benefits, and welfare measures, strictly
complying with the prevailing laws and regulations. While
the Group does not have operations in locations where
child labour risk is relatively high, we proactively
collaborate with our suppliers and processing services
providers to prohibit the employment of any child labour
or forced labour in their production facilities. During the
year, the Group was not aware of any instance of
non-compliance with laws and regulations® having a
significant impact on the Group relating to employment
and labour practices. Nor did the Group identify any
incidents relating to the use of child or forced labour.

3 List of applicable laws and regulations available in “Laws and Regulations”
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BE HERERRSE

In aspects related to talent retention and recruitment, as
well as recognising employees’ contributions, competitive
remuneration packages and welfare benefits are provided,
including statutory benefits, caring benefits and incentive
benefits. To ensure our remuneration packages meet or
exceed the prevailing market standards, they are reviewed
once a year for any updates.

RBEMBEEAT  TREAZEINER - &
MREASEFNOFMEFENEN  BREAE
A BEEANMEEEN o AEAR RPN
MEBEINBRBTHNTHEE 8F198
HHETER UEEDEHH-

e Social insurance e Medical benefits e Year-end bonus
ftERE BEEN FRES

e Provident funds e |eave benefits e Share option scheme
NIE® N EEER BB IRt 2

e Housing reserve funds e Team building activities
FEE#EHSE B X F1E B

e Maternity leave
ER

e Statutory holidays
% E R EA

Training and Development

The Group has actively built the human capital needed to
fuel business growth, placing strong emphasis upon
providing training and promotion opportunities to all
employees. Internal training programmes are arranged for
employees to master the knowledge and skills required for
their respective positions, aiming to enhance their
technical understanding of products and sales
performance, and keeping them abreast of the latest
industry trends. The well-established promotion
mechanism and career development path encourage our
talented employees to grow with the Group.
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Occupational Health and Safety

As our operations are office-based, there are no activities
that entail a high risk of occupational hazards.
Nevertheless, the Group is dedicated to providing a
healthy and safe working environment for all employees,
and safety measures are implemented in accordance with
the ESG policy.

R -HERERES

BERREEZZ

EEEA?HF?%@LA#)#“*F%I BYRBERESE
SRSNEMES -BEWL  AEEDH

7}7%%‘&‘%1%,%%%1 BEZXEMNTHERE LD

REBERE HEREARRETZE2HER

Prohibit smoking and drinking in office and warehouse
ZIERPE R E KRB E A RE KRR

Provide training and assistance when needed

I B SR 15 )| N 9 B

Keep the workplace clean and clear

REFLIEGELFER

Implement safety emergency plan

BETXEREETE

Safety Measures

LEREE

In response to outbreak of the COVID-19, the Group has
implemented a number of precautionary hygiene measures
to prevent the transmission of infectious diseases and
create a safe working environment for its employees. All
staff members and visitors are subjected to temperature
check before entering the office area, and wearing a face
mask is required for all. Nevertheless, sterilization facilities
are installed to maintain a disinfected workplace.

During the vyear, the Group was not aware of any
incidents of non-compliance with relevant laws and
regulations* that have a significant impact on the Group,
relating to providing a safe working environment and
protecting employees from occupational hazards.

4 List of applicable laws and regulations available in “Laws and Regulations”

¢ ERRBRFOERINRERDERFOER]
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==

BE HERERRS

Community Involvement

We are dedicated to contributing to our neighbourhood
through making charitable donations. Since 2017, the
Group has been sponsoring Heep Hong Society, an
organisation established to support children and youth
with special educational needs.

In 2020, the Group donated HK$50,000 and our new
disinfectant product “K-clean” to Heep Hong Society as a
means to help the people in need get through the
pandemic. Looking ahead, we would continue to engage
the diverse community and people in need.

ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT

In the face of global environmental issues such as climate
change and rapid depletion of natural resources, we
follow the fundamental principles of environmental
compliance and place value on conservation of natural
resources by adhering to the Company’s environmental
management policies, including but not limited to the ESG
policy.

The characteristics of our business are such that the
impacts of the Group’s activities on environment and
natural resources are insignificant. The Group does not
consume large quantities of packaging materials. The
generation of carbon emission is indirect, mainly from
electricity consumption in office premises and
warehouses. During the year, the Group was not aware of
any incidents of non-compliance with laws and
regulations® that have a significant impact on the Group,
relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges
into water and land, and generation of hazardous and
non-hazardous waste.

5 List of applicable laws and regulations available in “Laws and Regulations”

S ERRBRIOERINREN DERFOER]
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Resources Consumption

Electricity and gasoline are the main types of energy
resources consumed by the Group. In 2020, the Group’s
office premises consumed 156,114 kWh electricity, and its
vehicles consumed 18,404 litres of gasoline, with a total
energy consumption of 1,148,571 MJ and the intensity
was 333 MJ per m?. The energy consumption increased
by 13% compared to the preceding year.

BE HERERRSE

BRH®

BOARAHBAEEERNEZZERER - R
—ECEF AEENPHRAEYEIEFE156,114
TFREE ) KIET 58 H 718,404 /5 )8 -
RN E A1 148 5T KEERBE AE T
KB EF -RERBEER E—F LAY
13% o

Energy Consumption and Intensity
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Water is another resource that we use. In 2020, the
Group’s total water consumption was 562 tonnes, with
water intensity of 0.37 tonnes per m2. There was no issue
in sourcing water that is fit for the purpose.

Water Consumption
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BE HERERRSE

Air Emissions and Waste Management

We mitigate our impact on climate change by monitoring
greenhouse gas (“GHG”) emissions. In 2020, the total
GHG emissions amounted to approximately 159 tonnes of
carbon dioxide equivalent (“tCO,e”), of which 49 tCO.e
were direct emissions (Scope 1), attributed to gasoline
consumed by our private vehicles. The remaining 110
tCO,e of indirect carbon emissions (Scope 2) were due to
purchased electricity. The emission intensity was 0.05
tCO,e per m?.

BREBRERYERE

BRMERAERENER  REHREZ(LH
FE R_ZE_ZTF BEREHRBELEY
1508 —E b E 2 HP40E — Gt EE R
EEFREER ) BEREMOLREEEN
Y e 2 TN110ME — | bk B 2 AR E (&
B=) BRIBEEN -HEMEBEEASFESXK
0.05ME — & tixE & -

GHG Emission and Intensity
BERBIEREREE
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18 150 0.04
— il
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8 § 120
=
Sl 90
3%
g
AT g 60
1=
30
0 2019
—F-hEF
I Scope 1 I Scope 2

HE— ol =

* The 2019 data is revised due to updated emission factors.

The Group’s private vehicle gasoline consumption
generates approximately 0.3 kg sulphur oxides (“SOx”),
10.83 kg nitrogen oxides (“NOx”) and 0.8 kg particulate
matters (“PM”).
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BE HERERRSE

Air Emission
BEREENE
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As an office-based business, we mainly generate office
waste, which is handled by the management of the office
building. Our operations do not generate other
non-hazardous waste or hazardous waste.

Implementing Green Office

Let's \ll:l

bk 5% 23 [

1“22 FIBX

The Group promotes energy- and resources-saving and
conservation practices. To raise employee awareness
about sustainability, the Group has been participating in
“Let’'s GO”, which is a green office certification scheme
designed by a third-party organisation, since 2017
intending to incorporate environmental habits into the
Group’s daily operations and cultivate a low-carbon office
mindset.

Based on specific assessment criteria, “Let’s GO” guides
the Group’s efforts to promote green offices and require
employees to commit to contributing to a greener
workplace.

AEBUHAELELAT  TBEAHANETN
B HABTFTENEREREERE KMOEBTE
FEMNEEBREYREEEED -

BERGERAE

AEEREHEMONRRER RIESEER
ARAHERRNESR AEEB _T—tF
R2EGHEZR] —EAHE=TERBRFN
BRERAERETEEERRARBERALRNE
BHERLETFRBRERBAZTES -

REBEENFERE [RAZHIBEIAEE
REKENAE BRETAERZEBHR AR
BEHER -
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RE HERERRS

The Group aims to promote environmentally friendly
practices and facilitate behavioural change and
environmental footprint reduction within the office space.
In 2020, the Group adopted and promoted resource
conservation and energy-saving initiatives in its office
premises, which include:

Energy
BEIR

e Switch off equipment when not in use
RARAN FE(E AR AR

e Use switch-sockets to avoid redundant
energy use
{5 FAESIAIRTE LA R R B BB IR

e Purchase office eugipment with high
grades of energy efficiency labels
BEERURZEAS SO ARE

e Clean air conditioners periodically

Waste Electrical and Electronic Equipment

BERERREIRE

* Purchase multi-function devices, such as
printing, scanning, fax, photocopy
BEZINELERME - PINITED - =4
BE - #EEH

Water
VI

e Periodically check taps to ensure there is
no leakage

E MRS - MIRRAIRK

Perfect Opftronics Limited Annual Report 2020

AEBARRERFREER  ERQBERREE
IREE  BOHRENFE R_T_FF
AEBERAABEDRRAMEREERRE M
ENREE I HP B

Paper

IR

e Use electronic supporting medium to
reduce printing
FRAEFIA - RDFIE

® Assign designated area for paper recycling
TETE P R RE AR B = 15

e Collection tray for waste copy paper used
on one side so it is available for printing on
the other side
FEFTENHEE 3R B MR - W= I El—TE By
i

Plastic

2

® Provide sufficient reusable tableware to
avoid disposable utensils
RER AW A BRERNA
BRER—REERERE

Miscellaneous

Mm

e Design publications with fewer varnishes
and coatings
CEEEL R SRR

e Utilise web-conferencing to minimise
business trips
EAMFEE  BOBEBIRT

e Reuse stationeries
BAXA
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Maintaining Green Supply Chain

Our suppliers’ environmental performance is closely linked
to our own sustainability performance, and we actively
work with them to promote sustainability. We follow the
Group’s environmental policy which includes green
procurement commitment, safeguarding selection of
suppliers who share our sense of responsibility towards
the environment.

Our major suppliers have obtained certifications under ISO
14001 Environmental Management System and SO
50001 Energy Management System. Environmental
protection concept is embedded in the stage of product
design, and through technological renovation, energy
efficiency of products is constantly improved and GHG
emissions at the stage of use are reduced.

The use of environmentally responsible processing service
providers has been a longstanding practice at the Group.
To ensure compliance, we monitor environmental
performance through close communication and internal
control measures to assure that the service providers are
registered and licensed with the relevant environmental
protection authorities under the PRC laws and
regulations®. In addition, regular site visits are conducted
to further guarantee compliance with environmental
standards.

6 List of applicable laws and regulations available in “Laws and Regulations”

o WARBRIOERINRENDERFOER]

BE HERERRSE

EEeettrE

B EEHANRARRRARME ZOAFE
HRAATYMERE RPABRGEKES FELE
ERRHEER AMEBRAKSENRFRER
BREAEBREBAR BEEZERM-KYHER
BEEERHMER -

MM EBHERC ESISO14001REE I
Z KISO500018E R E R X RFE - BRESL
EREAEREE®RA  TERBRMTAIF T
REERMNEESE  REREERERANE
EREHR -

4 45 80 2 SRS PR 4 0 8 460 10 T AR 52
B ARRAR  RIFBBEDERN N B
I 5 BB SRR R T DA B T 4P 9 2 AR
I o B R A AR SRR 2P R 4B
S WS RMEEMETERRE
—SREFABRREE
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RE-HE8RERRSE

LAWS AND REGULATIONS ERERER

The Group has established and implemented internal ARNEBE R REME BT HEAIFIE -
policies in all departments to ensure adequate response to R¥TZERE HERERTE  HUIEHRER
each ESG aspect and compliance with all applicable laws Bl fE RE TR A@AERE NER - TR Y@
and regulations. The list of applicable laws and FERENER :

regulations is as follows:

Aspect Applicable Laws and Regulations Section/Remarks
balii} BREERER B
Product Responsibility e The Trade Descriptions Ordinance OPERATING
ERER (7 e} BRI PRACTICES

o The Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance mEER

Anti-corruption
RES

Employment

Occupational Health and Safety

(AAER(FLR) o)
Product Quality Law of the PRC
(PEARERNBERLEESE)

Prevention of Bribery Ordinance

By 1L B BR 15 1)

The Competition Ordinance
(HEFEH)

Anti-Unfair Competition Law of the PRC
(PEARENBRTEEHRFE)
The Anti-Corruption Act of Taiwan
BEN(E R FIEAD

Employment Ordinance

(BEHH)

Minimum Wage Ordinance

(HETE KO

Labour Law of the PRC
(PEARLNBLEZE)

Labour Contract Law of the PRC
(FEARENALEHERE)
Provisions on the Prohibition of Using Child Labour of the PRC
(FEARANERZ I ERAETIRE)
The Labor Standards Act of Taiwan
BER(SBHEEZE)

The Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance

Anti-corruption
RES

OUR PEOPLE
BRfMET

Occupational Health

BERERZZ (BEZ2REREH) and Safety
o Employees’ Compensation Ordinance BERERZ2
(EERERH)
e Law of the PRC on the Prevention and Control of Occupational Diseases
(REARAREBERNGE)
e The Occupational Safety and Health Act of Taiwan
AEN(BER2EHER)
Environmental Management e Air Pollution Control Ordinance ENVIRONMENTAL
REEE (ERFREEH) MANAGEMENT
Water Pollution Control Ordinance BEER

OB 2 E HHEGI)
Ozone Layer Protection Ordinance

Maintaining Green

(RERAE KB Supply Chain
*  Atmospheric Pollution Prevention and Control Law of the PRC HEHBEHER

Perfect Opftronics Limited

(PEARLRMB ARG LR EE)

Water Pollution Prevention and Control Law of the PRC
(P ARERBIE 2B8 %)

The Environmental Protection Law of the PRC

(PZEARAANERZREE)

Annual Report 2020



Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RE HERERRS

PERFORMANCE DATA SUMMARY

HERABE

2020
“E-2F
Total Headcount 8 T# % 66
By Geographical Distribution % i1 [& £ 7
Hong Kong & /& 32
Mainland China # B A i 29
g Taiwan A & 5
SH By Age ZF & 25
=< I <31 11
2 31-50 40
>50 15
By Gender &1 5l &l 5
Male 514 42
Female %1% 24
>
.‘;;:‘
g Donation (HK$) 5% (B L) 50,000
e
8
Total Resources Consumption (MJ) EREZAE (KEE) 1,148,571
Electricity (kWh) & F (T FLB) 156,114
Gasoline (itres) 78 (A7) 18,404
Tap water (tonnes) B PK7J< (W) 562
Energy intensity (MJ/m?) 888 % E GKEE /F A XK) 333
= Water intensity (tonnes/m?) 7K % & (I, F 75 K) 0.37
2 Emissions B &
gﬂﬁ Sulphur oxides (kg) &4 (A f) 0.3
" Nitrogen oxides (kg) ﬂ’%ﬂt% (AFT) 10.3
G Particulate matters (kg) B2 HA (A ) 0.8
Greenhouse Gases Emissions and Inten3|ty* BRERBEHERZE"
Total GHG emissions (tCO,e) )R ZEREH MAE (B AL EE) 159
Scope 1 (tCO,e) B E — (M — A (i E ) 49
Scope 2 (tCO o) HE_(B_EtiKE=S) 110
Emission |nten3|ty (tCOe/m) HNEHRE (M_alLiRE g/ THK) 0.05

*  Notes:
(1) Calculation standards and methodologies for carbon emissions:
Carbon emissions are calculated using “Greenhouse Gas Protocol”
published by the World Resources Institute and World Business

Council on Sustainable Development

The sources of published emission factors for the reporting of
carbon emissions are:

(a) 2019 Sustainability Report of CLP

(b) “Energy Statistics Handbook 2019” published by Bureau of
Energy, Ministry of Economic Affairs in Taiwan

(c) “2019 China Regional Grid Baseline Emission Factor for
Emission Reduction Project” published by the Ministry of
Ecology and Environment of the People’s Republic of China

(K2019F EIRHFIE B & B & i B L E R HEME 7))

(2) The 2019 data are revised due to updated emission factors.

*

B & -

(1) BRBERRE St ERER T A

tﬂﬁﬁﬂ%ﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁm%ﬂd"?’éﬁi,\ & R

(RERBEERESR)

2019
—E-NE

74

100,000

1,016,529
140,968
15,972
577

294

0.38

145

103
0.04

BN RERBEMMETIEERAFHRRAT

(a) FE2019F A F BRI S

(b) BB R BT 2 (2019F LR Mt F

i

() AREE AR AR RN B A BB IR 3R A0 H 8% 2 (2019 [E

HPERE P ER S EAEERERETF)

@ ZE-NFEREERAEHOHEREFMIE -
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RiE

HERERRS

ESG CONTENT INDEX

A. Environmental
A BE

Aspect A1
BEAT: Ry

General Disclosure

—-REE

ESGR & R ol

Stock Exchange ESG Reporting Guide Requirements

BRABRS HERE

: Emissions

Information on:

ABEEEIIER

BFHEERRBRZERBHR MARIMNET AERESEENNELEN:
a) the policies; and
28
b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer

BTHBTABEAZENEREERANNER -
relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water and land, and generation of
hazardous and non-hazardous waste.

KPI'A1.1

R E IR EALA
KPI A1.2

BRANETA2
KPI A1.3

BREMIEEALS
KPI A1.4
BREMIEEAL4

KPI'A1.5

BHRENREALS

KPI A1.6

BREMERALS

Aspect A2 : Use of Resources

EEA2: ERER

The types of emissions and respective emissions data.

PR REE KRB R

Greenhouse gas emissions in total (in tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity
(e.g. per unit of production volume, per facmty)

RERBLHNE CIEHE) R(MER) ZE (MABEEERN  BHEREAE) -
Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity (e.g.
per unit of production volume, per facility).
Ei%%ﬁ%ﬁ@m@%(uu@ﬁi@i)&(ﬂm@ﬁ) RE(MNESESBM  BERE
ars) e

Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity

(e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility).
Fié%ﬁ%@%%@%(Wﬁ%ﬂ@i)&(wi@ﬁ) RE(MNGESEN  §ERE

Description of measures to mitigate emissions and results achieved.

B EAMENBHERABAR -

Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are handled, reduction
initiatives and results achieved.

FRREEEREERENNTE REELENEEIAEKRR -

General Disclosure Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy, water and other raw materials.

—-REE

BRERER(BERR

KPI A2.1
BB ERIERA
KPI A2.2

BRANETA22
KPI A2.3

B B IURIZA2.3
KPI A2.4
BREMIEEA24
KPI A2.5

BREANERA2S

CKRE A R B BE -

Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.g. electricity, gas or oil) in
total (kWh |n OOOs) and \ntenswty (e.g. per unit of productlon volume, per facility).
RER (NS fI0h) BoMERR/AMEER
*F(ﬁwtf‘&éﬁ fi - tlﬁ Rzt %) o

Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per
facility).

BRKERFE(WABESEN  BERIBHE) -

Description of energy use efficiency initiatives and results achieved.

s RE B AE A ERR -
Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water that is fit for the
purpose, water efficiency initiatives and results achieved.

HikBBARKE LT EEAME  ARRABKRGETERAMBRE -
Total packaging materials used for finished products (in tonnes) and, if applicable,

with reference to per unit produced.
HRmAAEMHNEs UHAE) R(NWER)BEEENEE -

Perfect Opftronics Limited Annual Report 2020

Section/Remarks

B A

ENVIRONMENTAL
MANAGEMENT
RIEEE

Air Emissions and
Waste Management
ERERREENER
Air Emissions and
Waste Management
BERARLEENERE
Air Emissions and
Waste Management

BREREEENEE

Air Emissions and
Waste Management

BREREEENEE

Implementing Green
Office; Maintaining a
Green Supply Chain
Bl ERAE &5
RefEE
Air Emissions and
Waste Management;
Implementing Green
Office
Eﬁﬁﬁ&@%%ﬁ
NSRS

ENVIRONMENTAL
MANAGEMENT
RIEEE
Resources
Consumption

BRETETRRHE) RERER

Resources
Consumption
BRAR
Implementing Green
Office
ERBERAE
Resource Consumption;
Implementing Green
Oﬁ|ce

&k \/ﬁﬁ B4k o i
L\ E
ENVIRONMENTAL
MANAGEMENT
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BiE

Stock Exchange ESG Reporting Guide Requirements
BRFRE HERERRERIER

Aspect A3 : The Environment and Natural Resources

EEA3: BERAR

General Disclosure

—-REE

B. Social
B.#®

Bk

Policies on minimising the issuers’ significant |mpaot on the environment and natural resources.

BEBTAERERARERERERY BHRE

KPI A3.1 Description of significant impacts of activities on the environment and natural

resources and the actions taken to manage them.

BRANERAT HAXBEDERARAAERNEAZENCRBEEEHFENTD

Aspect B1: Employment

BEB1: ERE

General Disclosure

—-REE

Information on:

FEHFMEBE REREN THFSH BRY TSHE 2T

£ RERURAMEBRREHN

a) the policies; and
BE R

b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer
BTHRTABTEAZENEREERANNER -

relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal
opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination, and other benefits and welfare
KPI B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type, age group and geographical region.

BRANEEB  RUR - REEHN FRANIBEIINESLH -

Aspect B2: Health and Safety

EmB2: REER2

General Disclosure

—-REE

Information on:

EBRREZ2IHABRRERREEEREBERAEN:

a) the policies; and
BE R

b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer
BTHRTABTEAZENEREERANNER -

relating to providing a safe working environment and protecting employees from occupational hazards.

KPI B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety measures adopted, how they are

implemented and monitored.
MRERERBL3  HAMKANBEREETEHEE  UREERTRERR &

Aspect B3: Development and Training

EmB3: #EREH

HERERRS

Section/Remarks

BE

Implementing Green
Office; Maintaining a
Green Supply Chain
EiENAE  #5
e
Implementing Green
Office; Maintaining a
Green Supply Chain
BRRERAE @
BEfEE

OUR PEOPLE
HAMET

Employee Composition
BHRK

i

Occupational Health
and Safety
BERREYR

Occupational Health
and Safety
BEREEZZ

General Disclosure Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for discharging duties at work. Description of Training and

—-REE

training activities.

BRRABRRTIERENABREEMNEE - HABIED -

Aspect B4: Labour Standards

BEB4: & T

General Disclosure

—-REE

Information on:

EBMEETREHSETH:

a) the policies; and
& R
b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer

BTHRTABEARENMERAERROINER -

relating to preventing of child and forced labour.

Development
B ER

OUR PEOPLE
EMHET

BExxXEFRLF 2020 FiR
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RiE

HERERRS

Stock Exchange ESG Reporting Guide Requirements
BRARE HERERARERIER

Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management

[EmBs : fHEEEE

General Disclosure

—-REE

Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the supply chain

ERHEENRE R ERREBUR

KPI B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers and how they are
implemented and monitored.
MRERERB.2 HAEWERHERENED AABRTREER -

Aspect B6: Product Responsibility

EmEB6: EmER

General Disclosure

—-REE

Information on:

FHMRHERMBBOREEZSE BES BRRLBEEARBRTEN

a) the policies; and
BE: R
b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer

BTHBTABEAZENEREERANNER -
relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy matters relating to products and services
provided and methods of redress

KPI B6.4 Desonptlon of quality assurance process and product recall procedures.
MRENEEBL RHOEERTARRERBUWER -
KPI B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and privacy policies, how they are

implemented and monitored.

MRENEREBeS HWAKEEEANRERARHE UREBAIRERNE-

Aspect B7: Anti-corruption

BEB7: R&S

General Disclosure

—-REE

Information on:
BRVILER BR REREREMN:
a) the policies; and
BE R
b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer
BTHRTARTEAZENEREERANER -
relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.
KPI B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices brought against the
issuer or its employees during the reporting period and the outcomes of the
cases.
EERAAHETASEEEREVEBEMNE T HRARENEE RFDER
Description of preventive measures and whistleblowing procedures, how they are
mplemented and monitored.

BMpEyERer2  HAMSEERERER AREBRTRERSE-

% A AR 5B 1
KPI B7.2

Aspect B8: Community Investment

EmBS: HERE

General Disclosure
-REE

Policies on community engagement to understand the needs of the communities where the issuer
operates and to ensure its activities take into consideration the communities’ interests.

BHENHE2ERTREEMALERENRREALBEDCZRURASMOIE -

KPI B8.1 Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education, environmental concerns, labour
needs, health, culture, sport).

BpEeERBe  FIEREE(MHE REFE SIBL EFE X 8F)-

KPI B8.2 Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to the focus area.

BREREEB2 EIZISERMHAER(WEEIER)-
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Section/Remarks

BE

Supply Chain
Management;
Maintaining a Green
Supply Chain
HERER  #HHZE
R

Supply Chain
Management;
Maintaining a Green
Supply Chain
HERER  #HHRE
R

Customer Satisfaction

EPREE

Customer Satisfaction
EPREE

Supply Chain
Management

HERER

Anti-corruption
R&F

Anti-corruption
R&F
Anti-corruption

REB

Community Involvement
HE2E

Community Involvement
HE2E

Community Involvement
tEeE



Biographical Details of Directors and Senior I\/Ionogemen’r

EENEREEERAER

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Cheng Wai Tak, aged 51, was appointed as director
of the Company on 13 June 2013. Mr. Cheng is a
founder of the Group. He has been in the business of
trading TFT-LCD components for over 17 years and has
established close relationships with various suppliers. He
graduated from Hong Kong Baptist University with a
bachelor of science in combined sciences in mathematical
science degree. Pending the outcome of the legal
proceedings of the Petition, Mr. Cheng has been
suspended from his duties as an executive Director, the
chairman of the Board, the chief executive officer of the
Company and the director of Perfect Display Limited, a
major subsidiary of the Company, effective from
25 September 2020. He continues to serve the Company
as a consultant to bring in businesses and maintain the
relationship with business partners. He is also a
substantial shareholder of the Company. Save as
disclosed above, Mr. Cheng is also a director of certain of
the Group’s subsidiaries incorporated in Hong Kong, the
British Virgin Islands, Samoa and Taiwan.

Mr. Liu Ka Wing, aged 48, was appointed as an executive
Director on 18 June 2013. He joined the Group in
November 2008. Mr. Liu has about 26 years of
experience in accounting. Prior to joining the Group, he
worked in various certified public accountants firm and
corporations, responsible for general accounting functions.
He is responsible for the Group’s finance and
administrative functions. Pending the outcome of the legal
proceedings of the Petition, Mr. Liu has been suspended
from his duties as an executive Director effective from
25 September 2020 and he continues to serve the
Company as the financial controller. Mr. Liu is also a
director of certain subsidiaries of the Group.

HITES

EEELE  515% —=FA+=H
BEZEAREAR 7%% %%$E$%lﬂ

A ETFT-LCDE 4B ZE B R EBBITER
BOHZHHREREYTERBR BEER
BERERERE BERGFAREBEE TSN

FTEHEREZB - FEFNEIEEFRELEERZ
Bl B EEEEEEARITES EFCE

B ARNBTHRBEEARRETENB A FE
EBETEBERARESNEE B2 _ZFF AN
A+ HEHRBRER - HEEUERIHDAERA
AR S| #EXBREFEERZHENH
FBoBMARRAZEEZERE B EXEE
BN BEATRBAEBRETRESL RBE
THEE BEIRGEFMEICHBAR 2
ESE

BE&8EE 48 R_E—=F A+ /\H
j§§1£2%$ﬂfT§$°Tﬁﬁ/\\:gg)\qz+ A
AKREE - BEERGHEAR26F LR -
RMAREER  BRERZEREGAMER
FRtEIE BE—REABE-REER
SENVBERITHRBE FTEFNEREFS
HERA BEEEEREERNTESEN
B BT -_TFNAA-THhARER I
BBEEEIRAN AN BEE BEENTR/EAE
BETHBEBRAAIZES -
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EENRSREEEBAES

Mr. Tse Ka Wing, aged 45, joined the Group in May 2013
and is the Company Secretary and Chief Financial Officer
of the Company. He was appointed as an executive
Director with effect from 26 March 2015. He is primarily
responsible for the financial management, supervision of
financial reporting and corporate finance matters, and
company secretarial matters of the Group. Mr. Tse
graduated from The Chinese University of Hong Kong with
a bachelor of business administration degree. He is an
associate of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and a member of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants. Mr. Tse is a professional
accountant with over 23 vyears of experience in
accounting and had previously served as a senior
manager of an international firm of certified public
accountants. Pending the outcome of the legal
proceedings of the Petition, Mr. Tse has been suspended
from his duties as an executive Director effective from
25 September 2020 and he continues to serve the
Company as the chief financial officer and the company
secretary.

Mr. Chang Huan Chia, aged 43, was appointed as an
executive Director on 25 September 2020. He obtained a
bachelor degree in electrical engineering in Yuan Ze
University in Taiwan in 2001 and has over 16 years of
experience in the technology and electronics industry.
Prior to joining the Group in September 2016, Mr. Chang
was a field application engineer and served as an
assistant manager in HannStar Display Corporation and a
project manager in Fitipower Integrated Technology Inc.
He is the chief executive officer and a director of Perfect
Intelligent Technology Limited, a director of Perinnova
Limited and a director of Perfect Display Limited, all of
which are subsidiaries of the Company. He is also
responsible for supervising the sales teams of the Group
and is the responsible person of the Taiwan branch of
Perfect Intelligent Technology Limited.

Perfect Opftronics Limited Annual Report 2020

HMREEE 45 R _E—=FRAMBER
S8 TECAQRGBNA A ME KM FHE-
BR-—_ZT—RE=A -+ ~BREZEAHIT
ET-RETEZABEAKECYHER  MKH
BeEBRLEBMEEHEURWEETHE - # L
EEREEREEFNARE BFEIREHEELS
- HABEACHAMASRERSEHFARE:
MAge8 - HLEABEESHA REFAR
EHBB3FER  HBRAECH —HEE T
ERTRSACE 25N EERFeY
EREZA SAECEREEERNTESOR
BOEB_E_EFENA-tTRERLEW Wi
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr. Wong Yik Chung John, aged 54, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 20 January 2014
and is responsible for providing independent advice on
material issues of the Company. Pending the outcome of
the legal proceedings of the Petition, Mr. Wong has been
suspended from his duties as an independent
non-executive Director effective from 25 September 2020.
Mr. Wong graduated from the University of Melbourne,
Australia with a degree of bachelor of commerce. He was
a member of the Australian Society of Certified Practising
Accountants and was admitted as an associate of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants in
April 1997. Mr. Wong has more than 30 vyears of
experience in auditing and corporate finance work. Over
the past three years, he served as independent non-
executive directors for the following companies which are
listed on the Stock Exchange, namely Xinjiang Xinxin
Mining Industry Co., Ltd. (stock code: 3833), China Apex
Group Limited (stock code: 2011) and China International
Development Corporation Limited (stock code: 264). He is
currently serving as an independent non-executive director
for the following companies which are listed on the Stock
Exchange, namely EcoGreen International Group Limited
(stock code: 2341), LongiTech Smart Energy Holding
Limited (stock code: 1281) and Beijing Capital Land Ltd.
(stock code: 2868).
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Mr. Wong Chi Chiu, aged 50, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 20 January 2014
and is responsible for providing independent advice on
material issues of the Company. Pending the outcome of
the legal proceedings of the Petition, Mr. Wong has been
suspended from his duties as an independent
non-executive Director effective from 25 September 2020.
Mr. Wong graduated from The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University with a degree of bachelor of engineering in
electrical engineering. He further received his master of
science in engineering (building services engineering)
degree from The University of Hong Kong. Mr. Wong was
registered as a chartered engineer (CEng) at the
Engineering Council in April 1998 and was registered as a
registered professional engineer in electrical discipline at
the Engineers Registration Board in July 1999. He has
been a member of The Institution of Engineering and
Technology since February 1998 and the Hong Kong
Institution of Engineers since May 1998. Mr. Wong has
over 28 years of experience in the engineering industry.

Mr. Kan Man Wai, aged 57, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 1 January 2020
and is responsible for providing independent judgment on
issues of strategy, performance, resources and standard
of conduct of the Company. He is the acting chairman of
the Board. He is also the chairman of the remuneration
committee of the Company and a member of the audit
committee and nomination committee of the Company.
Mr. Kan obtained a Diploma in Management Studies
awarded by The Hong Kong Polytechnic University and
the Hong Kong Management Association, and
subsequently obtained a Master’'s Degree of Business
Administration in International Management from the Royal
Melbourne Institute of Technology in Australia. He has
over 30 years of experience in the electronics
manufacturing services industry, including over 20 years
of experience at management level of sales and business
development and 4 years of experience at management
level of business operations. Mr. Kan is a Vice President
of Business Development for Great China and Korea of
Sanmina Corporation, a leading electronics manufacturing
services provider in the world that serves original
equipment manufacturers in communications, medical,
automotive, industrial and defense and aerospace fields
which is headquartered in San Jose, California, USA and
is listed on the Nasdag Stock Market. In his current
position, he is responsible for managing sales business,
exploring new business and introducing mergers and
acquisitions.

Perfect Opftronics Limited Annual Report 2020

=EEBEL 0 R E—ME—AF-+H
BZARBIUFHITES  BEHARFTERK
EERHER FEFENEEEFSEERZ
Al BAECEEFEEERABYINITESOR
oA E_ZTFAAL+tEBRAM -EX
EEENEFBEEIARE RIEIRELE4
FIEEHRTIR FHEEFEREBRERIRE(E
FIR)HEEBELTEN - EEER—NANANFE
A& fit & 2 & T2 A £ 2 (Engineering  Council)
M FF TI2AICENg) WA — AL F £ A+
MeaITERMaAMEERMAMBEX£EH TR
feB—NMNMN\F_RAEXAIREEFRE
gMmEeE NXE—AAN\FHRARAEEILR
fME2eg8 BAENIRAGHBBFHNL

X ELEE 57 RZE_ZF—A—HE
ZERBUENTES BERHBEHEALAQF
B SRS - RIF - IR RIRSPKER B L #) B -
BRESENREBIF BHAARRGFMHE
BEEFFURARAAIERLZEGRREREZESR
KE BEEOERSEEIAEREEEER
XM eREERER REERMNEREAEZ
RETITAELRBEEBEETINERBE 247 -
BREFRERBXHEABBAIOFLR B2
REEREBEREEERNBB0FLH
NEREBLEEREEEMNIFER BEER
Sanmina Corporation A /7 £ [ 8% 5 2£ 7% 2% & 2
42 & (Vice President of Business Development
for Great China and Korea) ' 5% ‘A 8] & 2 k<8
EWMEFRERBMUEDS T@EM BF A
B CIEKEEMEMRTEAREZERE
PERERSE HASNNERMMERA I
RPN ERESXZAM LT - HREEEER
HEXER REFTEBRETOHE -



Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

Mr. Cho Chi Kong, aged 68, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 1 January 2020
and is responsible for providing independent judgment on
issues of strategy, performance, resources and standard
of conduct of the Company. He is also the chairman of
the nomination committee of the Company and a member
of the audit committee and remuneration committee of the
Company. Mr. Cho has extensive experience in corporate
law, legal and regulatory compliance and prevention and
detection of fraud. Mr. Cho is a Non-practicing Barrister
of the Honorable Society of Lincoln’s Inn United Kingdom,
the High Court of the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region, the Supreme Court of Australian Capital Territory
and the High Court of Australia. He is a Certified Fraud
Examiner of the Association of Certified Fraud Examiner
and a former President of the Hong Kong Chapter of the
Association of Certified Fraud Examiner, and is also a
fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Directors.
Mr. Cho has served as adviser and in-house legal
consultant on legal and compliance matters for
companies in Hong Kong and London. Mr. Cho taught
post-graduate courses in corporate governance and
regulatory framework as a Professor of Practice (Law) at
the School of Accounting and Finance, The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University before he retired in July 2020. He
has also lectured at universities in Hong Kong and
Mainland China on corporate law, securities law and
business law. Mr. Cho is an independent non-executive
director of Mansion International Holdings Limited, the
shares of which are listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange
(Stock Code: 8456).
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Ms. Hsu Wai Man Helen, aged 51, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 25 September
2020 and is responsible for providing independent
judgment on issues of strategy, performance, resources
and standard of conduct of the Company. She is the
chairperson of the audit committee of the Company. She
is also a member of the nomination committee and
remuneration committee of the Company. Ms. Hsu
graduated from The Chinese University of Hong Kong with
a bachelor degree in business administration. Ms. Hsu is
a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and a member of the American
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. She has more
than 20 years’ experience in accounting. Ms. Hsu had
been working with Ernst & Young for 18 years and was a
partner of Ernst & Young before she retired from the firm
in February 2011. Ms. Hsu is currently an independent
non-executive director of Richly Field China Development
Limited (stock code: 313), China Display Optoelectronics
Technology Holdings Limited (stock code: 334), Perfect
Shape Medical Limited (stock code: 1830), Beijing Gas
Blue Sky Holdings Limited (stock code: 6828) and
Harmonicare Medical Holdings Limited (stock code:
1509), the shares of which are listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange. Ms. Hsu was an independent
non-executive director of Branding China Group Limited
(currently known as “BC Technology Group Limited”)
(stock code: 863) from April 2012 to May 2018, which is
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. She was
also an independent non-executive director of Circle
International Holdings Limited (stock code: CCH) from
September 2017 to May 2020, which is listed on the
National Stock Exchange of Australia (NSX).

Note: The executive Directors are also the senior management of the
Company.
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Report of the Directors

The Directors present their report together with the
audited financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2020 (the “Year”).

CORPORATE INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands as
an exempted company with limited liability on 13 June
2013 under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands.
The Company’s shares were listed on the GEM (“GEM”) of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) on 7 February 2014 (the “Listing Date”).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS
REVIEW

The principal activity of the Company is investment
holding. The principal activities of the subsidiaries are set
out in Note 13 to the consolidated financial statements.
There were no significant changes in the nature of the
Group’s principal activities during the year.

Business review of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2020 as required by Schedule 5 to the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, including a description
of the principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group
and an indication of likely future development in the
Group’s business, can be found in the Management
Discussion and Analysis set out on pages 8 to 21 of this
annual report which forms part of this directors’ report.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by
operating segment is set out in Note 5 to the
consolidated financial statements.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

To help conserve the environment, the Group has
implemented policies to encourage its employees for the
efficient use of energy and resources. Besides, the Group
has internal control measures in place to ensure that its
processing service providers comply with the relevant
environmental laws and regulations.
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In addition, details regarding the Group’s environmental
policies and performance can be found in the
Environmental, Social and Governance Report set out on
pages 44 to 66 of this annual report.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

The board of directors of the Company (the “Board”) do
not recommend the payment of a dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2020 (2019: Nil).

SHARE CAPITAL

There were no movements in the Company’s share capital
during the year.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Company at 31 December
2020 amounted to approximately HK$478,509,000 (2019:
HK$479,044,000).

DONATIONS

Charitable and other donations made by the Group during
the year amounted to HK$50,000 (2019: HK$100,000).

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s articles of association and there was no
restriction against such rights under the laws of Cayman
Islands, which would oblige the Company to offer new
shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results and assets, liabilities
and non-controlling interests of the Group, as extracted
from the consolidated financial statements of the
Company for the years ended 31 December 2016,
31 December 2017, 31 December 2018, 31 December
2019 and 31 December 2020, is set out on page 164 of
this annual report. This summary does not form part of the
audited financial statements.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Company
did not redeem any of its shares, and neither did the
Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchase or sell any
of the Company’s shares.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company has a share option scheme (the “Share
Option Scheme”) which was approved and adopted
pursuant to the written resolutions of the sole
Shareholder passed on 20 January 2014 (the “Adoption
Date”). The following is a summary of the principal terms
of the Share Option Scheme. The terms of the Share
Option Scheme are in accordance with the provisions of
Chapter 23 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the GEM (the “GEM Listing Rules”).

(@) Purpose of the Share Option Scheme

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to
provide the Company with a flexible means of giving
incentive to, rewarding, remunerating, compensating
and/or providing benefits to the Participants (as
defined below) and for such other purposes as the
Board may approve from time to time.

(b) Participants of the Share Option Scheme

On and subject to the terms of the Share Option
Scheme and the requirements of the GEM Listing
Rules, the Board may, at its discretion, invite:

(i) any director of each member of the Group or
of any entity in which any member of the
Group holds any equity interest (“Invested
Entity”);

(i) any employee (whether full-time or part-time) of
each member of the Group or of any Invested
Entity (the “Employee”);

(i)  any discretionary objects of a discretionary trust
established by any Employee or any director
of each member of the Group or of any
Invested Entity;
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(iv) a company beneficially owned by any Employee
or any director of each member of the Group
or of any Invested Entity;

(v)  any consultant, professional and other adviser
to each member of the Group or any Invested
Entity (including their employees or executives
or any persons, firms or companies proposed
to be appointed for providing such services);

(vi) any chief executives or substantial shareholders
of the Company;

(vi) any supplier, customer, service provider,
business or joint venture partner, contractor,
of the Group or any Invested Entity; and

(viiiy any person who, at the absolute discretion of
the Board, has contributed or may contribute
to the Group or any Invested Entity, provided
that the Board may at its absolute discretion
determine whether or not one falls within the
above categories,

(together, the “Participants” and each a
“Participant”), to take up share options to subscribe
for shares of the Company at a price determined in
accordance with the terms of the Share Option
Scheme.

In determining the basis of eligibility of each
Participant, the Board would take into account such
factors as the Board may at its discretion consider
appropriate.

Duration and the remaining life of the Share Option
Scheme

The Share Option Scheme shall be valid and
effective for a period of 10 years commencing on
the Adoption Date and ending on 19 January 2024.
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Timing for exercising option

The period as the Board may in its absolute
discretion determine and specify in relation to any
particular option holder in his option agreement
during which the option may be exercised (subject
to such restriction on exercisability specified therein),
which shall be not greater than the period
prescribed by the GEM Listing Rules from time to
time (which is, as at the date of adoption of the
Share Option Scheme, a period of 10 years from the
date of the granting of the option).

Acceptance and payment on acceptance of option
offer

The offer of a grant of share options may be
accepted within the period from the date on which
such offer is made by the Board in accordance with
the Share Option Scheme to such date as the
Board may determine and specify in the letter where
such offer is made to a Participant in such form as
the Board may from time to time determine, upon
payment of a nominal consideration of HK$1 in total
by the grantee.

Subscription Price

The subscription price in respect of each Share
issued pursuant to the exercise of options granted
hereunder shall be a price solely determined by the
Board and notified to a Participant and shall be at
least the highest of:

(i) the closing price of the Shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on
the date of offer, which must be a business
day;

(i)  a price being the average of the closing price
of the Shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the 5
business days immediately preceding the date
of offer; and

(i)  the nominal value of a Share.
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Maximum number of Shares available for
subscription

The total number of Shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all options to be granted under the
Share Option Scheme and any other share option
schemes of the Company shall not in aggregate
exceed 10% of the total number of Shares in issue
immediately following completion of the Placing and
the Capitalisation Issue (as defined in the
prospectus of the Company dated 24 January 2014
(the “Prospectus”)) (being 132,000,000 Shares). The
Company may renew this limit at any time, subject
to shareholders’ approval and the issue of a circular
and in accordance with the GEM Listing Rules
provided that the number of shares to be issued
upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and
yet to be exercised under all the share option
schemes does not exceed 30% of the shares in
issue from time to time.

As at the date of this report, the Company had
132,000,000 share options available to be granted
under the Share Option Scheme, which represented
approximately 8.9% of the Company’s shares in
issue as at that date.

Maximum entitlement of Shares of each Participant

The total number of Shares issued and to be issued
upon exercise of the options granted to each
Participant under the Share Option Scheme and any
other share option schemes of the Company
(including both exercised and outstanding Options)
in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the
total number of Shares in issue. Any further grant of
share options in excess of this limit is subject to
shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive
or substantial shareholder of the Company, or to
any of their respective associates, are subject to
approval in advance by the independent non-
executive Directors. In addition, any share options
granted to a substantial Shareholder or an
independent non-executive Director, or to any of
their respective associates, in excess of 0.1% of the
shares of the Company in issue at any time or with
an aggregate value (based on the price of the
Company’s shares at the date of grant) in excess of
HK$5 million, within any 12-month period, are
subject to shareholders’ approval in advance in a
general meeting.

No share option has been granted under the Share
Option Scheme since its adoption.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE
SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Save as the Share Option Scheme, at no time during the
year was the Company, its parent company, or any of its
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to any
arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures
of, the Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the Year and up to
the date of this report were:

Executive Directors:
Mr. Cheng Wai Tak (suspended)
Mr. Liu Ka Wing (suspended)
Mr. Tse Ka Wing (suspended)
Mr. Chang Huan Chia
(appointed on 25 September 2020)

Independent non-executive Directors:
Mr. Wong Yik Chung John (suspended)
Mr. Wong Chi Chiu (suspended)
Mr. Li Shui Yan (resigned on 15 October 2020)
Mr. Kan Man Wai (Acting Chairman)
(appointed on 1 January 2020)
Mr. Cho Chi Kong (appointed on 1 January 2020)
Ms. Hsu Wai Man Helen
(appointed on 25 September 2020)

By virtue of article 108 of the articles of association of the
Company, Mr. Liu Ka Wing, Mr. Wong Yik Chung John
and Mr. Wong Chi Chiu will retire by rotation at the
forthcoming annual general meeting. Mr. Liu Ka Wing,
Mr. Wong Yik Chung John and Mr. Wong Chi Chiu will,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

Mr. Chang Huan Chia and Ms. Hsu Wai Man Helen were
appointed as executive Director and independent non-
executive Director respectively with effect from
25 September 2020. In accordance with the article 112 of
the articles of association of the Company, Mr. Chang
Huan Chia and Ms. Hsu Wai Man Helen will retire at the
forthcoming annual general meeting and, being eligible,
will offer themselves for re-election.

Report of the Directors
EEERE

EERERONUEER ZER

ﬁ@ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ%‘]?\\ CREREMER XA -
ENRQRISHEEMMBARNERME R FY
nTi{Efjﬁ(ﬁF FEEREB HQE§$ Al 3K

Eﬂm%ﬂxﬂx@ifﬁl%ﬁﬁﬁﬂl 15 A &%

B5E

ARARAFEREAREARNESA

HITEE -

BEELE(BEEFERE)

BRAEE(CEERB)

R REE (B FRE)

RIEERTE
(RZZB_ZEFNA-_THBEZE)

HUIFNITESE -

HEASLE(BY B
HEBLE(BYEBRE)
FBAEE(R_Z-_EF+A+RAEHD)
BB E(LEEE)
(R—ZE_ZTF—FA—HEZT)
EEAEEWR_TE_TF—A—HEZT)
REHZL

(E" TZEFNAZTHEHEZMT)

BREARR ZEBERAMAE108K - BRESE
£ BELAREREEBAERRNERERRE
FREBERE-BERRLE FELRER
EEBEENAERLBEEERET

RERAENGERL IO EZTANTTE
ERBUFRATEET AT =ZFTFNA
Z+RHBER -BREARFALERZMANE
1121 RERLERBREFZ TR EERR
BERE LRI UHAEREEEERET-

BExxXEFRLF 2020 FiR

79



80

Report of the Directors
EEERE

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated
25 September 2020, pending the outcome of the legal
proceedings of the petition dated 25 September 2019
issued by the High Court of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region which was taken out by the
Securities and Futures Commission against certain
directors of the Company, Mr. Cheng Wai Tak, Mr. Liu Ka
Wing, Mr. Tse Ka Wing, Mr. Wong Yik Chung John,
Mr. Wong Chi Chiu and Mr. Li Shui Yan have been
suspended from their duties as Directors with effect from
25 September 2020.

The Company has received annual confirmation of
independence from all the existing independent non-
executive Directors pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM
Listing Rules. As at the date of this report, the Board
considers them to be independent.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service
contract with the Company for a term of three years,
except terminated by either party giving not less than
three months’ prior written notice to the other. They are
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the
Company’s annual general meeting in accordance with the
Company’s articles of association.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has
entered into a letter of appointment with the Company for
a term of three years, except terminated by not less than
three months’ notice in writing served by either party on
the other. They are subject to retirement by rotation and
re-election at the Company’s annual general meeting.

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at
the forthcoming annual general meeting has a service
contract with the Company which is not determinable
within one year without payment of compensation, other
than statutory compensation.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

In order to attract and retain high quality staff and to
enable smooth operation within the Group, the Group
offers competitive remuneration packages (with reference
to market conditions and individual qualifications and
experience) and various in-house training courses. The
remuneration packages are subject to review on a regular
basis.
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The emoluments of the Directors are recommended by the
remuneration committee of the Company, having regard to
the Group’s operating results, market competitiveness,
individual performance and achievement, to the Board for
determination.

Details of the Directors’ remuneration and the five highest
paid individuals are set out in Note 32 and Note 9 to the
consolidated financial statements, respectively.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

No transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance
in relation to the Group’s business to which the
Company, any of its subsidiaries, fellow subsidiaries or its
parent company was a party and in which a director of
the Company or his connected entities had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end
of the Year or at any time during the Year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Company’s articles of association, every
director of the Company shall be entitled to be
indemnified out of the assets of the Company against all
losses or liabilities which he may sustain or incur in or
about the execution of the duties of his office or
otherwise in relation thereto. The Company maintains
directors and officers liability insurance, which gives
appropriate cover for any legal action brought against its
directors. The level of the coverage is reviewed annually.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Brief biographical details of Directors and senior
management are set out on pages 67 to 72 of this annual
report.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE RELEVANT
LAWS AND REGULATIONS

During the Year, there was no material breach of or non-
compliance with the applicable laws and regulations by
the Group.
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COMPETING INTERESTS

Based on the information available to the Company and
within the knowledge and belief of the Directors, none of
the Directors or the controlling shareholders of the
Company (as defined under the GEM Listing Rules) have
any business or interest which competes or may compete
with the business of the Group, or have any other conflict
of interest which any such person has or may have with
the Group throughout the year ended 31 December
2020.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND/OR SHORT POSITIONS
IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY
OR ANY ASSOCIATED CORPORATION

As at 31 December 2020, interests and short positions in
the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the “SFO”)) held by the Directors and chief
executives of the Company which have been notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests and short positions which were taken or deemed
to have under such provisions of the SFO) or have been
entered in the register maintained by the Company
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or otherwise have
been notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the standard of dealings by directors set out
in Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules were as
follows:
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Long positions in shares of the Company:

Name of Director Capacity
Esns )

Mr. Cheng Wai Tak

B RE A TEAE RS
Beneficial owner
EnBEAEA
Mr. Kan Man Wai Beneficial owner
Bk EmEAA
Note:

These 923,427,151 shares are held by Winful Enterprises Limited (“Winful
Enterprises”), which in turn is wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. Cheng
Wai Tak. As such, Mr. Cheng Wai Tak is deemed under the SFO to be
interested in these 923,427,151 shares held by Winful Enterprises.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, none
of the Directors and chief executives of the Company had
registered an interest or short position in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV
of the SFO) which were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions
7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and
short positions which were taken or deemed to have
under such provisions of the SFO), or which were
required to be entered in the register maintained by the
Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or which
were required to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the standard of dealings by
directors set out in Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing
Rules.

Interest in controlled corporation
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Percentage of
the Company’s
Number of issued share
shares held capital
AATS BT
e RGEE RAEE T
923,427,151 62.24%

(Note) (F¥7%)
2,220,000 0.15%
320,000 0.02%

%%923,427,151 % % 19 FAWinful Enterprises Limited ([ Winful
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’
INTERESTS AND/OR SHORT POSITIONS
IN THE SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES OF THE COMPANY

So far as the Directors are aware, as at 31 December
2020, other than the Directors and chief executives of the
Company, the following persons/entities have an interest
or a short position in the shares or the underlying shares
of the Company which were required to be disclosed to
the Company under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the
SFO or which were required to be recorded in the
register of the Company required to be kept under
section 336 of the SFO:

FERRREAQXTNRG K EBR
BDHHERR KA

MEERMN RN_ZE-_TF+-_A=+—8"
BREERARAEZBITHRABN  THALS
BEENRARANBRNDIBERDPEBRESE
% N HR GBI EEXVER 2 30 S 7B [\ A A Bl
BREES KRB GG EI36IEFTHE - A
SR AE LS DI BT 48 8 R & B & R 0 RO A 25 0K
20T

Long position in shares of the Company RELTROGWEFR :
Percentage of
the Company’s
Number of issued share
Name Nature of interests shares held capital
AARE BT
=18 EmMtE FRERGOEE BRAE D
Winful Enterprises Directly beneficially owned 923,427,151 62.24%

BEEERHEAR (Note) (Fff 5% )

Note: Mr. Cheng Wai Tak is deemed under the SFO to be interested in
these 923,427,151 shares held by Winful Enterprises.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, no
other person had any interests or short positions in the
shares or underlying shares of the Company which were
required to be disclosed to the Company under Divisions
2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or which were required to
be recorded in the register of the Company required to be
kept under section 336 of the SFO.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
business of the Company were entered into or existed
during the Year.
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MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

During the year ended 31 December 2020, sales to the
Group’s five largest customers accounted for
approximately 50.6% (2019: 42.2%) of the total sales for
the year and sales to the largest customer included
therein amounted to approximately 17.5% (2019: 11.3%).
Purchases from the Group’s five largest suppliers
accounted for approximately 89.5% (2019: 87.5%) of the
total purchases for the year and purchase from the
largest supplier included therein amounted to
approximately 66.4% (2019: 69.2%).

None of the Directors, their close associates or any
shareholder (which to the knowledge of the Directors
owns more than 5% of the number of issued shares of
the Company) had an interest in these major suppliers or
customers.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The material related party transactions in relation to the
key management personnel remuneration as disclosed in
Note 30(c) to the consolidated financial statements are
connected transactions exempt from reporting,
announcement and independent shareholders’ approval
requirements pursuant to Rule 20.31(6) of the GEM Listing
Rules.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, the
Company has maintained the prescribed public float
required by the GEM Listing Rules as at the date of this
report.

COMPLIANCE OF NON-COMPETITION
UNDERTAKING

All the independent non-executive Directors were
delegated with the authority to review on an annual basis
the compliance with the non-competition undertaking
given by each of Mr. Cheng Wai Tak and Winful
Enterprises, the controlling shareholders of the Company
(collectively, the “Covenantors”) in favour of the Company
dated 20 January 2014 (the “Non-Competition Deed”).
The Covenantors have provided to the Company all
information necessary for the annual review by the
independent non-executive Directors and the Covenantors
have confirmed to the Company that each of the
Covenantors and his/its associates has not breached the
terms of the undertakings contained in the Non-
Competition Deed. All independent non-executive
Directors confirmed that they are not aware of any non-
compliance with the Non-Competition Deed by the
Covenantors during the Year.
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Details of the Non-Competition Deed have been set out in
the section headed “Relationship with Controlling
Shareholders” of the Prospectus.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the Share Option Scheme, no equity-linked
agreements were entered into during the year or
subsisted at the end of the year.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Details of the corporate governance practices adopted by
the Company are set out in the Corporate Governance
Report on pages 22 to 43 of this annual report.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements have been audited
by PricewaterhouseCoopers who will retire at the forth
coming annual general meeting and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment. A resolution will be
proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting of
the Company to re-appoint PricewaterhouseCoopers as
auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board
Perfect Optronics Limited

Kan Man Wai
Acting Chairman
Hong Kong, 19 March 2021
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Independent Auditor’'s Report

e
pwc

To the Shareholders of Perfect Optronics Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Perfect Optronics
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”)
set out on pages 94 to 163, which comprise:

° the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 December 2020;

° the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
for the year then ended;

° the consolidated statement of changes in equity for
the year then ended;

° the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended; and

° the notes to the consolidated financial statements,
which include a summary of significant accounting
policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give
a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position
of the Group as at 31 December 2020, and of its
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared
in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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Independent Auditor’'s Report
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
(“the Code”), and we have fulfiled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our
professional judgement, were of most significance in our
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised
as follows:

° Inventory provision

o Valuation of financial asset at fair value through profit
or loss
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Key Audit Matter
HEETEE

Inventory provision

FEAERRE

Refer to Note 2.12, Note 4.1(a) and Note 20 to the
consolldated financial statements. R
BLUBREVHRERME2.12 » W 5E4.1(a) R I 7E20 ©

As at 31 December 2020, the Group held inventories of
HK$31,904,000. As described in the accounting policies in
Note 2.12 to the consolidated financial statements,
inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value.

RZE_ZTF+ = ﬂ_Jr*E’Ex@?-rﬁﬁéf
31,904,000/ JT ° # 40 45 & B 7% M & M 55212 5 K P
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The Group operates in a market where new product
releases are regular. There is a risk that inventories held will
be sold below cost or become obsolete in light of
technological advancement and changing market conditions.
There is inherent judgement in the levels of sales and the
selling price the directors forecast when assessing the net
realisable value (“NRV”).
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Management calculates the NRV at each period end based
on the estimated selling price less cost to sell, which
requires significant judgements and assumptions to be
made to determine the estimated selling price of individual
products of similar nature and expectation of future sales
based on current market conditions and available
information. The estimations are also subject to uncertainty
as a result of future changes of market trends, customer
demands and technology development.
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We focused on this area because the estimation of NRV is
subject to high degree of estimation uncertainty. The
inherent risk in relation to the impairment assessment of
inventory is considered significant due to subjectivity of
significant assumptions used and significant judgements
involved in selecting data.
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
EMHBANMEERRENSE

We understood, evaluated and tested relevant controls over
management’s estimation of NRV and periodic reviews of
inventory obsolescence and assessed the inherent risk of
material misstatement by considering the degree of
estimation uncertainty and level of other inherent risk
factors such as complexity, subjectively, changes and
susceptibility to management bias or fraud;

BPEE RS EREEYAERFENEA TR
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We performed retrospective review by comparing previous
estimates to actual outcome. We evaluated the outcome of
prior period assessment of inventory provision to assess the
effectiveness of management’s estimation process;
BMBEER LG RERERETTEHBRENES - &
el E— R FERENGRAER  UFREBE M
MIZH AR

In relation to the types of products which had material
balances as at year end, we challenged the assumptions
applied by management on using the historical sales data
which reflected the expected life cycle of similar products
as the basis to estimate their future sales. We reconsidered
these assumptions appropriate based on the Group’s
historical sales pattern

HNFREEREHRNE EEREEE
FrIEREY R - Z%ﬁ ﬁﬁ@%m@
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We further discussed with management to understand the
additional factors that were considered relevant based on
the current market conditions that may require adjustments
to the historical sales pattern for both the price and the
quantity of the selected products and obtained evidence for
these explanations. We independently evaluated the
relevance of these factors and evidence supporting the
estimation of the NRV by using our industry knowledge and
external market analysis and found them to be reasonable.
We further tested, on a sample basis, by comparing the
estimated selling price and sales quantity with post year-
end sales data of the selected products and found the
estimated selling price and sales quantity in the NRV
assessment to be within reasonable ranges.

RMSEREE—SHm bl REEEERAR TR
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Based on the work performed, we considered that the
inventory provision provided was in line with the Group’s
policy and was supportable by historical market trends,
customer demands, technology development as well as
management’s expectations for future sales and inventory
management plans.
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Independent Auditor’'s Report
B %BA®E

Key Audit Matter
HEETEE

Valuation of financial asset at fair value through profit or
loss
EfRAABEFABSZEZEHEE

Refer to Note 3.3, Note 4.1(b) and Note 19 to the
consolidated financial statements.
FBLURE VB RAMNESS - s 1(0) KM FE19 -

As at 31 December 2020, the Group has an unlisted
investment of HK$59,547,000 measured at fair value
through profit or loss, using market information and
significant unobservable inputs.
RZEZZEF+ZA=+—0 FEAMSENREEDTT
BRmA\8E EXEEERAABEFABRENIELT
% £59,547,000/% JT

The Group has engaged an external appraiser to assess the
fair value of such unlisted investment. The appraised value
is based on valuation models. Because of the limited
comparable transactions in the market, it is challenging to
validate the appraisal value and therefore inherent risks in
the appraised value remain.
BEEEDERINPTEMTEZER ETREZDAEE -
AEEEDUGERL SEE - ARMS LAILENR S
BR ZEFGEEERRE ARFHEEFEESRA

i o
2

We focused on this area because the estimation of the fair
value is subject to high degree of estimation uncertainty.
The inherent risk in relation to the valuation of financial
asset at fair value through profit or loss is considered
significant due to subjectivity of significant assumptions
used

RARBENGEAFERENGBTTEEE WRME
&Fm%ﬁomﬂﬁﬁﬁixﬁﬁﬁﬁfﬁﬁ BRARE
Bt \ERzemEENEGRRERARBEK -
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
EMHBANMEERRENSE

We understood, evaluated and tested the operating
effectiveness of related controls to determine that
appropriate oversight from directors had been exercised
within the valuations process and assessed the inherent risk
of material misstatement by considering the degree of
estimation uncertainty and level of other inherent risk
factors such as complexity, subjectivity, changes and
susceptibility to management bias or fraud.

BMTE FERAABEETNEENIR UETES
ERHEBREFFELHEENEE I E R M6 T HEE T
REMEERKREZ(NEHE  TEMEZPHREERREN
HEFRI AT BEME) KT - IR E RER B E A &R

As the valuation of the unlisted investment required
significant estimates and reliance on external valuation, we
assessed the objectivity, independence and expertise of the
external appraiser.

HRIFLTREZHEFTEERGE RIKBINSEE &
MEFENBFEMOFTERE B MERFEEMNE -

In addition, we also assessed both the methodologies and
assumptions used by management in the calculation of the
year end fair value by the following procedures:

AN BT EERBHEFRAABEMAN T AR
BH-BFOET:

o Evaluated the methodologies and key assumptions used
in valuation models by comparing the assumptions
used against appropriate benchmarks and investigated
significant differences, challenging the appropriateness
of the pricing multiples available from comparable
companies and assessing sensitivities to assumptions.

&ﬁﬁﬁ@mﬁﬁZE&&EKF“* E R P

ANBREEEERRLRMFAETERNER ALK
Qﬂ%i%%%%?h%%ﬁg Ko FF fil R AR O UK
o

o Tested the data integrity for the valuation models.
HEBEENNHBETERTHETUR

° Used our valuation expert to perform independent
assessment.
MARMNEEERETELFME -

Based on the work performed, we considered the

assumptions used above all feII within an acceptable range.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
other information. The other information comprises all of
the information included in the annual report other than
the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs
issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for
overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

Independent Auditor’'s Report
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Independent Auditor’'s Report
B %BA®E

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a body,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we
exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the
directors.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’
use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a
material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to
the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

Perfect Opftronics Limited Annual Report 2020
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° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on
the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to
eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected
to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Ng Ka Ho.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 19 March 2021

Independent Auditor’'s Report
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Consolidated Statfement of Comprehensive Income

FeEHERER

For the year ended 31 December 2020

HE-Z-_ZF+-_A=+—BI=FE

2020 2019
—E_EF —E-NF
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
B 3% FERT FAT
Revenue WA 5, 6 206,973 166,607
Cost of sales 58 B AR 8 (189,869) (166,902)
Gross profit/(loss) EF,(E8) 17,104 (295)
Other gains, net Hoth Y 55 0% 58 7 3,256 3,069
Distribution and selling expenses % §5 & 5 & 8 (10,119) (8,680)
General and administrative —MRITEHEX
expenses 8 (26,747) (26,916)
Research and development MREBEERX
expenses 8 (1,394) (1,972)
Operating loss REEE (17,900) (34,794)
Finance income RPN 31 170
Finance costs MBER (678) (1,165)
Finance costs, net W ERFE 10 (647) (995)
Loss before income tax F?Fﬁ BHAIEE (18,547) (35,789)
Income tax credit gt e 11 17 141
Loss for the year FEEE (18,530) (35,648)
Other comprehensive income/ HftZ2EWE ~ (Ei8):
(loss):
Item that may be subsequently &% i] & %/7 DB W
reclassified to income Ep
statement )
Currency translation differences 4N & =58 86 23
Item that will not be subsequently K& T & & # 7 8 E M
reclassified to income mAkZIHA
Sstatement
Change in value of financial asset &2 7t BB A H 2
at fair value through other HREZzemEERE
comprehensive income (ER=) (797) 21
Total comprehensive loss for FEXEBRARE
the year (19,241) (85,604)
Loss for the year attributable to: £ EEEFER
Equity holders of the Company AR RIEmEFE A (16,883) (34,078)
Non-controlling interests RS (1,647) (1,570)
(18,530) (35,648)
Total comprehensive loss for FEX2HERAERE
the year attributable to: i
Equity holders of the Company AR A#EZFEFEEF A (17,586) (34,050)
Non-controlling interests FE 7 AR #E 2 (1,655) (1,554)
(19,241) (35,604)
Basic and diluted loss per share EREAR R #F 518 HK(1.14) cents  HK(2.30) cents
12 (1.14) %L (2.30)7% Il

The above consolidated statement of comprehensive
income should be read in conjunction with the

accompanying notes.

Perfect Optronics Limited Annual Report 2020
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e B AR R R

As at 31 December 2020
RZZ2-_ZFE+_A=+—H

2019
—E-NEF
Note HK$’000
B 5 FE T
Assets EE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y3 BB R 14 835 1,732
Right-of-use assets FTRAEEE 15 9,867 12,292
Intangible assets mEEAE 16 5,322 5,322
Deferred income tax assets EESHEBEEE 25 171 155
Financial asset at fair value BAREEFTAHA
through other comprehensive 2HEWE SR
income BE 18 1,876 2,673
Financial asset at fair value BEAREBEFTAER
through profit or loss L EREE 19 59,547 57,538
o rels 79,712
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 20 31,904 32,445
Trade and other receivables JFE L BR 3k N H Ath
Wk 21 34,007 21,198
Cash and cash equivalents e hkReFEY 22 76,403 70,308
S 12314 123951
Total assets EEHRE 219,932 203,663
Equity and liabilities ERREE
Equity attributable to equity AATFEEEEAEML
holders of the Company =
Share capital & A 23 14,837 14,837
Reserves 1 116,361 117,064
Retained earnings B F = 20,163 37,046
o 151861 168,947
Non-controlling interests FERELS (245) 1,410
Total equity R 151,116 170,357

BX%XEHRA 2020 £ 95



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

FaMBRR R

As at 31 December 2020
RZZ2-_ZFE+_A=+—H

2019
—ZE-NF
Note HK$’000
BT = FAE T
Liabilities =N
Non-current liabilities kRBERE
Lease liabilities HEAE 15 7,191 8,692
S L9t 8692
Current liabilities FEBEE
Trade and other payables JE 11 BR 3R R L Ath JE A
E/Y 24 57,253 19,514
Lease liabilities HEAE 15 4,372 5,098
Current income tax liabilities BEHMEHRAaE - 2
R 61625 24,614
Total liabilites ~ &f®& 68816 33,306
Total equity and liabilities ExRBEEE 219,932 203,663

FUUEIEMGAMBEHREREN T - —F=
AthBEmEZgHE YRREFEHE-

The consolidated financial statements on pages 94 to 163
were approved by the Board of Directors on 19 March
2021 and were signed on its behalf.

Chang Huan Chia Hsu Wai Man Helen

RER HhEsy
Director Director
EZE o

The above consolidated statement of financial position A F4RA MR REBFEHNHFE—HFHE -
should be read in conjunction with the accompanying

notes.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes iN Equity

GAERBDHE

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-_Z-_TF+_A=+—HILFE

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

(Note 1)
(1)

Share Share Other
capital  premium  reserves
B ROEE EbEE
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
Tén TER  TEn

ARARERE ARG RS

(Note 2)
(Hrat2)
Non-
Merger Revaluation ~ Exchange  Retained controlling
reserve reserve reserve  earnings Total interests Total equity
RHEE  EMBE  ENEE BR4E & FEREE REER
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000
Tén TEx fEx Tz TER  TEx  THE:n

Balance at 1 January 2020 “E-85-f-AEH W8T 46578 BT (415675 67 @5 306 188947 1410 170387
Comprehensive loss 2EFE

Loss for the year EEEE - - - - - - (16883 (16,889 (1,647 (18,530)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) Eh2ERE/ (BB

Currency translation difierences NEREEE - - - - - % - 9% ®) 8
Change in value of financial asset at fair valle EAABEGFAERZELEZS

through other comprehensive income BAEEMERY - - - - (797) - - (797) - (797)
Total other comprehensive income/(loss) ih2ENE/ (BR)EE - - - - (197) % - (703) @®) (M)
Total comprehensive income/(loss) 2ERE/ (BR)4E - - - - (797) 94 (16,883  (17,588) (1655 (19,241)
Balance at 31 December 2020 CE-EELCASt-RER 14837 465738 67,349 (415,675 (730) (B21) 20163 151361 (245 151,116
Balance at 1 January 2019 -B-hE-f-AkH W8T M58 6T (1567 % Wy T 2009w - g
Comprehensive loss 2EER
Loss for the year FEER - - - - - - 34078 (34078 (1570 (35,648)
Other comprehensive income Ep2ENE
Currency translation difierences NEREER - - - - - 7 - 7 16 2
Change in value of financial asset at fair valle EAABEGFAERZELEZS

through other comprehensive income REEEEED - - - - 21 - - 21 - 2
Total other comprehensive income B2 E4REE - - - - Pl 7 - 8 16 4
Total comprehensive income/(loss) 2ERE/ (BR)4E - - - - Pl T (34078 (34050 (1554 (35,604)
Contributions from non-controlling interests 3 M 5 % & (K 3¥13(a))

Note 13(a) - - - - - - - - % 2%
Balance at 31 December 2019 “E-AETB=t-AEH 14837 465738 67,349 (415,679) 67 (415) 37,046 168,947 1410 170,357
Notes: B &

1 Other reserves include: (1) the difference between the share capital 1 HEtEHEeE WVREAQAR LmETHEA(E

issued by the Company for acquisition of the subsidiaries pursuant
to a reorganisation (the “Reorganisation”) for the listing of the
Company and the aggregate capital of the subsidiaries being
acquired at the time of the Reorganisation; and (2) the amount of
the loan waived by the controlling shareholder upon completion of
a common control combination.

2 Revaluation reserve represents fair value reserve for financial asset
at fair value through other comprehensive income.

The above consolidated statement of changes in equity
should be read in conjunction with the accompanying
notes.

M) ARARARKRBEMBAR D BITHORARKREMA
R R B R R 2 B A EE R T AR
EHEHBERBRRACZENEE

2 BEEMBEDERARBEFARMEZEARSEZ SBE
ENMaEEFE-

A Eir B e R EEbEMN M — HRIE -
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
.\/T/\Iﬁfﬁljlbiﬂj«‘:z

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE_Z-_ZF+-_F=+—RHI&EE

2019
—E—hF
Note HK$’000
B 5 FAETT
Cash flows from operating RETINRETRE
activities
Cash generated from operations &2 11518 & 27 12,106 2,899
Income tax recovered W [B1 B 45 Bt 4 313
Interest paid 2T E - (275)
Payments of interest element of X {7 f"f BEMNEES
lease liabilities 15, 27 (678) (890)
Net cash generated from wEEEEFRS
__operating actiites 482 2047
Cash flows from investing RETBHNRERE
activities
Purchase of property, plant and B EWZE  WME N X
equipment 14 (33) (185)
Addition of intangible assets NBEEVEE — (2,200)
Proceeds from disposal of HEWE - HE LE&HE
property, plant and equipment BT 15 k18 - 10
Interest received B FH A 31 170
Net cash used in investing BEESMAFES
OIS e @ (2,205)
Cash flows from financing METBHNRERE
activities
Repayments of bank borrowings EERTEE 27 — (8,979)
Decrease in restricted bank W 2R R 1T IF A
deposits — 10,335
Payments of principal element of SN E & B AL &5
lease liabilities 15, 27 (5,465) (4,963)
Capital contribution from non- IFIERERTE
controlling interests 13(a) — 2,964
Net cash used in financing BEEBFAFERS
Cetwies 6469 ... (043).
Net increase/(decrease) in cash BRERBE & EEW LM
and cash equivalents /OB D) B8 5,965 (801)
Cash and cash equivalents at FURELRESEZEEY
beginning of year 70,308 71,153
Exchange differences on cash and IR & MRS S EBWIE K
cash equivalents =5 130 (44)
Cash and cash equivalents at HEFXBEERBLZEY
end of year 22 76,403 70,308
The above consolidated statement of cash flows should A L#GARESREREEBHIH T —HEE

be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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1

GENERAL INFORMATION

Perfect Optronics Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 13 June
2013, as an exempted company with limited liability
under the Companies Law (as Revised) of the
Cayman Islands. The address of its registered office
is Windward 3, Regatta Office Park, PO Box 1350,
Grand Cayman KY1-1108, Cayman Islands. The
Company’s shares are listed on the GEM of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

The Company is an investment holding company
and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) are
principally engaged in trading, development and sale
of display and optics products and related electronic
components. The Group also processes some of the
products which it sells.

These consolidated financial statements are
presented in Hong Kong dollars (‘HK$”) and all
values are rounded to the nearest thousand
(“HK$’000"), unless otherwise stated.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

This note provides a list of the significant
accounting policies adopted in the preparation of
these consolidated financial statements. These
policies have been consistently applied to all the
years presented, unless otherwise stated. The
consolidated financial statements are for the Group
consisting of Perfect Optronics Limited and its
subsidiaries.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the
Group have been prepared in accordance with
all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”) and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance Cap.
622. The consolidated financial statements
have been prepared under the historical cost
basis, except for financial asset at fair value
through other comprehensive income
(“FVOCI”) and financial asset at fair value
through profit or loss (“FVTPL”) which have
been measured at fair value.

Notes 1o the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Fe M BRRME

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.1

Basis of preparation (Continued)

The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of
certain critical accounting estimates. It also
requires management to exercise its
judgement in the process of applying the
Group’s accounting policies. The areas
involving a higher degree of judgement or
complexity, or areas where assumptions and
estimates are significant to the consolidated
financial statements are disclosed in Note 4.

(@) Amended standards adopted by the
Group:

The Group has applied the following
amended standards for the first time for
its annual reporting period commencing
on 1 January 2020:

° Definition of Material -
amendments to Hong Kong
Accounting Standard (“HKAS”) 1
and HKAS 8

. Definition of a Business —
amendments to HKFRS 3

° Interest Rate Benchmark Reform —
Phase 1 — amendments to
HKFRS 9, HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7

° Revised Conceptual Framework for
Financial Reporting

The amendments listed above did not
have any impact on the amounts
recognised in prior periods and are not
expected to significantly affect the
current or future periods.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.1

2.2

Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b)  New and amended standards issued but
not yet adopted by the Group:

Certain new and amended standards
have been published that are not
mandatory for this reporting period and
have not been early adopted by the
Group.

The Group has already commenced an
assessment of the impact of adoption of
these new and amended standards to
the Group but is not yet in a position to
state whether any substantial change to
the Group’s accounting policies and
presentation of the financial statements
will result.

Principles of consolidation

Subsidiaries are all entities over which the
Group has control. The Group controls an
entity when the Group is exposed to, or has
rights to, variable returns from its involvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect
those returns through its power to direct the
activities of the entity. Subsidiaries are fully
consolidated from the date on which control is
transferred to the Group. They are
deconsolidated from the date that control
ceases.

The acquisition method of accounting is used
to account for business combinations by the
Group.

Inter-company transactions, balances and
unrealised gains on transactions between
group companies are eliminated. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the transferred asset.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been
changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.

Non-controlling interests in the results and
equity of subsidiaries are shown separately in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes in
equity and consolidated statement of financial
position respectively.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Fe M BRRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.3

Business combinations

Except for the Reorganisation and business
combinations under common control, the
Group applies the acquisition method to
account for business combinations. The
consideration transferred for the acquisition of
a subsidiary comprises the:

° fair values of the assets transferred

° liabilities incurred to the former owners of
the acquired business

° equity interests issued by the Group

o fair value of any asset or liability resulting
from a contingent consideration
arrangement, and

° fair value of any pre-existing equity
interest in the subsidiary.

|dentifiable assets acquired and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are, with limited exceptions,
measured initially at their fair values at the
acquisition date. The Group recognises any
non-controlling interest in the acquired entity
on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis either at
fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s
proportionate share of the acquired entity’s net
identifiable assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.

The excess of the:
° consideration transferred,

° amount of any non-controlling interest in
the acquired entity, and

° acquisition-date fair value of any previous
equity interest in the acquired entity

Perfect Optronics Limited Annual Report 2020
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.3

2.4

Business combinations (Continued)

over the fair value of the net identifiable assets
acquired is recorded as goodwill. If those
amounts are less than the fair value of the net
identifiable assets of the business acquired,
the difference is recognised directly in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive
income as a bargain purchase.

Where settlement of any part of cash
consideration is deferred, the amounts payable
in the future are discounted to their present
value as at the date of exchange. The
discount rate used is the entity’s incremental
borrowing rate, being the rate at which a
similar borrowing could be obtained from an
independent financier under comparable terms
and conditions. Contingent consideration is
classified either as equity or a financial liability.
Amounts classified as a financial liability are
subsequently remeasured to fair value with
changes in fair value recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive
income.

If the business combination is achieved in
stages, the acquisition date carrying value of
the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in
the acquiree is remeasured to fair value at the
acquisition date. Any gains or losses arising
from such remeasurement are recognised in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income.

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for
at cost less impairment. Cost includes direct
attributable costs of investment. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the
Company on the basis of dividend received
and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in
subsidiaries is required upon receiving a
dividend from these investments if the dividend
exceeds the total comprehensive income of the
subsidiary in the period the dividend is
declared or if the carrying amount of the
investment in the separate financial statements
exceeds the carrying amount in the
consolidated financial statements of the
investee’s net assets including goodwill.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
mEMEHRKRKE

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.5

2.6

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided
to the chief operating decision-maker. The
chief operating decision-maker, who is
responsible for allocating resources and
assessing performance of the operating
segments, has been identified as the
directors, who make strategic decisions.

Foreign currency translation

(@)  Functional and presentation currency

[tems included in the financial
statements of each of the Group’s
entities are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is the Company’s
functional and the Group’s presentation
currency.

(b)  Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are
translated into the functional currency
using the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions or valuation
where items are re-measured. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from
the settlement of such transactions and
from the translation at year-end exchange
rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are
recognised in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income within “other
gains, net”.

Perfect Optronics Limited Annual Report 2020
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.6 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(b)

(©

Transactions and balances (Continued)

Non-monetary items that are measured
at fair value in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at
the date when the fair value was
determined. Translation differences on
assets and liabilities carried at fair value
are reported as part of the fair value
gain or loss. For example, translation
differences on non-monetary assets and
liabilities such as equities held at fair
value through profit or loss are
recognised in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income as part of the
fair value gain or loss and translation
differences on non-monetary assets such
as equities classified as fair value
through other comprehensive income are
recognised in other comprehensive
income.

Group companies

The results and financial position of all
the Group entities (none of which has the
currency of a hyperinflationary economy)
that have a functional currency different
from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency
as follows:

° assets and liabilities for each
statement of financial position
presented are translated at the
closing rate at the date of that
statement of financial position,

° income and expenses for each
income statement are translated at
average exchange rates (unless this
average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative
effect of the rates prevailing on the
transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses are
translated at the dates of the
transactions), and

° all resulting currency translation
differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Fe M BRRME

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.6 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(©

@

Group companies (Continued)

On consolidation, exchange differences
arising from the translation of any net
investment in foreign entities, and of
borrowings and other financial
instruments designated as hedges of
such investments, are recognised in
other comprehensive income. When a
foreign operation is sold or any
borrowings forming part of the net
investment are repaid, the associated
exchange differences are reclassified to
profit or loss, as part of the gain or loss
on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments
arising on the acquisition of a foreign
entity are treated as assets and liabilities
of the foreign entity and translated at the
closing rate.

Disposal of foreign operation

On the disposal of a foreign operation
(that is, a disposal of the Group’s entire
interest in a foreign operation, or a
disposal involving loss of control over
a subsidiary that includes a foreign
operation, a disposal involving loss of
joint control over a joint venture that
includes a foreign operation, or a disposal
involving loss of significant influence
over an associate that includes a foreign
operation), all of the currency translation
differences accumulated in equity in
respect of that operation attributable
to the owners of the company are
reclassified to the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.7

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at
historical cost less accumulated depreciation
and accumulated impairment losses. Historical
cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of
the item can be measured reliably. The
carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. All other repairs and
maintenance are charged to the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income during the
financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment
is calculated using the straight-line method to
allocate their cost to their residual values over
their estimated useful lives, as follows:

Over the shorter of
the term of the
leases or 5 years

Moulds and machinery 2-5 years

Leasehold
improvements

Furniture and office 3-5 years
equipment
Motor vehicles 4-5 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the
end of each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the
asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined
by comparing the proceeds with the carrying
amount and are recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive
income within “other gains, net”.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Fe M BRRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.8

2.9

Intangible assets

Club memberships

Club memberships with indefinite useful life are
stated at cost less any impairment losses.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful
life are not subject to amortisation and are
tested annually for impairment, or more
frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that they might be
impaired. Other assets are tested for
impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. An
impairment loss is recognised for the amount
by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds
its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value
less costs to sell and value in use. For the
purposes of assessing impairment, assets are
grouped at the lowest levels for which there
are separately identifiable cash flows which are
largely independent of the cash inflows from
other assets or group of assets
(cash-generating units). Non-financial assets
other than goodwill that suffered an
impairment are reviewed for possible reversal
of the impairment at the end of each reporting
period.

Investments and other financial assets

(@)  Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets
in the following measurement categories:

o those to be measured subsequently
at fair value (either through other
comprehensive income or through
profit or loss), and

° those to be measured at amortised
cost.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.10 Investments and other financial assets
(Continued)

@)

(b)

(©

Classification (Continued)

The classification depends on the entity’s
business model for managing the
financial assets and the contractual
terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains
and losses will either be recorded in
profit or loss or other comprehensive
income. For investments in equity
instruments that are not held for trading,
this will depend on whether the Group
has made an irrevocable election at the
time of initial recognition to account for
the equity investment at FVOCI.

The Group reclassifies debt investments
when and only when its business model
for managing those assets changes.

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of
financial assets are recognised on
trade-date, the date on which the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Financial assets are derecognised when
the rights to receive cash flows from the
financial assets have expired or have
been transferred and the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership.

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures
a financial asset at its fair value plus,
in the case of a financial asset not
at FVTPL, transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition of
the financial asset. Transaction costs
of financial assets carried at FVTPL are
expensed in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
mEMEHRKRKE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.10 Investments and other financial assets
(Continued)

()

Measurement (Continued)

Financial assets with embedded
derivatives are considered in their
entirety when determining whether their
cash flows are solely payment of
principal and interest.

Debt investments

Subsequent measurement of debt
instruments depends on the Group’s
business model for managing the asset
and the cash flow characteristics of the
asset. There are three measurement
categories into which the Group
classifies its debt instruments:

° Amortised cost: Assets that are
held for collection of contractual
cash flows where those cash flows
represent solely payments of
principal and interest are measured
at amortised cost. Interest income
from these financial assets is
included in finance income using
the effective interest rate method.
Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition is recognised directly
in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income and
presented in “other gains, net”
together with foreign exchange
gains and losses. Impairment
losses are presented as separate

line item in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive
income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.10 Investments and other financial assets
(Continued)

()

Measurement (Continued)

Debt investments (Continued)

FVOCI: Assets that are held for
collection of contractual cash flows
and for selling the financial assets,
where the assets’ cash flows
represent solely payments of
principal and interest, are
measured at FVOCI. Movements in
the carrying amount are taken
through other comprehensive
income, except for the recognition
of impairment gains or losses,
interest income and foreign
exchange gains and losses which
are recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive
income. When the financial asset is
derecognised, the cumulative gains
or losses previously recognised in
other comprehensive income is
reclassified from equity to profit or
loss and recognised in other gains,
net. Interest income from these
financial assets is included in
finance income using the effective
interest rate method. Foreign
exchange gains and losses are
presented in other gains, net and
impairment expenses are
presented as separate line item in
the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

FVTPL: Assets that do not meet the
criteria for amortised cost or FVOCI
are measured at FVTPL. A gain or
loss on a debt investment that is
subsequently measured at FVTPL
is recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive
income and presented within “other
gains, net” in the period in which it
arises.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Fe M BRRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.10 Investments and other financial assets
(Continued)

(©

(@)

Measurement (Continued)
Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures
all equity investments at fair value.
Where the Group’s management has
elected to present fair value gains and
losses on equity investments in other
comprehensive income, there is no
subsequent reclassification of fair value
gains and losses to profit or loss following
the derecognition of the investment.
Dividends from such investments
continue to be recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive
income as other income when the
Group’s right to receive payments is
established.

Changes in the fair value of financial
assets at FVTPL are recognised in other
gains, net in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income as applicable.
Impairment losses (and reversal of
impairment losses) on equity investments
measured at FVOCI are not reported
separately from other changes in fair
value.

Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward
looking basis the expected credit losses
associated with its debt instruments
carried at amortised cost and FVOCI.
The impairment methodology applied
depends on whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables, the Group applies
the simplified approach permitted by
HKFRS 9, which requires expected
lifetime losses to be recognised from
initial recognition of the receivables.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.1

212

2.13

2.14

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and
the net amount is reported in the consolidated
statement of financial position when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset the
recognised amounts, and there is an intention
to settle on a net basis or realise the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Cost is determined using
the weighted average method. The cost of
finished goods and work in progress
comprises raw materials and other direct
costs. Net realisable value is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of
business, the estimated costs of completion
and the estimated costs necessary to make
the sale.

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from
customers for merchandise sold or services
performed in the ordinary course of business.
If collection of trade and other receivables is
expected in one year or less (or in the normal
operating cycle of the business if longer), they
are classified as current assets. If not, they are
presented as non-current assets. Trade and
other receivables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less allowance for impairment.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the
consolidated statement of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents include cash in hand,
deposits held at call with banks, other
short-term, highly liquid investments with
original maturities of three months or less that
are readily convertible to known amounts of
cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Fe M BRRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.15

2.16

217

Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the
issue of new shares or options are shown in
equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the
proceeds.

Trade and other payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods
and services provided to the Group prior to
the end of financial year which are unpaid.
Trade and other payables are classified as
current liabilities if payment is due within one
year or less (or in the normal operating cycle
of the business if longer). If not, they are
presented as non-current liabilities. Trade and
other payables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value,
net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings
are subsequently stated at amortised cost. Any
difference between the proceeds (net of
transaction costs) and the redemption value is
recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income over the period of the
borrowings using the effective interest method.
Fees paid on the establishment of loan
facilities are recognised as transaction costs of
the loan to the extent that it is probable that
some or all of the facility will be drawn down.
In this case, the fee is deferred until the
draw-down occurs. To the extent there is no
evidence that it is probable that some or all of
the facility will be drawn down, the fee is
capitalised as a prepayment for liquidity
services and amortised over the period of the
facility to which it relates.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.17

2.19

Borrowings (Continued)

Borrowings are removed from the
consolidated statement of financial position
when the obligation specified in the contract is
discharged, cancelled or expired. The
difference between the carrying amount of a
financial liability that has been extinguished or
transferred to another party and the
consideration paid, including any non-cash
assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is
recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income as finance costs.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities
unless the Group has an unconditional right to
defer settlement of the liability for at least 12
months after the end of the reporting period.

Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial
period of time to get ready for their intended
use or sale, are added to the cost of those
assets, until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or
sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted
from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are expensed in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive
income in the period in which they are
incurred.

Current and deferred income tax

The income tax expense or credit for the
period is the tax payable on the current
period’s taxable income based on the
applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction
adjusted by changes in deferred income tax
assets and liabilities attributable to temporary
differences and to unused tax losses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Fe M BRRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.19 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

@)

(b)

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is
calculated on the basis of the tax laws
enacted or substantively enacted at the
statement of financial position date in the
countries where the Group operates and
generates taxable income. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in
tax returns with respect to situations in
which applicable tax regulation is subject
to interpretation. It establishes provisions
where appropriate on the basis of
amounts expected to be paid to the tax
authorities.

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full,
using the liability method, on temporary
differences arising between the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, deferred income
tax liabilities are not recognised if they
arise from the initial recognition of
goodwill. Deferred income tax is also not
accounted for if it arises from initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither accounting nor
taxable profit or loss. Deferred income
tax is determined using tax rates (and
laws) that have been enacted or
substantially enacted by the end of the
reporting period and are expected to
apply when the related deferred income
tax asset is realised or the deferred
income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are
recognised only if it is probable that
future taxable amounts will be available
to utilise those temporary differences and
losses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.19 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(b)

Deferred income tax (Continued)

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities
are not recognised for temporary
differences between the carrying amount
and tax bases of investments in foreign
operations where the company is able to
control the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences and it is probable
that the differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities
are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset current income
tax assets and liabilities and when the
deferred income tax balances relate to
the same taxation authority. Current
income tax assets and liabilities are
offset where the entity has a legally
enforceable right to offset and intends
either to settle on a net basis, or to
realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

Current and deferred income tax is
recognised in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, except to the
extent that it relates to items recognised
in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity. In this case, the tax is
also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

2.20 Employee benefits

@)

Pension obligations

The Group pays contributions to
defined contribution plans in Hong
Kong. The schemes are generally
funded through payments to separate
trustee-administered funds, determined
by periodic calculations.

A defined contribution plan is a pension
plan under which the Group pays fixed
contributions into a separate entity. The
Group has no legal or constructive
obligations to pay further contributions if
the fund does not hold sufficient assets
to pay all employees the benefits relating
to employee service in the current and
prior periods.
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Fe M BRRME

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.20 Employee benefits (Continued)

@)

(b)

Pension obligations (Continued)

The Group pays contributions to
administered pension plans on a
mandatory, contractual or voluntary
basis. The Group has no further payment
obligations once the contributions have
been paid. The contributions are
recognised as employee benefit
expenses when they are due. Prepaid
contributions are recognised as an asset
to the extent that a cash refund or a
reduction in the future payments is
available.

The Group has also participated in the
defined contribution plans administered
by the relevant authorities in the PRC
and Taiwan for its employees. The Group
contributes on a monthly basis to
defined contribution retirement benefit
plans organised by the relevant
authorities. The relevant authorities
undertake to assume the retirement
benefit obligations payable to all existing
and future retired employees for
post-retirement benefits beyond the
contributions made. The assets of these
plans are held separately from those of
the Group in independently administered
funds managed by the relevant
authorities. Contributions to these plans
are expensed as incurred.

Bonus plans

The expected cost of bonus payments
wholly due within 12 months after the
balance sheet date are recognised as a
liability where the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a
result of services rendered by employees
and a reliable estimate of the obligation
can be made.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.20 Employee benefits (Continued)

(c) Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave
are recognised when they accrue to
employees. A provision is made for the
estimated liability for annual leave as a
result of services rendered by employees
up to the statement of financial position
date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and
maternity leave are not recognised until
the time of leave.

2.21 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has
a present legal or constructive obligation as a
result of past events; it is probable that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle
the obligation; and the amount can be reliably
estimated. Provisions are not recognised for
future operating losses. Provision for an
onerous contract is recognised when the
unavoidable costs of meeting the obligations
under the contract exceed the economic
benefits expected to be received. The
unavoidable costs under a contract reflect the
least net cost of exiting from the contract,
which is the lower of the cost of fulfilling the
contract and any compensation or penalties
arising from failure to fulfil the contract.

Where there are a number of similar
obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will
be required in settlement is determined by
considering the class of obligations as a
whole. A provision is recognised even if the
likelihood of an outflow with respect to anyone
item included in the same class of obligations
may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value
of the expenditures expected to be required to
settle the obligation using a pre-tax rate that
reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to
the obligation. The increase in the provision
due to passage of time is recognised as
interest expenses.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.22 Revenue recognition

@)

(b)

Sales of goods

Sales of goods are recognised when
control of the products has transferred,
being when the products are delivered to
the customer, the customer has
accepted the products, the collection of
the related consideration is probable and
there is no unfulfiled obligation that
could affect the customer’s acceptance
of the products.

A receivable is recognised when the
goods are delivered as this is the point
in time that the consideration is
unconditional because only the passage
of time is required before the payment is
due.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised on a time-
proportion basis using the effective
interest method.

2.23 Earnings per share

@

Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by
dividing:

° the profit attributable to owners of
the Company, excluding any costs
of servicing equity other than
ordinary shares

° by the weighted average number of
ordinary shares outstanding during
the financial year, adjusted for
bonus elements in ordinary shares
issued during the year and
excluding treasury shares.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.23 Earnings per share (Continued)

(b)  Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the
figures used in the determination of basic
earnings per share to take into account:

° the after-income tax effect of
interest and other financing costs
associated with dilutive potential
ordinary shares, and

o the weighted average number of
additional ordinary shares that
would have been outstanding
assuming the conversion of all
dilutive potential ordinary shares.

2.24 Dividend income

Dividends are received from financial assets
measured at FVTPL and at FVOCI. Dividends
are recognised as other income in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive
income when the right to receive payment is
established. This applies even if they are paid
out of pre-acquisition profits, unless the
dividend clearly represents a recovery of part
of the cost of an investment. In this case, the
dividend is recognised in other comprehensive
income if it relates to an investment measured
at FVOCI. However, the investment may need
to be tested for impairment as a
consequence.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.25 Leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the
risks and rewards of ownership were not
transferred to the Group as lessee were
classified as operating leases. Payments made
under operating leases (net of any incentives
received from the lessor) were charged to
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
period of the lease.

From 1 January 2019, leases are recognised
as a right-of-use asset and a corresponding
liability at the date at which the leased asset is
available for use by the Group.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are
initially measured on a present value basis.
Lease liabilities include the net present value of
the following lease payments:

o fixed payments (including in-substance
fixed payments), less any lease
incentives receivable

° variable lease payment that are based on
an index or a rate, initially measured
using the index or rate as at the
commencement date

° amounts expected to be payable by the
Group under residual value guarantees

° the exercise price of a purchase option if
the Group is reasonably certain to
exercise that option, and

° payments of penalties for terminating the
lease, if the lease term reflects the
Group exercising that option

Lease payments to be made under reasonably
certain extension options are also included in
the measurement of the liability.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.25 Leases (Continued)

The lease payments are discounted using the
interest rate implicit in the lease. If that rate
cannot be readily determined, which is
generally the case for leases in the Group, the
lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is used,
being the rate that the individual lessee would
have to pay to borrow the funds necessary to
obtain an asset of similar value to the
right-of-use asset in a similar economic
environment with similar terms, security and
conditions.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate,
the Group, where possible, uses recent
third-party financing received by the individual
lessee as a starting point, adjusted to reflect
changes in financing conditions since third
party financing was received.

Lease payments are allocated between
principal and finance cost. The finance cost is
charged to profit or loss over the lease period
so as to produce a constant periodic rate of
interest on the remaining balance of the
liability for each period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost
comprising the following:

° the amount of the initial measurement of
lease liability

° any lease payments made at or before
the commencement date less any lease
incentives received

° any initial direct costs, and

° restoration costs.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.25

2.26

Leases (Continued)

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated
over the shorter of the asset’s useful life and
the lease term on a straight-line basis. If the
Group is reasonably certain to exercise a
purchase option, the right-of-use asset is
depreciated over the underlying asset’s useful
life.

Payments associated with short-term leases of
all leases of low-value assets are recognised
on a straight-line basis over the lease term as
an expense in profit or loss. Short-term leases
are leases with a lease term of 12 months or
less.

Government subsidies

Subsidies from the government are recognised
at their fair value where there is a reasonable
assurance that the subsidies will be received
and the Group will comply with all attached
conditions.

Government subsidies relating to costs are
deferred and recognised in the profit or loss
over the period necessary to match them with
the costs that they are intended to
compensate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1

Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of
financial risks: market risk (including foreign
exchange risk and cash flow and fair value
interest rate risk), credit risk, liquidity risk and
price risk. The Group’s overall risk
management programme focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks
to minimise potential adverse effects on the
Group’s financial performance. Risk
management is carried out by the senior
management of the Group.

(@) Market risk

() Foreign exchange risk

The Group is primarily exposed to
foreign exchange risk arising from
United States dollars (“USD”),
Renminbi (“RMB”) and New Taiwan
dollars (“TWD”).

Foreign exchange risk arises when
future commercial transactions,
recognised assets and liabilities are
denominated in a currency that is
not the entity’s functional currency.
Management periodically reviews
assets and liabilities held in
currencies other than the entity’s
functional currency to ensure that
net exposure is kept at an
acceptable level. The Group does
not enter into any arrangement to
hedge its foreign exchange rate
risk.

The Group manages its foreign
exchange risk by closely monitoring
the movement of the foreign
currency rates. In the opinion of
the directors, HK$ are reasonably
stable against the USD under the
Linked Exchange Rate System, and
accordingly, no sensitivity analysis
with respect to the USD against
HK$ is performed.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(@) Market risk (Continueqd)

(0

(i)

Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

The directors of the Company are
of the opinion that the impact on
exchange differences for TWD and
RMB are immaterial as at
31 December 2020 and
31 December 2019 due to the low
volume of transactions and minimal
amount of balances, and
accordingly no sensitivity analysis is
performed.

Cash flow and fair value interest
rate risk

Interest rate risk relates to the risk
that the fair value or cash flows of
a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market
interest rates. The Group’s interest
rate risk arises from bank
balances. Other than bank
balances, the Group does not have
significant interest-bearing assets
or liabilities.

At 31 December 2020, if interest
rates on bank balances had been
100 basis points higher/lower, with
all other variables held constant, the
pre-tax loss for the year would have
been approximately HK$764,000
(2019: HK$703,000) lower/higher,
mainly as a result of higher/
lower interest income from bank
balances.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3

(Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

@)

Market risk (Continued)

(i)

Price risk

The Group’s exposure to price risk
arises from investments held by the
Group and classified in the
consolidated statement of financial
position either as FVOCI or at
FVTPL.

At 31 December 2020, if the fair
values of the investments classified
as financial assets at FVTPL and
FVOCI had been 10% higher/lower,
with all other variables held
constant, the Group’s pre-tax loss
and other components of equity
would have been approximately
HK$5,955,000 lower/higher (2019:
HK$5,754,000 lower/higher) and
approximately HK$188,000 higher/
lower (2019: HK$267,000 higher/
lower) respectively. Pre-tax loss for
the year would decrease/increase
as a result of gains/losses on
financial asset classified as at
FVTPL. Other components of
equity would increase/decrease as
a result of gains/losses on financial
asset classified as FVOCI.
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(b)  Credit risk

Credit risk is managed on a group basis.
Credit risk arises from trade and other
receivables, restricted bank deposits and
bank balances. The carrying amounts of
these balances represent the Group’s
maximum exposure to credit risk in
relation to financial assets. The credit
risk is monitored on an ongoing basis
with reference to the financial position of
the debtors, past experience and other

factors.

The Group has policies

in place to

ensure that the sales of products are
made to customers with appropriate
credit histories and the Group performs
regular credit evaluations of its major

customers.
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b)

(©

Credit risk (Continued)

The Group applies the lifetime expected
loss provision, as permitted under
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments, for all
trade and bills receivables.

The Group considers the credit risk
characteristics of the trade and bills
receivables to measure the expected
credit loss (“ECL”). For the trade and
bills receivables, the Group has
assessed the ECL by considering
historical default rates, existing market
conditions and forward-looking
information. Based on the Group’s
assessment, ECL rate of trade and bills
receivables is close to zero. Therefore,
the loss allowance provision for these
trade and bills receivables balances was
not material.

Restricted bank deposits and bank
balances are deposited in reputable
banks. Management does not expect
any losses from non-performance by
these banks.

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management
includes maintaining sufficient cash and
marketable securities, the availability of
funding through an adequate amount of
committed credit facilities and the ability
to settle the payables of the Group.

The table below analyses the Group’s
financial liabilities into relevant maturity
groupings based on the remaining period
at the date of the statement of financial
position to the contractual maturity date.
The amounts disclosed in the table are
the contractual undiscounted cash flows.
Balances due within 12 months equal
their carrying balances, as the impact of
discounting is not significant.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GeMBRERME

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 MBERER(E)
(Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 HMERKBEZRE)
(c)  Liquidity risk (Continued) (c) mEZEZEFE(E)
Less than Between
1 year 1 to 5 years Total
—F UK —ERHE et
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FAT FAT FAT
At 31 December 2020 R=-TBE-ZTF
+=A=+—H
Trade payables JE - BR 3K 44,885 — 44,885
Other payables H e R 9,403 — 9,403
Lease liabilities HEBE 4,905 7,591 12,496
59,193 7,591 66,784
At 31 December 2019 R=-Z—hH &
+=ZA=+-—H
Trade payables JE - AR 3K 14,467 — 14,467
Other payables H M FE 3R 4,008 — 4,008
Lease liabilities HEBRE 5,735 9,453 15,188
24,210 9,453 33,663
3.2 Capital management 32 EXER
The Group’s objectives when managing capital AEEERESHNBEERRERE

are to safeguard the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern in order to
provide returns for shareholders and benefits
for other stakeholders and to maintain an
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of
capital.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the
debt-to-asset ratio. The ratio is calculated as
total debt divided by total assets. Total debt is
calculated as interest-bearing borrowings. In
order to maintain or adjust the capital
structure, the Group may adjust the amount of
dividends paid to shareholders, return capital
to shareholders, issue new shares and sell
assets to reduce debit.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

3.3

Fair value estimation

Financial instruments carried at fair value are
analysed by valuation method. The different
levels have been defined as follows:

° Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities
(level 1).

° Inputs other than quoted prices included

within level 1 that are observable for the
assets or liabilities, either directly (that is,
as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived
from prices) (level 2).

° Inputs for the assets or liabilities that are
not based on observable market data
(that is, unobservable inputs) (level 3).

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial
assets, including cash and cash equivalents,
and trade, bills and other receivables; and the
Group’s financial liabilities, including bank
borrowings, trade and other payables
approximate their fair values due to their short
maturities.

The nominal values less any estimated credit
adjustments for financial assets and liabilities
with a maturity of less than one year are
assumed to approximate their fair values. The
fair value of financial liabilities for disclosure
purposes is estimated by discounting the
future contractual cash flows at the current
market interest rate that is available to the
Group for similar financial instruments.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE M EHRERKNE
3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 HXRBER(E)
(Continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

N S EE M ()

w
w
\

The following table presents the carrying value
of financial instruments measured at fair value
at the consolidated statement of financial
position across the three levels.

TRIM=AARR R A P HARR
REAARBEAEZERTARE

7

Tt

Fair value measurement as at 31 December 2020

R-ZEB-_EF+-_A=+—HZAAEEFE
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
$£1/E $28 $E3E ot
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
B TER FHET FET
Recurring fair value REEQIAEE
measurements TE
Financial asset at FVTPL ?E’D\fﬁ EEA
EmZeMmEE
— Unlisted preferred — FLEMELR
shares — — 59,547 59,547
Financial asset at FVOCI & 2 4 BET A
Ezmlim
SEEE
— Unlisted equity — JEm ™ % 1
securities 3 - - 1,876 1,876
- - 61,423 61,423
Fair value measurement as at 31 December 2019
RZE—NFFT+ZA=+—HZAREEE=E
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
%1 FoE E3E st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET FE T FHET
Recurring fair value REMEAREE
measurements iTE
Financial asset at FVTPL 2 QA # B{EsT A
Banze@EE
— Unlisted preferred — EEMEER
shares — - 57,538 57,538
Financial asset at FVOCI & A 7 BEzH A
Emermlkmz
S REE
— Unlisted equity — 3EEm M %
securities E 3 - - 2,673 2,673
— — 60,211 60,211

There were no transfers between levels 1, 2
and 3 during the year (2019: Nil).
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Fe M BRRME

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3
(Continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

Fair value measurements using significant
unobservable inputs (level 3)

The following table presents the changes in
level 3 instruments for the years ended
31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019:

MRk EE (&)

3.3 AREEME (A

BHAEATHBEBAHBHRL
EEE (F3E)

Unlisted Unlisted

preferred equity
shares securities Total

El ) El )
BER BERS et

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TETT TETT TETT

Opening balance R-ZE-AE—-F—HB2

1 January 2019 FNE R 54,988 2,652 57,640
Fair value gain on PE M2 = ﬁﬁwz

revaluation recognised  Efh A & B E W

in other comprehensive

income - 21 21
Fair value gain on A LAt YR o 5 B T R

revaluation recognised B A i EE W

in other gains, net 2,550 — 2,550
Closing balance R=ZZE-AF+=A

31 December 2019 ST -HBZFEREHR 57,538 2,673 60,211
Fair value loss on REMEEY EERZ

revaluation recognised ~ EfH A 4 EEEE

in other comprehensive

income - (797) (797)
Fair value gain on REM U 2= FERER

revaluation recognised — EffH A7 EERZE

in other gains, net 2,009 — 2,009
Closing balance R=ZZ-ZBF+=A

31 December 2020 =t+t-BREREH 59,547 1,876 61,423
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

Fair value measurements using significant
unobservable inputs (level 3) (Continued)

The following table summarises the valuation
techniques used and the quantitative
information about the significant unobservable

inputs used in level 3 fair value
measurements:

Significant unobservable
Description Valuation technique inputs
B B itTJE?ﬁJA&E

3

GeMBRERME

MRk EEE)

3.3 2RAREEME (A

BHAEATTBEBAHBHRL
EEE (F3E) (&)
TREANEIE AR EE?

ﬁﬁﬁfﬂiﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ T\EJ
BENTEEHR:

N

!
A

iz el
% e

Relationship of unobservable inputs
Value to fair value

BE TTERB HBHRAAEENEE

(@) Preferred shares 2020: Market comparable companies
issued by a private and equity value allocation with
entity option-pricing method

Volatility

~AAERRETZ —EoTETHAHBRAARER KE
BEK HEEEzokRREE

2019: Market comparable companies
and equity value allocation with
option-pricing method
ZE-NEHEALRRARER
BETBEIRREER
(b) Ordinary shares issued Discounted cash flow method (2019:  WAGC
by a private entity same)

~ARERREAZ

BRRERAAE(CE-NE BR)

Valuations of the above financial assets held
by the Group as at the end of the reporting
period were performed by independent
valuers.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS

The preparation of financial statements requires the
use of accounting estimates which, by definition, will
seldom equal the actual results. Management also
needs to exercise judgement in applying the
Group’s accounting policies.

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated.
They are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events that
may have a financial impact on the entity and that
are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

MEFHERKAE

4

53.21%  10% increase/(decrease) in the volatility
(2019: 54.19%) would result in (decrease)/increase in fair
value by approximately (HK$344,000)/
HK$157,000 (2019: (HK$175,000)/
HK$367,000)
5321% RIBEM/ (BD)10%  BL AR BEE
(ZB-NE: ) /8 M#) (344,000 L) /157,00035
54.19% ) T(ZB-N%: (175000% 7T)
/367,000 7T)

15.42%  10% increase/(decrease) in WACC would
(2019: 13.61%) result in (decrease)/increase in fair value
by approximately (HK$224,000)/
HK$280,000 (2019: (HK$260,000)/

HK$364,000)
15.42% nu%¥ﬁ§$ﬁ2$iﬂ£tu/<m)wo% B2
(Z2-h%E: DR BECED) /M (224,000% )
1861%) /280, ooo/%m( T (260,000
/3640002570
AEBRBREBRRAMIFTOUA LR
EEMGEHRB Y GEMET -

BA 58 & =t b 5 K& M

BAEVBHRRALET G BRR
F ABMLARIESESNERER B8
ENTERAASEN S BRFELH
B o

&t R HIE T A RT G - BRI AT RHI
DERBEERREMEAREL - 27
EHEBEANBEERREBEARRE
BHRREMFALY -

BExEXxEHERAT 2020 F3R
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mEMEHRKRKE

4  CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

4.1 Critical accounting estimates

@)

(b)

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business, less estimated selling
expenses. These estimates are based on
the current market condition and the
historical experience of selling products
of similar nature. It could change
significantly as a result of changes in
consumer preferences and competitor
actions in response to severe industry
cycles. Management reassesses these
estimations by each date of the
statement of financial position to ensure
inventories are shown at the lower of
cost and net realisable value.

Estimation of the fair value of certain
financial assets

The fair value of financial instruments
that are not traded in an active market
is determined by using valuation
techniques. The Group uses its
judgement to select a variety of methods
and makes assumptions that are mainly
based on market conditions existing at
the end of each reporting period.

4.2 Critical accounting judgements

@)

Impairment of financial assets

The loss allowances for financial assets
are based on assumptions about risk of
default and expected loss rates. The
Group uses judgement in making these
assumptions and selecting the inputs to
the impairment calculation, based on the
Group’s past history, existing market
conditions as well as forward looking
estimates at the end of each reporting
period.
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BA & = ot fh 5t & M (&)

41 BEREF(LE

@)

(b)

FERER T ELFE

FEMRAZ2RFE/INBAEE
5B 12 7 1 5 51 & R (4 7T 35
EMx - REMAFDRBHE
BUZEmA B AT KB EE
RIEL - HAlge EEBE S
BEMBEFHTRYBRITE
BRWITEMER KBRS -
EEEERNSEMBIMNEA
B A FMEET - R T
B A B R B FEME 2
B ABIKE IR °

ETETHEEN LA EELRL

BREHABRTMEEENESRT
AR BEMNBGHERMNE
JE o AN EF A A B E B S R
A A ERRIEEE RS H
REROHHBERIELBRE -

42 EERESFTHE

@)

& & E B

TREEBBREBLIENEH
B R K TE BB L R AR
RIEHL - AEBEEHZER
RIGEBRESENG ABIE
B REBEREREMHRHAE
BB ERE S ~ 3R A ™A
M 51 T o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

4.2 Critical accounting judgements (Continued)

(b) Determination of the lease term

In determining the lease term,
management considers all facts and
circumstances that create an economic
incentive to exercise an extension option,
or not exercise a termination option.
Extension options (or periods after
termination options) are only included in
the lease term if the lease is reasonably
certain to be extended (or not
terminated).

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information reported to the directors of the
Company, being the chief operating decision-maker,
for the purposes of resource allocation and
assessment focuses on the revenue analysis by
products.

Previously, the Group had disclosed two reportable
operating segments, including the display products
segment and the optics products segment. Due to
the recent decline in contribution from optics
products segment to the Group, no other discrete
financial information is provided for the assessment
of different business activities, other than the
Group’s results and financial position as a whole
since 2020. Accordingly, only entity-wide
disclosures, major customers and geographic
information are presented.

4

GeMBRERME

BA & = ot fh 5t R M (&)

42 BEERGITHEEFE)
(b) ETHH

BT BEEZBTK
TELERERERTITER L
EERERNKESEANMESE
R AR o e FH B AT A 32 B E
SRR (RAERIL)  TERE
B GRIDESRREE T
SFAEMZA-

7 #B &

ARAREE (BIERELRRE) 2HIA
ETERDEMHENENBEENRER
gD H WA D -

AEBEZHKETMERTRELEDE
BRBTERDMBEABERDE - AR
M EEMRDBHAEEO TR TR
BT _TFE RIAKENEEXAE
KBRS - WEREHERE BB LT HE
HREFHEERIRER LS - Bt #
2V EREREE FTEXPRHMER
o

B=xEAFRKRALFT 2020 FI]
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Fe M BRRME

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5

(@)  The Group’s revenues from its major products
for the years ended 31 December 2020 and
2019 are as follows:

DEER (A

@ HBE-Z-ZTFR-ZT—NAE+=
A=T—HBLEFE AEEXBE
FEERMIWAFHINNT :

2019
—ZT-AF
HK$’000
FHE T
Thin film transistor liquid EERERERSEET

crystal display (“TFT-LCD”) ([ TFT-LCD J) E iR & 18
panels and modules 4 138,466 135,040
Polarisers 1R SRk 35,794 4,721
Electronic signage BEFEER 11,774 7,749
Optics products HEE M 6,353 2,458
Light guide plates & iR 1,440 2,332
Integrated circuits EKER 1,196 5,325
Others HA 11,950 8,982
206,973 166,607

(b)  Segment revenue by customers’ geographical
location

The amount of the Group’s revenue from
external customers by locations where the
Group’s products are delivered to its
customers is shown in the table below.

b)) BREFPHMEMLEZ S D BKA

AEBEIZERE P R E Mt 2
oM EPELERAZER
e

2020 2019

—E-EF —E-NF

HK$°000 HK$’'000

TER FATT

Hong Kong B 157,261 126,768
The People’s Republic of hEARKEME(TFE])

China (the “PRC") 42,764 31,350

Taiwan =N 6,948 8,489

206,973 166,607
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RE M EHRERKNE

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

()

Revenues from major customers who have
individually contributed 10% or more of the
total revenue of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2020 are disclosed as follows:

5

DEER (A

()

Bz %

F+-A=+—8H1t
FE RAXEFF(ZEREER
W A10%B A E) W A BT ¢

optics products and related electronic components,
and other products to external parties.

FEEMEMERTIRALABERA -

B=xEAFRKRALFT 2020 FI]

2019
—E-NF
HK$’000
FAT
Customer A ZHEA 36,130 4,360
Customer B =FB 31,589 8,489
67,719 12,849
(d)  An analysis of the Group’s non-current assets d REENE AEEZHFRHEE
(other than financial assets and deferred (TEESREERBEMBEHIEEL
income tax assets) by location of assets is as E)DaT
follows:
Hong Kong The PRC Taiwan Total
BB e =) ] et
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHETT T T FHET
As at 31 December R-E-ZE5+=A
2020: =+—8:
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and mE - WERFEE
equipment 81 644 110 835
Intangible assets mREE 4,200 1,122 — 5,322
Right-of-use assets TREEE 2,806 6,932 129 9,867
7,087 8,698 239 16,024
As at 31 December R-ZE—-NE+=A
2019: =+-—8:
Non-current assets IRBEE
Property, plant and N YR
equipment 253 1,386 93 1,732
Intangible assets mEEE 4,200 1,122 - 5,322
Right-of-use assets FTRHEEE 3,402 8,698 192 12,292
7,855 11,206 285 19,346
6 REVENUE 6 WA
Revenue represents the sales of display products, WANEERT~NER  KEERIEBSE

37
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Fe M BRRME

7 OTHER GAINS, NET 7 Hialwz=FE

2020 2019
= —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET TET

Fair value changes in financial asset Z QA A BETABRZ &

at FVTPL MEEAABERZY 2,009 2,550
Government subsidies DS 7 B 1,349 231
Net exchange (losses)/gains fEH (&8, W= FE (110) 261
Gain on disposal of property, plant HEWE WMENM&REZ

and equipment I &= - 10
Written-off of property, plant and ¥ ¥ - BE R &R #H

equipment - (58)
Others HAth 8 75

3,256 3,069
8 EXPENSES BY NATURE 8 BHMEBEESTWEHR
Cost of sales, distribution and selling expenses, HEKARA  DHEEERE —MRITH
general and administrative expenses and research AERMAREAERZSTAT

and development expenses are analysed as follows:

2019
—T— N
HK$’000
FAT
Cost of inventories sold (Note 20) & 177 & ik 2~ (Fff 5520) 198,138 188,306
Processing and sub-contracting MIRINBER
expenses 1,595 1,076
Transportation expenses EWER 1,370 1,178
Write back of provision for obsolete [ & 17 & # # #% @
inventories (Note 20) (Mg 5E20) (14,832) (26,849)
Auditor’s remuneration 1% SR B &
— Audit services — FEHARTS 800 800
— Non-audit services — FEFEFTRH 77 95
Employee benefit expenses (Note 9) {& & #& Fll 5 5% (Fff 519) 23,911 21,533
Depreciation of property, plant and 1% - &= M REFTE
equipment (Note 14) (Mg 5E14) 979 1,403
Depreciation of right-of-use assets f& Fj 4 & &= #T & (M1 5£15)
(Note 15) 5,565 5,464
Operating lease rentals in respect EFELHERE S
of buildings (Note 15) (Fff 5£15) 426 855
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GeMBRERME

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES 9 EERAEX
2020 2019
—E-ZF —E-hEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
TER T T
Short-term employee benefits (Note) 2 Hi1& & 42 | (M 5%) 23,383 20,271
Post-employment benefits & B iR IK1E T
— defined contribution plans — EREMHEREE 528 1,262
Total employee benefit expenses, & B & | fi X 4258 -
including directors’ remuneration PRESEW: 23,911 21,533

Note: For the year ended 31 December 2020, short-term employee
benefits include salary, wages, bonus paid to employees,
and insurance premium for staff insurance schemes, but
excluding depreciation and finance cost associated with the
lease of the staff quarter, amounting to HK$568,000 (2019:
HK$974,000) and HK$11,000 (2019: HK$63,000)

respectively.

(a) Post-employment benefits — defined contribution plans

No forfeited contributions for the Group is available to
reduce the contribution payment in the future years.
Contributions to schemes vest immediately.

(b) Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose remuneration were the highest in
the Group for the year include three directors (2019: three)
whose remuneration are reflected in the analysis shown in
Note 32. The emoluments payable to the remaining two
(2019: two) individuals during the year are as follows:

Mi: HE-_Z-_2F+-A=+—BILFE 55
EERFEEINTEES S ITE Hek
ETIRBAZNRE HTEREHEEIESEA
BT E R E A5 B A #568,0008 T (=
T — L : 974,000 7T) K&11,0008 T (= &
— L : 63,0005 7T) °

(@ EERKEFN — EEMHARE

7 5% B B 108 U £ R AR AR R R E
R - Rt B ER AR E -

(b) BEREHAL

FAXKELARSFIALEE=%E%

ZE-NEF =) A H R 320
HOAWES FRENBRTHE(ZZ—AN
FoMBIALZHMEMT

2019
—T-NF
HK$’000
F& T

Basic salaries, staff quarter expenses, HAT&E - 8TIFE&MX -
other allowances and benefits in kind b2 85 & B ¥ 18 7 2,064 1,920
Discretionary bonuses BB IEA 144 23
Contribution to pension scheme RARET B R 36 32
2,244 1,975

B=xEAFRKRALFT 2020 FI]
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Fe M BRRME

9 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES 9 EETEAMEX(E)
(Continued)
Note: (Continued) M (&)
(b) Five highest paid individuals (Continued) (b) AEBEERHFALE)

The number of highest paid non-director individuals whose
remunerations for the year fell within the following bands:

Emolument bands:
HK$nil to HK$1,000,000
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000

B g
F )8 7T £1,000,0007% 7T
1,500,001% JT 22,000,000/ 7T

FEEHMNFUTHENFEETESH
ALTHAENT :

2020 2019
—E_EF —E—NEF

1 1
1 1

For the year ended 31 December 2020, no remuneration
(2019: Nil) was paid by the Group to the directors or the
five highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or
upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of
office, and no arrangement under which a director or the
five highest paid individuals waived or agreed to waive any
of the remuneration.

BHE-ZT-FTF+-_A=+—HLEFE 1%
ERMEFRAEHHMA T A EME
B EAEMAREBMERI S EERIEE -
EAMNEEXAAEERTFHALTHERRE
HWEFMOLHE(CZE—hE &)

10 FINANCE COSTS, NET 10 BB ERAFEE
2019
—ZE-NF
HK$’000
FAET
Finance income B 75 0 A
Interest income on bank deposits B 17 1F 2 2 | B U A 31 170
. 8 ] 170
Finance costs H%ER
Interest expenses on: TS EEGREMAE
Bank loans IRITE K — (275)
Lease liabilities HEAE (678) (890)
e ©678) ... (1,165)
Finance costs, net B 75 & A58 (647) (999)
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GeMBRERME

INCOME TAX CREDIT 11 BHESR
Taxation on profits has been calculated on the F AR M) 2 B IE B AR Ad 5T AR B B AR
estimated assessable profits for the year at the SEEEBMENBER MERTERBOT
applicable rates of taxation prevailing in the EERREBBED - 28 REHIRE
countries/places in which the Group operates, o
based on existing legislation, interpretations and
practices in respect thereof.
The amount of income tax credited to the RiFE2HEWR KT ANMGEHREE
consolidated statement of comprehensive income
represents:
2019
—E-NEF
HK$’000
FAT
Current income tax: B HAER
— Outside Hong Kong — HEHEI - 4
— Adjustments in respect of prior — HWBAFERNFAE
years (6) (51)
Total current income tax EHmERERE (6) (47)

Deferred income tax — Origination

EEFEH — EER

and reversal of temporary B E = £ (i 5225)
differences (Note 25) (11) (94)
Income tax credit FTi3HiiE & (17) (141)

B=xEAFRKRALFT 2020 FI]
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Fe M BRRME

11 INCOME TAX CREDIT (Continued) 11 EHRIER (&)
The income tax on the Group’s loss before income 7 5% Bt B P15 1 AT U85 98 1) PTAS B S 42 AR
tax differs from the theoretical amount that would AEBEBRNBEREENERSBEMNE
arise using the tax rate applicable to the Group as 2Rl
follows:
2020 2019
—E-EF —E-hEF
~ ik$'000 HK$'000
FTER FAT
Loss before income tax bR AT 1S 0 AT S 18 (18,547) (35,789)
Tax calculated at Hong Kong tax 12 & & T £16.5%:T E 1
rate of 16.5% (2019: 16.5%) H(ZE—NF 16.5%) (3,060) (5,905)
Tax effects of: U EENMBTE
— Different taxation rate in — EMalEEER TR
other jurisdictions = 233 119
— Income not subject to tax — BAZBHKA (652) (531)
— Expenses not deductible for — TAER A E K
tax purposes & A 7 293
— Utilisation of previously — 5 F 00 Al 00 A B SR
unrecognised tax losses MIAE A (912 (19)
— Tax losses for which no — WEERBELEREH
deferred income tax asset BEMNBIES TEI
was recognised ) 4,273 5,949
Adjustments in respect of prior HBTFENFHE
years (6) (51)
Income tax credit FriSEiE % (17) (141)
12 BASIC AND DILUTED LOSS PER 12 BREXREBEEE
SHARE
Basic loss per share for the year is calculated by FANNEREAEBNIEAARESIEAR
dividing the loss attributable to equity holders of the AEGEEEBBRNRFERNNEEITE AR Z N
Company by the weighted average number of BTt E -
ordinary shares in issue during the year.
2020 2019
Loss attributable to equity holders of ZN A @l #E 28 A FE(EE
the Company (HK$’000) B (FHT) (16,883) (34,078)
Weighted average number of BT RR 2 INEFY
ordinary shares in issue (TR
(thousands) 1,483,687 1,483,687
Basic and diluted loss per share (HK &% E A 7 #5% 5548 (B
cents per share) L) (1.14) (2.30)
For the purpose of determining the diluted loss per METEREEEENS  ARAEER
share amount, no adjustment has been made to the Hz—_Z2E_Z2FrR_ZTE—NLF+=
basic loss per share amount for the years ended =+ HIEEYETMEETEEEE
31 December 2020 and 2019 as the Group had no TEK MTERZSEFEZ2INERE
potentially dilutive ordinary shares in issue during AREBELAE-

these years.
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SUBSIDIARIES

The following is a
31 December 2020 and 2019:

Place of incorporation/

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

13 B F
FR-_ZFE-—NF+_A=+—

list of subsidiaries at A =

GeMBRERME

HEB ARSI T -

Proportion of

Proportion of

Name

tE

establishment and kind of
legal entity
HRAL/AIBERE
ERRES

Principal activities and
place of operation

IREBRALHY

Rightone Resources Limited

Rightone Resources Limited

Shinwa Technology Limited
HEHRERAR
Sinosky Resources Limited
Sinosky Resources Limited
Dexing Investment Limited
Dexing Investment Limited
Yuan Tai Investment Limited
EaRABRAA

Perfect Display Limited

EXERARAA

Perfect Sky Technology Limited

EXHRARAA

K-clean Limited (formerly known as
Dexing Technology Development
Limited)

K-clean Limited (BT 78 & A B B &
BRA)

Yuan Mei Xin Technology
(Shenzhen) Company Limited

BXEHR(RINERAD

British Virgin Islands
(‘BVI"), limited liabilty
company

ZERAEB(ZBAR
#BIERAA

BVI, limited liability
company

AERRESARAA

BVI, limited liability
company

AERRESARAA

BVI, limited liability
company

EBRRERERAA

Samoa, fimited liability
company

BEGARLA

Hong Kong, limited liability
company

BEARLA

Hong Kong, limited liability
company

BEARLA

Hong Kong, limited liability
company

BEARLA

The PR, limited liability
company

TAERAR

Investment holding

RESR

Holding of patents
REEA
Investment holding
REZK
Investment holding
REZK
Investment holding
REZK

Trading of display panels
and related electronic
components in Hong
Kong

REAREBTARRE
BETHH

Electronic product
application development
in Hong Kong

RERENETERER
kS

Dormant

Lk 3

Wholesaling, import and
export of display panels
and related electronic
components and
provision of technical
support and related
services n the PRC

ReBREETARRA
HETHAMSE £
NREA - RS
HXEREBRE

ordinary shares Proportion of ordinary shares Proportion of
Particulars of issued share ~ directly held by the ordinary shares held  directly held by the ordinary shares held
capital/paid up capital Company by the Group Company by the Group
BETRG/ ARRERRAL A5MEEz  KLFEEREZ LS 1 13-yl
BAREZRE EBRILA EERLA EBRILA EERLA
(%) (%) () (%)
2020 2020 2019 2019
=t Jat 23 =t 23 “%-1E “2-1%
10,000 ordinary shares at no 100 100 100 100
par value
10000kEAEEER
1 ordinary share at no par - 100 - 100
value
REAESER
1 ordinary share at no par - 100 - 100
value
REAESER
1 ordinary share at no par - 100 - 100
value
REAESER
100 ordinary shares of USD1 - 100 - 100
each
00RERABIETEER
38,000,000 ordinary shares - 100 - 100
38,0000001 & &k
1 ordinary share - 100 - 100
1REBR
1 ordinary share - 100 - 100
1REBR
USD1,000,000 - 100 - 100
1,000,000% 0

B=xEAFRKRALFT 2020 FI]
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13

Place of incorporation/
establishment and kind of

SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Principal activities and

13

Particulars of issued share

Name legal entity place of operation capital/paid up capital
HMAY/RIBERE BRTRE/
AR BEREH IERBREERY BAREEE
Yuan Tian Technology (Shenzhen)  The PRC, limited liabilty ~ Research and USD100,000
Company Limited company development, provision
of technical support and
related senvices in the
PRC
ERRE (R ERAR HEERAA REEHEREERAZ 10000057
RREERE
Yuan Tai Electronics Company Taiwan, limited liability Not yet commenced 500,000 ordinary shares of
Limited company business TWD10 each
BaBFRHBRAT AEERAT AREXH 5000001 & REEH & &
0T ERR
Perfect Shiny Technology Limited ~ Samoa, limited fiability Investment holding 500,000 ordinary shares of
company USD1 each
ErkRERAR BEGERAA REBR 500000 E REEI£ T
LEBR

Perfect Shiny Technology (HK)
Limited

HiAM%(EE)BRAE

Perfect Shiny Technology
(Shenzhen) Limited

EHR(RINERAT

Skyteam Resources Limited
Skyteam Resources Limited
Naruto Technology Limited
BRHRERLE

Perinnova Limited (‘Perinnova’)

Perinnova Limited ([ Perinnova |)

Hong Kong, limited liability
company

ERERLT

The PRC, limited liability
company

FEARLR

BVI, limited liability
company

ERRAEBARLA

Hong Kong, limited liability
company

ERERAT

BVI, limited liability
company

EERAEEERLA

Design, development and
sales of applied
optics-related products
in Hong Kong

EERL HEREE
ERtSER

Sales, research and
development of
optics-related products
in the PRC

RABRERFERER
BER

Investment holding

REZR

Not yet commenced
business

ARRER

Investment holding

Perfect Optronics Limited Annual Report 2020

1 ordinary share

RERR

RMB1,000,000

AR #1,000,0007

1 ordinary share at no par
value

REAELER
10,000,000 ordinary shares
10,000,000 & # %
10,000 ordinary share at no

par value
1000REEELER

B B8 = (4F)

Proportion of Proportion of

ordinary shares Proportion of ordinary shares Proportion of
directly held by the ordinary shares held  directly held by the ordinary shares held
Company by the Group Company by the Group
ARRERKEL sEEREC  KLRAEREAZ sEEREL
EBRUA EERLA EBRUA EERLA

(%) (%) (%) (%)

2020 2020 2019 2019

=t Jat 23 =t 23 ~%-1% “2-1%

- 100 - 100

- 100 - 100

- 100 - 100

- 100 - 100

- 100 - 100

- 100 - 100

- 100 - 100

- 62 - 62



13

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

GeMBRERME

13 KB 7 (&)

Proportion of

Proportion of

Place of incorporation/ ordinary shares Proportion of ordinary shares Proportion of
establishment and kind of ~ Principal activities and ~ Particulars of issued share ~directly held by the ordinary shares held directly held by the ordinary shares held
Name legal entity place of operation capital/paid up capital Company by the Group Company by the Group
HMAY/RIBERE BRTRE/ ARRERKEL s5EREZ KDREEREZ sEEREL
£8 BRERM IREBRAERY RRRARHE EBRUA EERLA EBRUA EERLA
(%) (%) (%) (%)
2020 2020 2019 2019
=t Jat 23 =t 23 ~%-1E “2-1%
Perfect Intelligent Technology Hong Kong, limited liability  Design, development and 10,000 ordinary shares - 62 - 62
Limited company sales of digtal
information signage and
electronic shelf display
products in Hong Kong
EXEEMRERLA RERRA RERHE  10000RERRK
YEETRREFER
ETBER
Fayeking Technology Limited Hong Kong, limited liability ~ Design, development and 10,000 ordinary shares - 00 - 100
company sales of environmental-
friendly products in
Hong Kong
ROHEERAR BEARLA RERRH RERHE 10000k ERK
RRER
(a) Capital contributions from non-controlling (@) FEREZRIE

interests

In March 2019, the Group entered into a
subscription and shareholders’ agreement with
two independent third parties (the “Investors”)
for investments in shares of Perinnova, a
subsidiary of the Group. The subscription was
completed in April 2019 and each of the
Investors invested USD190,000 (approximately
HK$2,964,000 in aggregate) and each holds
19% equity interest, with the Group holding
the remaining 62% equity interest, in
Perinnova.

R-TE—HE=A AEFEFEL
BUYE=F(EKEEDIURER
R E AIRERNEBNE QA
Perinnovaf) i 1n - REFERN - F
—“NFWAEK SREERSE
190,000% JT(& & 492,964,000/
JL) © &% B # APerinnova 19%#%
o mASEE R FEA ST M62%8
1 o
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14 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Fe M BRRME

14 ME -BERRXRE

Furniture
Leasehold Moulds and and office Motor
improvements machinery equipment vehicles Total
BER
HERFTHE HAREE BHLZRE RE @
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TAT TAT FET TAT
At 1 January 2019 R=E-n%¥-A-H
Cost KA 3,143 1,888 2,229 4,651 1911
Accumulated depreciation 2 E (1,710) (1,580) (1,673) (3.917) (8,880)
Net book amount FEFE 1,433 308 556 734 3,031
Year ended 31 December HE-F-AF+=A
2019 ST-ALEE
Opening net book amount ~ F I REFE 1,433 308 556 734 3,031
Currency translation NEREEE
differences (14) €] @] - 23)
Additions #m 50 - 135 - 185
Disposals HE (58) - - - (58)
Depreciation charge NEZH (563) (150) (208) (482) (1,403)
Closing net book amount ~ F R BREF(E 848 155 477 252 1,732
At 31 December 2019 R-E-hE+=A
=t+-H
Cost AR 3,055 1,854 2,335 4,583 11,827
Accumulated depreciation 21T E (2,207) (1,699) (1,858) (4,331) (10,095)
Net book amount REFE 848 155 477 252 1,782
Year ended 31 December EHE-E-Z&E+-f
2020 Zt-HLEE
Opening net book amount ~ FMERE F(E 848 155 477 252 1,732
Currency translation NEREESR
differences 24 7 18 - 49
Additions il - - 33 - 33
Depreciation charge REZM (536) (65) (206) (172) (979)
Closing net book amount R EEFE 336 97 322 80 835
At 31 December 2020 RZBZB%+ZR
=+-H
Cost KA 3,165 1,971 2478 4,622 12.236
Accumulated depreciation 2T E (2,829) (1,874) (2,156) (4,542) (11,401)
Net book amount EHTE 336 97 322 80 835
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15 LEASES

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

15

This note provides information for leases where the
Group is a lessee.

(@)

Amounts recognised in the consolidated

statement of financial position

GeMBRERME

HE
UM R AR R B AR AN E AR -

@ REEHBRAXREANSH

2019
—T-NF
HK$’000
FAT

Right-of-use assets — FRAEEE — W

Properties
As at 1 January w—A—H 12,292 14,943
Additions nNE 2,709 2,968
Depreciation expense WERX (5,565) (5,464)
Exchange realignment [ERAE 431 (155)
As at 31 December BR+=HA=+—H 9,867 12,292
Lease liabilities HEEE

As at 1 January n—A—H 13,790 15,966
Additions NE 2,709 2,968
Interest expense FMBEBRAX 678 890
Payments of principal element & AN & 5 (5,465) (4,963)
Payments of interest element 3z~ | B %8 5 (678) (890)
Exchange realignment fE R 529 (181)
As at 31 December R+=HA=+—H 11,563 13,790
Current Vi) 4,372 5,098
Non-current FERE 7,191 8,692
11,563 13,790

B=xEAFRKRALFT 2020 FI]
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Fe M BRRME

15 LEASES (Continued) 15

(b)

Amounts recognised in the consolidated (b)
statement of comprehensive income

The consolidated statement of comprehensive
income shows the following amounts relating
to leases:

Depreciation charge of right-
of-use assets — Properties
(Note 8)

Interest expense (Note 10)

s H (K #E8)
A EFX (HE10)

Expense relating to short-term %2 278 & 0 78 F =2 (Bt 5£8)

leases (Note 8)

Expense relating to leases of KR EXEBRAEHHEE

low-value assets that are not HIEEEEEHREMRH
shown above as short-term B 5z (Bt 558)
leases (Note 8)

Expense relating to variable  WEFT A E B E /K A &
lease payments not included A E KB EF X
in lease liabilities (Note 8) (Pt 3E8)

EREEE — MERZFE

HE (&)

REEEZEUERBANESHE

BATERIXRERATEHEER
Rk
2019
—ZT—AF
HK$’000
T8 7T
5,565 5,464
678 890
224 657
52 12
150 186

The payments of principal and interest element
of leases liabilities during the year ended
31 December 2020 were HK$5,465,000 (2019:
HK$4,963,000) and HK$678,000 (2019:
HK$890,000), respectively.

Payments for short-term leases and leases of
low-value assets were not shown separately,
but included in the line of “loss before income
tax” in respect of the net cash generated from
operations.

The Group’s leasing activities and how these (c)
are accounted for

The Group leases various offices, warehouses
and a staff quarter. The leases run for periods
up to 6 years. Lease terms are negotiated on
an individual basis and contain a wide range of
different terms and conditions. The lease
agreements do not impose any covenants, but
leased assets may not be used as security for
borrowing purposes.

Perfect Optronics Limited Annual Report 2020
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16

LEASES (Continued)

(d) Extension and termination options

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RE M EHRERKNE

15 & (&)

(d EEARKLEE

Extension and termination options are included AEETVMETHXHEHAE
in a number of property leases across the ME&EERZE HRARNEEER
Group. These are used to maximise SEZEMAAE T ARERAE
operational flexibility in terms of managing the EMEEE I ABoEMERK
assets used in the Group’s operations. The IHEERERHAKE(MESE D
majority of extension and termination options THA)ITE ©
held are exercisable only by the Group and not
by the respective lessor.
INTANGIBLE ASSETS 16 BEEE
Club
memberships
S
HK$’000
FAET
At 1 January 2019 R-Z2-A%¥—-A—R
Cost B AR 3,122
Accumulated amortisation O £ -
Net book amount BREFE 3,122
Year ended 31 December 2019 BE_Z2-NF+-A=+—-RLEE
Opening net book amount Y AR EDFE 3,122
Additions NE 2,200
Amortisation charge By -
Closing net book amount R RMEFE 5,322
At 31 December 2019 R=F-AF+=-A=+—H
Cost B AR 5,322
Accumulated amortisation R §ic -
Net book amount BREFE 5,322
Year ended 31 December 2020 BE_2_FHF+-_A=+—-RLHEE
Opening net book amount Y AR TEDF E 5,322
Amortisation charge BT —
Closing net book amount HAREMFE 5,322
At 31 December 2020 R-ZF_FH+-A=+—H
Cost DN 5,322
Accumulated amortisation RETH -
Net book amount REFE 5,322
The Group’s intangible assets as at 31 December AEER_T_FEF+_A=1t—HK=
2020 and 31 December 2019 comprise membership Z-NE+_A=+t—HANEFLEERR
rights and are stated at cost less any impairment SREEN  REAKEN G HREZRA
losses in accordance with the Group’s accounting AR EREEY K -

policies.

BExEXxEHERAT 2020 F3R

149



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Fe M BRRME

17 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY 17 RENE7HWERMIEA
CATEGORY
The Group holds the following financial instruments
at 31 December 2020 and 2019:
HK$’000
F & T
Financial assets EtRMEE
Financial assets at amortised cost: X # 5K N5l R 8 & RE &
;'Z
Trade and other receivables JRE L2 BR SR R L b JIE K 32,606 20,254
Cash and cash equivalents RekREEFEY 76,403 70,308
Financial assets at FVOCI BArBEFARMEE
WamzemEE 1,876 2,673
Financial assets at FVTPL BRArBEFABRZZE
& E 59,547 57,538
170,432 150,773
Financial liabilities TRIEE
Liabilities at amortised cost: BEHEKATENEE
Trade and other payables JE A< BR 3R B2 Efh FE T K 54,288 18,475
Lease liabilities HEA®E 11,563 13,790
65,851 32,265

18 FINANCIAL ASSET AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE

INCOME

18 RAREBEFAREMEE RS
ZERMEE

The Group’s financial asset at FVOCI comprises the ASBERAABEFAEMBEZELENS
Group’s equity investment in certain ordinary shares RAECREARER —HLARRMET
issued by a private company principally engaged in ETEBRBRMOBRERE BZARH
the research and development, manufacturing and 2.22% M (= F — ALF : 3.08%) * &L
sale of separator which is a key component in ARAIEBREHE  RELHEREE
lithium battery, representing an approximately 2.22% (REBEDNEEF D) o EERAFT A BT
(2019: 3.03%) shareholding of such company. The (E
balance is denominated in TWD.
2019
—T-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET F& T
Balance at 1 January R—A—B2&& 2,673 2,652
Fair value (loss)/gain on revaluation R E {2 WK RNER Z
recognised in other SEAREBEE(ER),
comprehensive income I = (797) 21
Balance at 31 December RT=—ZA=+—B2z#&& 1,876 2,673
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

19 FINANCIAL ASSET AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

The Group’s financial asset at FVTPL comprises the
holding of certain preferred shares in Mobvoi Inc.
(“Mobvoi”), a private company principally engaged in
the business of developing and providing voice
search artificial intelligent systems on mobile, smart
wearable, automotive and other devices. The
balance is denominated in USD. There have been no
addition to or disposal of such investment since the
Group made the investment in January 2015. No
dividend has been received by the Group from
Mobvoi. During the year ended 31 December 2020,
Mobvoi acquired two companies by the issues of
new ordinary shares of Mobvoi as consideration. In
addition, Mobvoi reserved additional ordinary shares
of Mobvoi for its employee stock ownership plan
(“ESOP”). Upon completion of the aforesaid issues
of ordinary shares of Mobvoi and the reservation of
additional ordinary shares of Mobvoi for its ESOP,
the Group’s shareholding proportion in Mobvoi (on a
fully diluted and as converted basis) is reduced from
approximately 1.50% to approximately 1.23%.

GeMBRERME

19 RAABEFAREZEHME
E

REEBZARBEAABZZEMEESR
& # BMobvoi  Inc. ([ Mobvoi ]) & F 18 %t
f% * Mobvois £ BH HH % RIBEFH -
BREMBALRE AEMEMREZES
BRATIEERGESOLARR - 24
BAETLE - BAEBR T —HF—
AERZEREUR BEAKELERNE K
HE - REE KR T EMobvol WEUE I & -
REBEE-ZZT-_TF+_A=+—HLHF
& » MobvoilA 21T #Mobvoi & @ i A K8
U BE Ml A B o tE SN - MobvoiZH 8 T+
PRETEI([E THBAED RSB RIEING
Mobvoi i %  FEAK it MobvoiE i/ ik 3%
1R A 8 TR 811R 88 58 S MMobvoi & &
A% 1% + 7N & E FAMobvoith 1 B& Lt 1 (3% &
M E R EBRAETE) B O1.50%HE
ZE#)1.23% o

2020 2019

—B-2fF —E-NF

HK$°000 HK$’000

FEx FAT

Balance at 1 January R—A—B2z&& 57,538 54,988
Fair value gain on revaluation REMYZEFEPERR

recognised in other gains, net EHAAEERSE 2,009 2,550

Balance at 31 December RT-ZA=+—B2z#&& 59,547 57,538
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w8

20

21

Bt 7% R 3k MY &
INVENTORIES 20 #&
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$’000
TERT FAT
Work in progress TR 556 609
Finished goods 5E X dh 43,253 58,193
Less: Provision for obsolete B RETERE
inventories (11,905) (26,357)
31,904 32,445

The cost of inventories recognised as expense and
included in “cost of sales” amounted to
HK$198,138,000 (2019: HK$188,306,000) for the
year (Note 8).

A write back of provision for obsolete inventories of
HK$14,832,000 (2019: HK$26,849,000) was
recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income in respect of the net amount
of the (write back of provision)/provision for obsolete
inventories, loss on obsolete inventories, utilisation
of provision for obsolete inventories and write-down
of inventories to their net realisable value for the
year. These amounts have been included in cost of
sales in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

$$FEEWL\7%E$ﬁSEJf‘+J\F$ﬁ%EX$J Enpea
5 Bk AN 198,138,000/ 7T (— & — L4 -
188,306,000 7T ) (Ff 5£8) °

AEBRFNERE(REFEHRRFR)

REFTERE REFEEERE HARE
FE %ﬁﬁ&WHT“EﬁT &I FE MR
GETAKREERERRECERERD
14,832,000/ rz(_ T — N ¢

26,849,000 7T) ° Z EHIBC At AR
EReERHHERAKR]IET »

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 21 EWERAKHtE WK
2019
—E-NF
HK$’000
FE T
Trade receivables (Note (a)) JE UK BR 3K (BT 5 (a) ) 24,680 17,460
Bills receivables (Note (a)) FE W = 1% (T 5% (a)) 6,144 298
30,824 17,758

Prepayments, deposits and other & H e R HAmEY

receivables = 3,183 3,440
34,007 21,198
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GeMBRERME

21 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 21 BEWERAKREMEWRR(E)
(Continued)

Notes: B &

(@) The Group generally grants credit periods of 30 to 90 days. (@) AEE—RIFHIOEANEE - RIFEHZ
The ageing analysis of trade and bills receivables based on A EHNEUERERRZENRROTOT
invoice date is as follows:

2019

—T-NF

HK$'000

& T

0-30 days 0-30&% 20,997 6,810
31-60 days 31-60K 9,738 7,286
61-90 days 61-90K 53 3,371
Over 90 days 90K MA £ 36 291
30,824 17,758

(b) As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s trade receivables of (b) REZZTZTF+-A=+—H A&£ECHH
HK$442,000 (2019: HK$8,407,000) were past due but not 1B R F 8 1) 8 W BR 5K A442,0008 0 (ZE— N
impaired. The ageing analysis of trade receivables that were £ 1 8,407,000& 7T) °
past due but not impaired is as follows:

2019
—T-NE
HK$’'000
T T
Amounts past due i B ZRIE
1-30 days 1-30K 376 4,217
31-60 days 31-60K 30 3,115
61-90 days 61-90K 36 784
Over 90 days 90K A £ - 291
442 8,407
For these past due trade receivables, the Group has MZECBHERER  A5ECEREEB
assessed the expected credit losses by considering AR E - - FRImRARATEEER  FEEH
historical default rates, existing market conditions and EEER - REABTE  BUREXROESRE
forward-looking information. Based on the assessment, ECL BEEEEERT AURZTRERRERE
rate of trade receivables is close to zero. Therefore, the THEBEBELTERX -
loss allowance provision for these trade receivables
balances was not material.

() The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade and other () 7R 5 [ FE U BR R % HL A FE UK 2 BR TE B R LA

receivables are denominated in the following currencies: THEEE:
2019
—T-NE
HK$’'000
T T
HK$ BT 1,889 1,640
usD E 28,052 12,611
RMB AR 3,916 6,926
TWD e 150 21
34,007 21,198
(d) The fair values of trade and other receivables approximate (@) BREREREMERRz AR BEEEEKR

their carrying amounts. BEIEE -
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GABBEEME
22 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 22 BERBEEEY
2020 2019
—E-EF —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
TR FE T
Bank deposits, bank balances RITEZR RITEH R
and cash Be 76,403 70,308
The carrying amounts of the Group’s total bank REBRITHER RITERERBF S 2RE
deposits, bank balances and cash are denominated BUATHEEE
in the following currencies:
2020 2019
—E-H —T-NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHE T FE T
HK$ T 7,478 6,986
usb EV 59,560 57,491
RMB AR 8,805 4,777
TWD ek 560 1,054
76,403 70,308
23 SHARE CAPITAL 23 KA

31 December 2020 and
31 December 2019
—EZEF+ZA=1+—HRK
—E-h&E+=A=+-H

Number of
shares Amount
R4 & B k-]
(thousands) HK$’000
(F %) FETT
Authorised: EE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each & f% & i@ i%0.01/8 7T 5,000,000 50,000
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23 SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

24

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GEMBERME
23 KA (&)
Number of Ordinary shares

shares of HK$0.01 each

iR E R
g 17 & B 0.01% 7T
HK$’000
FAE T
Issued and fully paid: ERTRAR:
At 1 January 2019, 31 December W_-_Z—AF—HF—H -
2019, 1 January 2020 and —E-NF+=A
31 December 2020 =t+—RA —ZT-_ZTF
—A—ARZZT_ZTF
+-—A=+—H 1,483,687,151 14,837

There were no movements in the Company’s share

AR AR AE T B (=

capital during the year (2019: Nil). —NE &)
TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 24 BE BRI R H it B
2020 2019
= =t 23 —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
T & T FET
Trade payables (Note (a)) JE A5F BR 3 (P 5% (a) ) 44,885 14,467
Deposits received from customers WEEF k% 7,163 1,872
Accruals and other payables FERT R IE & H R A 5K 5,205 3,175
57,253 19,514
Notes: B RE
(@) The ageing analysis of trade payables based on invoice date (@) BEZEZABAENEMERNERY T
is as follows: T:
2019
—T-NF
HK$'000
FA&IT
0-30 days 0-30% 35,957 8,349
31-60 days 31-60F% 8,905 3,653
61-90 days 61-90K 23 2,465
44,885 14,467
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Fe M BRRME

24

25

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 24 BRI RH B (E)
(Continued)
(b) The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade and other (b) NEEME SR HEREMEAREAT
payables are denominated in the following currencies: HEHEE :
2019
—T—NF
HK$'000
FHE T
HK$ BT 3,447 2,296
usb ETT 50,952 14,600
RMB AR 2,487 2,540
TWD e 367 78
57,253 19,514
() The carrying amounts of trade and other payables () EREFREREMENR 2 EEERERARE
approximate their fair values. BERE -
DEFERRED INCOME TAX ASSETS 25 EIEFBHEE
The movements in deferred income tax assets in HRFARRNMREBENESBNRLEMSG
respect of accelerated tax depreciation during the MEEZZHWMT :
year are as follows:
2020 2019
= —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
F & T FET
Beginning of the year F 1] 155 63
Credited to the consolidated FFAGZAEEBERER
statement of comprehensive (M 7E11)
income (Note 11) 11 94
Exchange realignment [ 5 38 & ()
End of the year FR 171 155

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax
loss carry-forwards to the extent that the realisation
of the related tax benefit through future taxable
profits is probable. As at 31 December 2020, the
Group did not recognise deferred income tax assets
of HK$34,411,000 (2019: HK$31,297,000) in respect
of tax losses of certain PRC subsidiaries of
HK$3,429,000 (2019: HK$1,072,000), which will
expire in five years, and tax loss of certain Hong
Kong subsidiaries of HK$207,511,000 (2019:
HK$189,355,000) which will not expire under current
tax legislation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GANBEENE
26 DIVIDENDS 26 RE
The Board did not declare any dividend for the year BEEeUVESREE_TE_TEF+_A
ended 31 December 2020 (2019: Nil). =St-BLEFENEARE(ZZE—H
FmE) o
27 CASH FLOW INFORMATION 27 BHEeREER
(a) Reconciliation of loss before income tax to () MABHRAFEEKERARSZ
cash used in operations AR
2020 2019
—B-2F —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx FAT
Loss before income tax bRET1S AT E 1B (18,547) (35,789)
Adjustments for: BATRIEFE
— Depreciation of property, — ¥ BE&
plant and equipment BT E (WiE14)
(Note 14) 979 1,403
— Depreciation of — RABEEFRE
right-of-use of assets (M 7E8)
(Note 8) 5,565 5,464
— Write back of provision - REFTER#ERD
for obsolete inventories (B 5E8)
(Note 8) (14,832) (26,849)
— Finance income (Note 10)  — BF#Ue A (B #£10) (31) (170)
— Finance costs (Note 10)  — B % & A (3E10) 678 1,165
— Fair value gain on — BAREBETAER
financial asset at MNeBmEEL
FVTPL (Note 7) ~rEEkR
(B 5E7) (2,009) (2,550)
— Written-off of property, — WEWE - -BE K
plant and equipment = (T EE7)
(Note 7) — 58
— Gain on disposal of - HEME - -HER
property, plant and Bl
equipment (Note 7) (B 5E7) — (10)

Operating loss before changes & iE & & F B AT & 518

in working capital (28,197) (57,278)
Changes in working capital LEEEE
— Inventories - k& 15,373 76,294
— Trade and other — BWER R E A E
receivables & (12,809) (7,624)
— Trade and other payables — — J&FBR 30 & H fth jE
BEN 37,739 (8,493)
Cash generated from KEMERE
operations 12,106 2,899
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iR 5 B RS SRR MY AR
27 CASH FLOW INFORMATION 27
(Continued)

(b)

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from

financing activities

REREEN (&)

(b)) BMEEZBFELEBZHER

Bank loans
due within
1 year Lease Total
16 A E| B
KIRITE R FiEl= 5t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHETT FE T FHE T
As at 1 January 2019 R-ZZE—NAF—HA—8 8,979 15,966 24,945
Cash flows HEem
— Repayments of bank  — EERTEE
borrowings (8,979) - (8,979)
— Payments of principal — ZfHE&&EAS
element of lease B4
liabilities — (4,963) (4,963)
— Payments of interest - YHBEEaEFE
element of lease B 17
liabilities — (890) (890)
Other non-cash HuIER & E
movements
— Addition of lease — EAHEAE
liabilities — 2,968 2,968
— Interest expenses on — HEEBEHF BB X
lease liabilities — 890 890
— Exchange realignment — — [& i % — (181) (181)
As at 31 December 2019 R=-ZT—h &
and 1 January 2020 +=ZA=+—-HK
—E-Z2f—-—A—H - 13,790 13,790
Cash flows RER
— Payments of principal — XNHEE&8ELE
element of lease B 17
liabilities — (5,465) (5,465)
— Payments of interest - XHHEEEEFE
element of lease B
liabilities — 678) (678)
Other non-cash H 3R ¢ &
movements
— Addition of lease — EBAHEAE
liabilities — 2,709 2,709
— Interest expenses on — HEBENFEHX
lease liabilities - 678 678
— Exchange realignment — — [& 5 % — 529 529
As at 31 December 2020 R=-Z =T F
+=A=+—H — 11,563 11,563
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

COMMITMENTS

At 31 December 2020, the Group has no significant
capital expenditure contracted for at the end of the
reporting period but not recognised as liabilities
(2019: Nil).

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2020, the Group has no
material contingent liabilities (2019: Nil).

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a) Parent entity

The Company’s immediate and ultimate
holding company is Winful Enterprises Limited,
a company incorporated in the BVI, and
ultimately controlled by Mr. Cheng Wai Tak, a
director of the Company.

(o) Subsidiaries

Interests in subsidiaries are set out in Note
13.

(c) Key management personnel compensation

Key management includes directors and senior
management. The compensation paid or
payable to key management for employee
services is shown below:

GeMBRERME

28 EIE
R-_T-_TE+-A=+—0 AE£EER

5565 MR 4R 2 5T 40 IE R TR B B RO
BEREARAHE(ZT-NF: 8-

20 RAEE

R-ZB-_FF+— H -l— B A&EEA
BERIRAB(ZT-NEF: 8-

30 BEARRS
(@ BATERE
RAAMEBEERGEIERRAAR
Winful Enterprises Limited * H & —
FREBEXBESTMA LA T
NAARNABEEHERE EHKE
il o
by HKMELF

KRB AR 2 EHNME13 -

(c) EEEBASEFMNH

TEEEAEBRREFRAAER
Z-MEEMNRBENHENEE
EEABNHHMOT

2019
—E-NF
HK$’000
FAET

Short-term employee benefits %2 #i (& & & F| (Bt 5%)
(Note) 8,819 7,668

Post-employment benefits EBRKE 7F'J

— defined contribution plans — FEE M K2 81 54
8,900 7,722

Note: Include lease payments of HK$688,000 for staff
quarter (2019: HK$1,032,000).

ek BRIEETIEEMES688,0008 (=%
— L4 : 1,032,000 7T) °

B=xEAFRKRALFT 2020 FI]
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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31 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL
POSITION AND RESERVES
MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY

(@)

31 RRAIMNBBERRIRRFBEE
3]

Statement of financial position of the (@) AN EKEBEMRRE
Company
As at 31 December
B+=—A=+—H
2019
—E-NF
Note HK$’000
Hf 7 T T
Assets EE
Non-current assets EREBEE
Investments in subsidiaries HINBRARMNEE 525,657 525,657
525,657 525,657
Current assets REEE
Other receivables E i & TR 287 306
Amounts due from JFE UK BT /BB A R 3R E
subsidiaries 99,290 99,912
Cash and cash equivalents RekReEED 5,181 5,185
104,758 105,408
Total assets EEHRE 630,415 631,060
Equity and liabilities EzREE
Equity attributable to equity ZAATEZRIFHEARE
holders of the Company LR
Share capital & 2R 14,837 14,837
Reserves i (b) 614,591 615,126
Total equity ERAE 629,428 629,963
Liabilities a&
Current liabilities REEE
Other payables E i & 3R 987 1,097
Total liabilities BEAE 987 1,097
Total equity and liabilities ERRkEEERE 630,415 631,060

The statement of financial position of the
Company was approved by the Board of
Directors on 19 March 2021 and was signed

on its behalf.

Chang Huan Chia
RER
Director

EBEF
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GeMBRERME

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL 31 RATRNWHMBRRERRFEE
POSITION AND RESERVES (&)
MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY
(Continued)
(b) Reserves movement of the Company (b) ELARNFEEES
Share  Contributed Retained
premium surplus earnings Total
R 7 HE BABRH CRALE: @t
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
FTHEL FTHEL TER FTHEL
(Note)
(B 7E)
At 1 January 2019 RZE-NF—A—H 465,738 136,082 14,319 616,139
Loss for the year FEBE - - (1,019) (1,013)
At 31 December 2019 and RZE-—NE+ZA
1 January 2020 ZT-HEZEZZH
—A—H 465,738 136,082 13,306 615,126
Loss for the year FEBAE - - (535) (535)
At 31 December 2020 RZZEZZTE+_A
=+—H 465,738 136,082 12,771 614,591

Note: Contributed surplus of the Company represents the
difference between the excess of the nominal value
of the Company’s shares issued and the aggregate
net asset value of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant
to a reorganisation for the listing of the Company.

MiE: AR ZBABBRRAABTBRET
BiHEERBRERAAR LT WMET
ZEAMBBZNBEAR 2 EEFE
it cBHEE-

B=xEAFRKRALFT 2020 FI]
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ey

B 7% 3R R B 5

32 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF

DIRECTORS

32 EF2RARER

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments

The remuneration of every director and the

chief executive is set out below:

(a ESBRTHABZME
BEENTRAR ZFMAT

Salaries, Employer’s
allowances contribution
and to retirement
benefits in Discretionary benefit
Fees kind bonuses schemes Total
e ER EXHENKE N
weE REYEF BEIEAL R EIMR At
HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
F& T F& T FE T F& T F& T
For the year ended HE-_Z-_ZTHF+_-A
31 December 2020 =+t—BILFE
Executive directors: T
Mr. Cheng Wai Tak {2 - 4,888 350 18 5,256
Mr. Liu Ka Wing B - 636 53 18 707
Mr. Tse Ka Wing FIER — 1,440 120 18 1,578
Mr. Chang Huan Chia EXE)
(Note 1) 152 259 42 27 480
Independent non-executive — B FHTEE
directors:
Mr. Wong Yik Chung John & ¥ &% 4 120 — — — 120
Mr. Wong Chi Chiu HEBELE 120 — — — 120
Mr. Li Shui Yan (Note 2) 2 i B 55 A (T EE2) 95 — — — 95
Mr. Kan Man Wai (Note 3)  f& 30 {& 5& 4 (Fff 5£3) 240 — — — 240
Mr. Cho Chi Kong (Note 3) % 7 ¢ 45 4 (i 533) 240 - — — 240
Ms. Hsu Wai Man Helen B2+ (M)
(Note 1) 64 _ o - 64
1,031 7,223 565 81 8,900
For the year ended Hz-_ZT—NL&+=A
31 December 2019 =+— IE3
Executive directors: HiTEH
Mr. Cheng Wai Tak BEEELE
(Chief Executive) (7T A8 %) — 5,232 — 18 5,250
Mr. Liu Ka Wing BE&sE - 636 - 18 654
Mr. Tse Ka Wing FREEE — 1,440 — 18 1,458
Independent non-executive — B IEHTEE
directors:
Mr. Wong Yik Chung John — #® &% & 120 - - - 120
Mr. Wong Chi Chiu HEBELE 120 — - — 120
Mr. Li Shui Yan FHBEE 120 — — — 120
360 7,308 - 54 7,722
Note 1: Appointed on 25 September 2020 Wil - RZEZTF AT+ HEEZE
Note 2: Resigned on 15 October 2020 W R=ZZE=FTF+A+RAEMT
Note 3: Appointed on 1 January 2020 WHE3 - RZTE_TF—A—HEZHF
No directors waived or agreed to waive any MEEERFA ﬁﬁlﬁ S RBMEE
emoluments during the year (2019: Nil). e (2T —NF: &)

162
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

32 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF
DIRECTORS (Continued)

(b)

Directors’ retirement benefits and termination
benefits

None of the directors of the Company
received or will receive any retirement benefits
or termination benefits for the year ended
31 December 2020 (2019: Nil).

Consideration provided to third parties for
making available directors’ services

During the year ended 31 December 2020,
the Company does not pay consideration to
third parties for making available directors’
service (2019: Nil).

Information about loans, quasi-loans and
other dealings in favour of directors,
controlled bodies corporate by and
connected entitles with such directors

As at 31 December 2020, there are no loans,
quasi-loans and other dealing arrangements in
favour of directors, controlled bodies
corporate by and controlled entities with such
directors (2019: Nil).

Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

No significant transactions, arrangements and
contracts in relation to the Group’s business
to which the Company was a party and in
which a director of the Company had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any
time during the years.

GeMBRERME

32 EFRARER(HF)

(b)

ESRNBEARRLERER

RBE-_ZF_THF+_-_A=1+—H
LEFE ﬁﬁﬁ A5 % YA Bk
Ut B AE fA] 3R K48 ) 3 4% L 1 18 4 A
(ZF—NF 8\ -

BREGESEHOE=HRMEZA
"

KBE-T-TF+-A=+—8
LE4F /2 AR D S 48 5 R 043 I

BXNREFE=F(ZZ—-N%F:
&) -

FHEULESE ZEFEFZEER

HEENERERBRASIEAZE
R EEFRHEMRG 2EHR
R-ZZFE-_ZTFE+-_A=+—H" #

BEANNES REFEHZEH
&ﬁk#§$m%HE?E§§A

7

M

ZEF EERREMRZRE (=
%—ﬂi &) -

EERXS  REAEGHHERRE
2

RERLFRETAEHE SHEBER
$%@%%ZEK§%‘§%&%
MUNARRR B — BTN RAR
%?%ﬁék%xq'ﬁﬁiﬁ
=) o

BExEXxEHERAT 2020 F3R
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Financial Summary

B R

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilites and ANEBRNBERAEATRFENZENLEE 8
non-controlling interests of the Group for the last five BN IIFEBREFBE(HHEADHBRLCEX
financial years, as extracted from the published audited BA#&#Rz) 7 &M T~ :

financial statements, is set out below.

For the year ended 31 December
BE+-A=Z+-BLEFE
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
= —T-hF ZE-N\F ZZ—+F ZT-RF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTER FET FET FET FET

Results E4+

Revenue WA 206,973 166,607 254,072 371,518 1,149,998

(Loss)/profit for the year  F & (E18) /

attributable to: FEE
B
Equity holders of the PN/NETE
Company BEA (16,883) (34,078) (55,780) (98,329) 90,729
Non-controlling interests ~ JF1E iR 4 25 (1,647) (1,570) - - (2,394)
(18,530) (35,648) (55,780) (98,329) 88,335
As at 31 December
R+=A=+—-H
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016

== s —FE—AfF —E-N\F —ZT—+F Z—T—RE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TR FEL FET FHEL FHEL

Assets, liabilities and EE-BER

non-controlling FERER

interests
Total assets BEEBE 219,932 203,663 240,795 298,353 502,122
Total liabilities BBEEE (68,816) (33,306) (36,830) (38,317) (152,163)
Non-controlling interests ~ FE#ZE B %% 245 (1,410) - - -

151,361 168,947 203,965 260,036 349,959
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